

Workflow Modules 2015 User Guide

© 2002-2016 Microix Inc.



www.microix.net

Table of Contents

Part I	Introduction	7
Part II	Implementation Guidelines	9
Part III	Installation Guide	11
1	Hardware and Software Requirements	11
2	Server Installation	
3	Microix Share	
4	Workstation Installation	
5	Uninstall Workflow Modules	
6	Web Time Clock Installation	
Part IV	Timesheet Module	28
1	Introduction	
2	Timesheet Module Checklist	
3	Set Up	30
	Options	
	Earning Differential / Leave Earning Codes	
	Employee Default Values	
	Pay Periods Shift Codes	
	Overtime Rule	
	Charge ID Restrictions By Employee	
	Employee Default Segment Values	
4	Create Charge Code	
-	Create New Timesheet	
5	Request Leave	
6	Employee Information	
7	Time Clock	
8	In/Out Board	50
9	Manual Punch	
10	Time Clock History	
11	Approve Leave	
12	Process Multiple Timesheets	53
13	Approve Timesheet	57
14	Document List	59
15	Reports	59

62

3	Setup	64
	Options	. 65
	New Vendor Maintenance	. 66
	Setup Funding Source Fiscal Year End	. 67
	Create User Defined Fields	. 69
	Requision/PO Spending Limits	. 70
4	My Documents	71
	Create New Document	. 72
	Vendor Maintenance	. 78
	Templates	. 81
	Global Update	
	Distribution Code Allocation	
5	Receiving	83
6	Query Vendors	85
7	Query Chart of Accounts	85
8	Approve Documents	86
	Split Requisition	. 89
9	Document Search	92
10	Reports	92
11	Display Account Balance	92
12	Shopping List	93
	lasses (amo Mandula	95
Part VI	Inventory Module 9	95
	Inventory Module	
	Introduction	95
1 2	Introduction	95 96
1 2 3	Introduction Inventory Module Checklist Setup	95 96 96
1 2	Introduction Inventory Module Checklist Setup My Inventory Adjustments	95 96 96 98
1 2 3 4	Introduction Inventory Module Checklist Setup My Inventory Adjustments Create New Inventory Adjustment	95 96 96 98 99
1 2 3 4 5	Introduction Inventory Module Checklist Setup My Inventory Adjustments Create New Inventory Adjustment Inventory Shopping Items	95 96 96 98 99 102
1 2 3 4	Introduction Inventory Module Checklist Setup My Inventory Adjustments Create New Inventory Adjustment Inventory Shopping Items	95 96 96 98 99 102 102
1 2 3 4 5	Introduction Inventory Module Checklist Setup My Inventory Adjustments Create New Inventory Adjustment Inventory Shopping Items Create New Inventory Item	95 96 96 98 99 102 102 103
1 2 3 4 5	Introduction Inventory Module Checklist Setup My Inventory Adjustments Create New Inventory Adjustment Inventory Shopping Items	95 96 98 98 99 102 102 103 106
1 2 3 4 5 6	Introduction Inventory Module Checklist Setup My Inventory Adjustments Create New Inventory Adjustment Inventory Shopping Items Create New Inventory Items Create New Inventory Item Inventory Item	95 96 98 98 99 102 103 106 107
1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Introduction Inventory Module Checklist Setup My Inventory Adjustments Create New Inventory Adjustment Inventory Shopping Items Create New Inventory Items Inventory Items Create New Inventory Item Import Item Images Inventory Stock Level	95 96 98 .98 .99 102 102 103 106 107
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Introduction Inventory Module Checklist Setup My Inventory Adjustments Create New Inventory Adjustment Inventory Shopping Items Create New Inventory Items Create New Inventory Item Inventory Items Produce Assemblies	95 96 98 99 102 103 106 107 108
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Introduction Inventory Module Checklist Setup My Inventory Adjustments Create New Inventory Adjustment Inventory Shopping Items Inventory Items Create New Inventory Item Inport Item Images Inventory Stock Level Produce Assemblies	95 96 96 98 99 102 102 103 106 107 108 109 110
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Introduction Inventory Module Checklist. Setup. My Inventory Adjustments. Create New Inventory Adjustment Inventory Shopping Items. Inventory Items. Create New Inventory Item Import Item Images Inventory Stock Level. Produce Assemblies.	95 96 96 98 99 102 102 103 106 107 108 109 110 111
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	Introduction Inventory Module Checklist Setup My Inventory Adjustments Create New Inventory Adjustment Inventory Shopping Items Inventory Items Create New Inventory Item Import Item Images Inventory Stock Level Produce Assemblies Inventory Picking and Receiving Item Labels Physical Count	95 96 96 98 99 102 102 102 103 106 107 108 109 110 111 112
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Introduction Inventory Module Checklist Setup My Inventory Adjustments Create New Inventory Adjustment Inventory Shopping Items Inventory Items Create New Inventory Item Import Item Images Inventory Stock Level Produce Assemblies Inventory Picking and Receiving Item Labels Physical Count	95 96 96 98 99 102 102 102 102 103 106 107 108 109 110 111 112 113

Part V Requisition Module

	Ordering Kits	
	Return Items to Inventory	115
	Inventory Purchase Order	
	Request Warehouse Transfer	
	Sales Order	
	Sales Order Return	119
Part VII	Budget Module	121
1	Introduction	
2	Budget Module Checklist	
3	Setup	
	Benefit Rates	
	Monthly Distribution Codes	
4		
	Edit Budget Worksheet	
5	Salary Worksheet	131
6	Distribute Worksheets	
7	Approve Worksheets	
8	Refresh Worksheet Data	
9	Consolidate Worksheet Query	139
10	Document List	140
11	Reports	
Part VIII	Maintenance	142
1	Users	
	Import	
2	Security	
	Role Maintenance	
	Query	
3	Organization Workflow	149
	Workflow Options	
	Budget Segments	
	Requesters	
	Approvers	
	Category Wizard	
	Routing Wizard	
	Account Restrictions	
	Personnel Import From MIP	
	Restrict Distributions	
	Restrict Categories	
	Budget Template	
4	Global Options	
	Application Options	
	Approval Level Title	
	Document Numbers	
	Document Numbers Change Document Ownership Terminology	176

Contents	5

1	Live Permete Support	202
Part IX	Support	202
10	Product Registration	199
9	System Alerts	194
8	Custom Report Designer	185
7	Post Messages	
	Other Options	
6	Document Maintenance	
5	Approval Substitution	
	System Logins System Audit Trail Global Lookup	
	System Logins System Audit Trail	
	Our term Lewise	170

		202
2	Check for Updates	203
3	Report Software Issues	205
4	Create New Database	205
5	Query Data	206

Part X Shared Activities

1	Reroute	209
2	Email	210
3	Attachments	211
4	Audit Trail	213
5	Sorting/Grouping/Filtering Data Grids	213
	Report Export	
7	Import from Excel	216
8	Address Code Maintenance	218
9	Reports	219
10	-	
	Index	0



1 Introduction

Microix Workflow Modules consist of four modules (Budget, Requisition, Inventory and Timesheet) that are designed specifically to seamlessly integrate with Abila MIP Fund Accounting software. This user guide will introduce users to the concepts and procedures of creating and approving documents via the workflow process.

Included Topics:

- **Software Installation** Contains information about installing the application on your local LAN or deploying it on a Terminal/Citrix Server and the technical requirements of each.
- **Budget Module** Contains information on how to create and distribute budget worksheets, edit and submit budget documents for approval, budget individual employee salaries and benefits, approve submitted documents, create reports and finally, transfer budget documents to Abila MIP Fund Accounting Software.
- **Requisition Module** Contains information on how to create and submit requisitions for approval, manage an item list, approve submitted documents, create reports and finally, transfer purchase orders to Abila MIP Fund Accounting Software.
- **Inventory Module** Contains information on how to create inventory adjustments, check inventory stock level and valuation, build kits and assemblies, maintain a physical count, and complete picking or receiving.
- **Timesheet Module** Contains information on how to create and submit timesheets for approval, manage requested leave, approve submitted timesheets, create reports and transfer timesheets to Abila MIP Payroll Module.
- **Maintenance** This section is intended for system administrators. It contains detailed information about setting up your organization's workflow, users and security, options for customizing all four modules, and managing all the documents in the system.



2 Implementation Guidelines

Here are some recommended guidelines when implementing a new installation of Abila MIP Fund Accounting and Microix system:

- ✓ When creating a new Abila MIP FA database, never reduce default field lengths. You can increase them but try not to reduce their size. Additionally, try making the Distribution Code field length at least one character longer than the Employee ID field length. This will help us accommodate our custom "X distribution codes" for the Timesheet Module. If this cannot be done, we have alternative options.
- \checkmark Abila MIP FA Payroll Module is required when implementing Microix Timesheets.
- ✓ Abila MIP FA Accounts Payable and/or Encumbrance Modules are required when implementing Microix Requisition Module.
- ✓ Abila MIP FA Budget Module is NOT required when implementing *Microix Requisition* or *Budget Module*. If you need a different budget version other than "Original" or "Revised", then Abila MIP Budget Module would be required.
- ✓ When updating Abila MIP Fund Accounting product, all users should exit Microix Workflow Modules.
- ✓ If you are planning to upgrade both Abila MIP FA and Microix at the same time, always upgrade Abila MIP FA first before upgrading *Microix*.
- ✓ Microix email notification requires an SMTP mail server. Your IT team may be able to provide further information regarding SMTP mail servers.



3 Installation Guide

3.1 Hardware and Software Requirements

Please verify that your computer meets the minimum requirements for both hardware and software. *Microix* is also compatible with Virtual Servers running Microsoft Windows operating system.

Minimum Server Requirements for SQL Server/Express	
Hardware Requirements	
 Pentium-Class or Xeon processor (1.2 GHz or faster) 2GB RAM 	
 200MB + (3 x Approximate database Size). This will need to increase as your database size increases. 	
 A RAID array should be installed depending on your tolerance for disk failure. Microsoft recommends that write-caching capabilities of disk controllers be disabled (unless the manufacturer specifically specifies SQL Server database compatibility). 10/100 Mbps ethernet connection from server to workstation 	
Software Requirements	
 Microsoft[™] SQL Server 2008R2 or higher (Express or Full Version) Microsoft[™] Windows 2008R2 Server or higher (including all updates and Service Packs) 	
 Microsoft[™] Dot Net Framework 3.5 	
 SMTP or MAPI Mail Server for sending emails IIS 9.0 or higher is required for our Web Time Clock (100 people accessing your web page every day, may use as much as 50 Meg/day of your bandwidth (100 people x 50k). Multiple that by 30 days and you'll get a monthly total of 150 Meg/ month.) 	
 Licensed copy of Abila MIP Fund Accounting Abila MIP FA Accounts Payable and/or Encumbrance Module is required for the Microix Requisition Module 	
 Abila MIP FA Payroll Module is required for the Microix Timesheet Module Abila MIP FA Budget Module is required for the Microix Budget Module ONLY if you need additional budget versions other than Original and Revised 	

Application Server for deploying over the Web using Terminal or Citrix Server (*Optional*)

Hardware Requirements

- Microsoft 2008R2 + Terminal Server or Citrix Server (REMOTE ACCESS ONLY)
- Additional server access licenses are required by Microsoft/Citrix
- RAM should be increased based on the total number of users who will be accessing the application simultaneously. The software will consume approximately 60MB of RAM per user

Minimum Workstation Requirements

Hardware Requirements

- Intel i3 processor or equivalent
- 2GB RAM

Minimum Workstation Requirements

- 150 MB Free Hard Disk
- 1360 x 768 screen resolution or higher
- 10/100 Mbps ethernet connection from server to workstation
- Local or network laser printer and or scanner if applicable (Terminal server may require additional third party software)

Software Requirements

- Microsoft[™] Windows 7 or higher, including all updates and Service Packs:
- Microsoft[™] Dot net Framework 3.5

3.2 Server Installation

(IMPORTANT! Abila MIP Fund Accounting Server should be installed before installing *Microix Workflow Modules*)

This guide includes combined instructions for both New and Upgraded installations of *Microix Workflow Modules* 2015 and higher.

Although there is only one executable (SETUP.EXE) for this install, the system actually runs separate wizards for each prerequisite's component. After a component is installed, the system displays a message before installing the next one. Every time the message is answered with a "Yes", the system launches the next installation wizard.

Run the SETUP.EXE file to begin the following process.

Follow the instructions on the screen to navigate through the wizard.

1. The Prerequisites Wizard will appear if the setup determined that some of the Microsoft components are missing from the target machine (**Note:** Admin permissions are required to perform installations on prerequisite files).



2. Click **Next** to display a list of Microsoft components that are required before setup can continue.



3. Installation of selected prerequisites will begin.

🗟 Microix Workflow Modules Serve	r Setup		×
Prerequisites Install Please wait while the selected pr	erequisites are installed.		
Name SQL Server System CLR Types 2012 SQL Server 2012 Management Obje		Status Installed Installing	
(T) C:\Users\Admin\AppData	2 Management Objects 64Bit from \Roaming\Microix\Microix Workflov \SharedManagementObjects.msi Nain application after finishing the p	/ Modules	
	Back Next	Finish	Cancel

4. After the prerequisite files are completely installed, the "**Welcome**" wizard will appear to guide you through the installation of the Microix Server databases and Shared files.

岁 Microix Workflow Modules	Server Setup	×
	Welcome to the Microix Workflow Modules Server Setup Wizard	
The Setup Wizard will install Microix Workflow Modules Server on your computer. Click "Next" to continue or "Cancel" to exit the Setup Wizard.		
	< Back Next > Cancel	

5. Click **Next**. The system displays the License Agreement panel. Read through the **End User License Agreement** and click on **Accept** if you agree with the terms.

😸 Microix Workflow Modules Server Setup	×
End-User License Agreement Please read the following license agreement carefully	
END-USER LICENSE AGREEMENT THIS IS A LEGAL DOCUMENT – RETAIN FOR YOUR RECORDS	^
Important - Read Carefully. Notice to User:	
This End User License Agreement ("Software License Agreement") is a legal document between You (an individual or single entity) and Microix, Inc. ("Microix"). It is important that You read this document before using the Microix-provided software ("Software") and any accompanying	¥
• I accept the terms in the License Agreement	
\bigcirc I do not accept the terms in the License Agreement	
Microix, Inc. 	ncel

6. The Setup Wizard is ready to begin, Click Install to start server installation.

谢 Microix Workflow Modules Server Setup	×
Ready to Install	$\mathbf{\hat{x}}$
The Setup Wizard is ready to begin the Microix Workflow Modules Server installation	
Click "Install" to begin the installation. If you want to review or change any of your installation settings, dick "Back". Click "Cancel" to exit the wizard.	
Microix, Inc. < Back Install Cancel]

7. The installation process begins and a status bar displays the progress of the installation process.

🚽 Microix Work	flow Modules Server Setup	Х
Installing Mi	icroix Workflow Modules Server	
	it while the Setup Wizard installs Microix Workflow Modules Server.This several minutes.	
Status:	Copying new files	
Microix, Inc.		
	< Back Next > Canc	cel

8. At the end of the installation process, you will be prompted to enter the Server Configuration information:

- Select the Abila MIP FA SQL Server Name from the drop-down list. If it is not in the list, you can enter it manually.
- Enter your **SQL login information** (click on the check box "Use Windows Authentication" if you do not know the SQL login information).
- Select the Abila MIP FA Database name.
- Click on the Save button to finalize the connection between Microix and Abila MIP FA database.

Microix Server Configuration Wizard	
Welcome to Microix Server Configuration Wizard! Please provide some information about your current MIP Fund Accounting Server and the wizard will create an automatic link between the two databases. During this process, the wizard will attempt to download any available updates from our remote server and upgrade existing Microix Databases. If it cannot find an existing database, it will install a new one.	Step 1. Select your MIP Fund Accounting SQL Server Name MICROIX-LEVI/MICROIXSQL12 Image: Step 2. Enter your SQL login information. User Name Password Image: Use Windows Authentication Step 3. Select your current MIP Fund Accounting Database Image: MICROIXSQL 10 Status

9. Proceed to the 18 Microix Workflow 18 Workstation installation. 18

I For Existing Microix Users:

Microix Workflow Modules 2015 setup will automatically detect the existence of a previous version of a *Microix* database and will prompt you to upgrade.

Microix	, Inc. 🛛 🕅
?	Microix detected another version of the Workflow Modules already exist on your server. Would you like to perform an upgrade?

Click Yes to upgrade the existing copy of Microix and continue with new installation (*Note: This will not uninstall the existing copy of Workflow Module*).

3.3 Microix Share

After the *Microix* Server Component is successfully installed, a *Microix* Share directory will be created on the root of your C:/ or D:/ drive. It includes the setup files for the workstation installation and some additional folders that are used during upgrades.

The *Microix* Share Folder will be shared automatically during the server installation and is given default read/write permissions to the user "Everyone". There are times when the installation process fails to perform this task due to security issues. Follow the instructions below to manually share this folder and give the required permissions to access the folder.

The *Microix* Share folder can be relocated to another drive by simply copying the entire folder and pasting it to a new location. The directory should be made available to every workstation with read/write privileges.

How to Manually Share the "Microix" Folder:

- 1. Click Start>All Programs>Accessories, and then click Windows Explorer.
- **2.** Expand **My Computer**, and then click the drive or folder where the Microix Share folder is located.
- 3. Right-click on the folder, and then click Sharing and Security.
- 4. Click Share this folder and enter the shared name as "Microix Share".

How to Manually Configure Shared Permissions:

- 1. On the Sharing tab, click **Permissions** and then click **Add**.
- 2. Select the group account "Everyone" or "Domain Users" and grant read/write privileges.
- 3. Click **OK** to complete the process.

3.4 Workstation Installation

After installing the *Microix* Server, the data folders and workstation installation files are stored on the machine that is functioning as your Abila MIP Fund Accounting Server.

NOTE: You must access \\SERVERNAME\Microix Share using a UNC Path, not a mapped drive.

1. Browse to the *Microix* Share\Setup directory on the server and double-click setup. exe

2. The Prerequisites Wizard will appear if the setup determined that some of the Microsoft components are missing from the target machine (**Note**: Admin permissions are required to perform installations on prerequisite files).



3. Click **Next** to display a list of Microsoft components that are required before setup can continue.

20 Workflow Modules

server Setup Microix Workflow Modules Server Setup	×
Prerequisites These programs are needed for the application to run. Click on the check boo next to a prerequisite to select it for install or to skip it.	×
Name	Version
SQL Server System CLR Types 2012 64Bit	Required: any. Fou
SQL Server 2012 Management Objects 64Bit	Required: any. Fou
5	>
Press the Next button to download the prerequisites.	
Back Next Finish	h Cancel

4. Installation of selected prerequisites will begin.

Microix Workflow Modules Server Prerequisites Install Please wait while the selected pr	·		×
Name SQL Server System CLR Types 2012 SQL Server 2012 Management Obje	ects 64Bit	Status Installed Installing	
Installing SQL Server 201 C:\Users\Admin\AppData Server\prerequisites\SMC	\Roaming\Microix\Microix \SharedManagementObj	Workflow Modules jects.msi hing the prerequisites install	Cancel

5. After the prerequisite files are completely installed, the "**Welcome**" wizard will appear to guide you through the rest of the installation process.

a Microix Workflow Modules Client Setup			
	Welcome to the Microix Workflow Modules Client Setup Wizard The Setup Wizard will install Microix Workflow Modules Client on your computer. Click "Next" to continue or "Cancel" to exit the Setup Wizard.		
	< Back Next > Cancel		

6. Select the Installation Folder where you would like to install Microix.

a Microix Workflow Modules Client Setup	
Select Installation Folder This is the folder where Microix Workflow Modules Client will be installe	:d.
To install in this folder, dick "Next". To install to a different folder, ent "Browse".	er it below or click
Folder:	
C:\Program Files (x86)\Microix\	Browse
Advanced Installer	Cancel

7. Click Install to start the workstation installation.

and Microix Workflow Modules Client Setup	X
Ready to Install The Setup Wizard is ready to begin the Microix Workflow Modules Client installation	
Click "Install" to begin the installation. If you want to review or change any of your installation settings, click "Back". Click "Cancel" to exit the wizard.	
Advanced Installer	ncel

8. The installation process begins and a status bar displays the progress of the installation.



9. Click **Finish** to complete the installation.



Note: It is only necessary to reboot your computer at the end of the installation process if you are prompted to do so.

24 Workflow Modules

See <u>Register Product</u> गिओ for instructions on activating your purchased modules.

3.5 Uninstall Workflow Modules

Removing the Workstation Component

- 1. Go to Start>Settings>Control Panel.
- 2. Double-click Add/Remove Programs.
- 3. Select "Microix Workflow Modules Workstation" and then click **Remove**.

Removing the Server Component

- 1. Go to Start>Settings>Control Panel.
- 2. Double-click **Add/Remove Programs**.
- 3. Select "Microix Workflow Modules Server" and then click **Remove**.

5	Currently installed programs:
C <u>h</u> ange or Remove Programs	 Microix Worflow Modules Server Microix Workflow Modules Client
R	Microix Workflow Modules Server
Add <u>N</u> ew Programs	Microix Workflow Modules Web

3.6 Web Time Clock Installation

Copy the installation files onto the Server running Microsoft IIS Service. Double click on the setup.exe file to begin.

Follow the instructions on the screen to begin the installation process.

1. Enter the SQL Server Name, Abila MIP FA and Microix Database Name.

SQL Database			Ne	ş
Configure SQL Connection			Ų	~
SQL Server Name				
vpc				
MIP Database Name				
Govsa				
Microix Database Name				
MWFMData				

2. Accept the default location or use the browse button to select a new installation folder.

🙀 Microix Workflow Modules Web Setup	
Select Installation Folder This is the folder where Microix Workflow Modules Web will be installed.	
To install in this folder, click "Next". To install to a different folder, enter "Browse". <u>E</u> older:	it below or click
C:\Program Files\Microix\	Browse
Microix, Inc < Back Next >	Cancel

3. After the installation process finishes, a Virtual Directory called "Microix" will be added to your IIS Server and the necessary configurations will be completed automatically.



4. To open Microix Web Time Clock, browse to the following path: http://webservername/microix/default.aspx

Cloud Companion Application	MODULES	Login
Microix Web Tim EmailID Password ChargeID	Clock IN/OUT	
Ver: 2015.1.0 2002 - 2015 © Copyright by Microix, Inc.	Bmicroix	



4 Timesheet Module

4.1 Introduction

Microix Timesheets make tracking time and labor distribution easier for each member of your organization. The software provides managers visibility into the activities of their employees. *Microix* utilizes the same processing groups, earnings, leave and distribution codes as your current Abila MIP Fund Accounting Software. *Microix Timesheets* is simply a much more efficient way to handle your time and labor distributions for Abila MIP FA Payroll Module.

Highlights:

- Easy to navigate and use
- Simple and easy learning curve.
- Holiday, sick and vacation tracking.
- Assign employees to cost centers to limit what charges they can enter time.
- Enter 'bulk' time for groups of employees.
- Access to control group options limit user's access to screens and reporting.
- Multi-level approval process.



Menu Item	Description
My <u>Timesheets</u> 42	 This section displays a list of all timesheets for the logged in user. It also allows you to perform the following tasks: Create a new timesheet. Edit existing timesheets that are not yet submitted for approval. Retrieve any timesheet you have created in the system. Recall a timesheet that was submitted for approval but not yet approved.
<u>Request</u> 4ि Leave	This button enables employees to request present or future leave.
Employee Information	Employees can access their basic demographic and payroll data that is stored in Abila MIP FA Payroll Module.
Time Clock 48	Password authentication that allows a user to clock in/out.
In/Out Board	Displays employee's clock in/out entries for a specific date.
<u>Time Clock</u> <u>History</u> िऽ1	Query your time clock data by a date range.
<mark>Manual Punc</mark> [51]	<u>h</u> Allows employees to create a missed punch.

Menu Item	Description
Approve Leave	Allows an approver to approve or deny requested leave.
<u>Process</u> Multiple	This menu item allows the following tasks: 1. Edit and/or modify employee's time clock entries.
Timesheets	 Create preliminary timesheets for time clock employees. Create timesheets for multiple employees.
A	Approve timesheets or make any medifications before approving

 Approve
 Approve timesheets or make any modifications before approving.

 Timesheet
 57

<u>Reports</u> Displays a list of all reports available to the timesheet and time clock applications.

4.2 Timesheet Module Checklist

NOTE: All employees and their default timesheets must exist in Abila MIP FA Payroll Module before adding them to the Microix Workflow Modules system (try to avoid using special characters as part of the employee ID).

Check list of items for implementing the *Timesheet Module*

- \checkmark <u>Import employees</u> [145] from Abila MIP FA Payroll Module.
- ✓ Create <u>approval level</u> 172 titles activate all possible approval level that will be used later when you are setting up the approval process.
- ✓ Create and setup organization workflows 169
 - <u>Requesters</u> 153] all employees who will be creating timesheets or clocking in/out.
 - <u>Approvers</u> 1551 supervisors/managers who will be approving submitted timesheets.
 - <u>Restrict distribution codes 164</u>] limit employees to specific charge codes.
- \checkmark Define <u>document numbering</u> 174 schema is used to automatically assign each timesheet with a unique number.
- \checkmark Assign user <u>permissions</u> 147 for access to each ribbon menu item.
- ✓ Configure timesheet options.
- \checkmark Configure pay dates and pay periods.
- ✓ Configure shift codes and paid holidays.
- ✓ Configure overtime rule.
- ✓ Assign <u>employee default</u> (33) charge code, earning code, overtime code (if applicable) and shift code.
- ✓ Configure <u>application options</u> 169:
 - Enter the SMTP mail server information.
 - Change the default password for the admin account recommended before going live).

Check list items for ongoing maintenance

Adding new employees

- $\sqrt{\text{Import}}$ [145] employee information from Abila MIP FA Payroll Module.
- ✓ Assigning employees to a <u>workflow</u> 153.
- ✓ Assign permissions 147.
- ✓ Assign <u>default</u> [33] charge code, earning code, overtime code (if applicable) and shift code.

<u>Terminating an employee</u>

✓ <u>Remove user</u> 153 from workflow.

✓ <u>Inactivate user</u>1431.

Annual maintenance

- ✓ Configure new pay dates and pay periods.
- \checkmark Edit shift codes to update new year holidays.

4.3 Set Up

The purpose of this section is to setup default values and define other business rules for creating timesheets.



_	
<u>Functions</u>	Descriptions
Options	The purpose of this section is to setup default options for the <i>Timesheet Module</i> .
Pay Periods	Imports each processing group from Abila MIP FA Payroll Module. This process should be done annually.
Employee Default Values	Setup employee default values (i.e. Badge Id, Charge ID, Earning ID, Shift Code, Overtime, etc.)
Shift Codes	Shift Codes are used to define work schedule, rounding criteria and paid holidays for employees.
Overtime Rule	Setup overtime rules for eligible employees.
Charge ID Restrictions By	Add/remove charge codes for each employee.

Employee

Employee Maintain the default segments associated with an employee. **Default Segment** Values

Create Charge Create and view charge codes and the associated segments. **Codes**

4.3.1 Options

Select the **Timesheet Module Options** tab from the **Setup** menu. Check the box to the left of the option to control the functions that a user can perform. The following window displays a list of all the functions that open on the screen.

mesheet Options		📄 🔊 🖡
Automatically advance entry date in timesheet row format	Other Options	
Allow users to edit overtime on timesheet document		
Enforces pay period date range when employees enter their time	What module should be used to process employee expenses	*
Allows users to request negative leave (Use Global Lookup to build an exception)	Select the Level where all leave request should be submitted for approval	-
Prevents employee default charge/dist code from being modified on timesheet	Send Rejected Timesheet to Level	
Show all pay dates (including completed payrolls)	Week Begin (1-Mon, 2-Tue, 3-Wed, 4-Thr, 5-Fri, 6-Sat, 7-Sun) 7	
Substitute time clock hours with shift schedule hours ONLY if it exceed shift hours	Time Clock Required Note	-
Manually enter leave on the timesheet		
Limit timesheet hours being transfered to Abila	Microix Auto Generated Distribution Code	
Apply California Overtime Rule	xCode Trim Function (Only used if advised by Microix Support)	
Show all earning codes (Use Global Lookup to build an exclusion list)	E Default Leave Charge Code	
Show In Out entries on timesheet	Create an "x" distribution code for all employees	
980 Work Schedule	Do not create "x" distribution codes for timesheets that contains only the default charge code	
Append differential hours to regular hours (Example: shift differential or on-call hours)	Substitute all earning distribution codes on Abila regular timesheet with Microix X distribution code	
Timesheet Entry by Column Format	Exclude leave hrs from "x" distribution code calculation	
Only show Abila leave balance on the Home Page	Only transfer "x" distribution codes. Do not create any regular timesheets in SAGE	
Bypass paystub distribution rule for email address	Transfer leave as adjustment	

Timesheet Options

- Automatically advance entry date in timesheet row format.
- Allow users to edit overtime in timesheet document.
- Enforces pay period date range when employees enter their time.
- Allows users to request negative leave.
- Prevents employee default charge/distribution code from being modified on timesheet.
- Show all pay dates (including completed payrolls).
- Substitute time clock hours with shift schedule hours ONLY if it exceed shift hours.
- Manually enter leave on the timesheet.
- Limit timesheet hours being transferred to Abila MIP FA Payroll Module.
- Apply California overtime rules.
- Display all earning codes instead of what is available on the default timesheet.
- Show in/out entries on timesheet.
- Accommodates 980 work schedule.
- Append differential hours to regular hours (example- shift differential or on-call hours).
- Timesheet entry by column format.
- Only displays Abila leave balance on the **Home Page**.
- Bypass paystub distribution for email address.
- Prevent users from submitting timesheets that are less than scheduled hours.
- Timesheet entry incremental value (column format).

Other Options

- What module should be used to process employee expenses?
- Select the level where all leave requests should be submitted for approval.
- Send rejected timesheet to level.

- Week begin (day of the week).
- Time clock required note.

Microix Auto Generated Distribution Code

- **xCode Trim** function (only used if advised by Microix Support).
- Default leave charge code.
- Create an "x" distribution code for all employees including timesheets that have only one transition code.
- Do not create "x" distribution codes for timesheets that only include the default charge code.
- Substitute all earning distribution codes on Abila MIP FA regular timesheet with Microix "x" distribution code.
- Exclude leave hours from "x" distribution code calculation.
- Only transfer "x" distribution codes and leave. Do not create any regular timesheets in Abila MIP FA Payroll Module.
- Transfer leave as adjustment.

Timesheet User Defined Field

- Display user defined field column1.
- Display user defined field column2.

4.3.1.1 Earning Differential / Leave Earning Codes

This form displays the **Earning Differential** and **Leave Earning codes**.

an	ning Diffential			Lea	ve Earning Codes		
	DistCode	EarningCode			LeaveCode	EarningCode	
	Martha Adams	Wages		I	Sick10	Wages	-
Þ	Joyce Brothers	Wages	-				

Field/ Description Button Click on this button to **Save** the changes.

This button allows you to **Undo** the last edit.

Click on this button to **Add** a new line item.

X This button allows you to **Delete** the selected line item.

4.3.2 Employee Default Values

Use this form to configure default values for each employee.

~	Change Badg	eID in PunchO	lock histor	y									
D	rag a column heade	er here to group	by that colu	mn									
	User ID	Employee ID	Badge ID	Charge/Dist ID	Earning ID	Overtime ID	Exception A	Exception B	Expense ID	Shift	PunchTyp	e	MaxHours
9													
	Anna Belle Martin	Martin	1000	Martin	Wages	N/A	N/A		N/A	Main	Hours		8
Þ	Dana R. Jeffries	Jeffries	1001	Jeffries	Wages	OT	N/A		N/A	Main	Hours	-	8
	Ken Z. OToole	Otoole	1002	Otoole	Wages	от	N/A		N/A	Main	Time		8
	Scott Y. Michaels	Michaels	1003	Michaels	Wages	N/A	N/A		N/A	Main	Time		8

Items/ Descriptions

Buttons

User ID This column lists the names of all employees currently present in the system.

Employee The value in this field should match the **Employee ID** value in Abila MIP FA **ID** Payroll Module. Microix will automatically populate the **Employee ID** when employees are imported from Abila MIP FA Payroll Module.

Badge ID The **Badge ID** column is required for all employees who will be clocking in/out. The value is automatically assigned when you change the employee punch type to TIME.

The **Badge ID** numerical sequence is determined by the CLK value found in the <u>Global Options>Document Number</u> 174 tab.

- **Charge/** Enter a default distribution code for each employee. By default, Microix will use the employee's distribution code from Abila MIP FA Payroll Module default timesheet.
- **Earning ID**Enter a default earnings code for each employee. By default, Microix will use the employee's earning code from Abila MIP FA Payroll Module default timesheet.

Overtime If the employee receives overtime, enter the overtime code for the qualified

ID

employee. This field is not required for overtime exempt employees.

Overtime [38] rule should be created before assigning a value in this column.

Exception Reserved for California overtime rule.

Exception Reserved for California overtime rule. **B**

Expense This feature is obsolete. **ID**

Shift Code Shift Codes contain a set of rules that may apply to all or specific employees. Here is a list of rules associated with a shift code:

1. Identifies all the paid holidays.

2. Determines the clock in/out rounding rules.

- 3. Automatically deducts lunch for time clock users.
- 4. Identifies employees that work past midnight.
- 5. Hours per day schedule.

- 💡 -

The **Shift Code** must be configured before assigning a value in this column.

Punch Select a punch type for each employee (this is a required field):

- 1. Hours employees who will be completing their timesheets based on hours per day.
 - Time employees who will be utilizing a time clock hardware or the PC, to clock in/out.

Max Hours If you would like to restrict the total hours that are transferred to Abila MIP FA Payroll Module regular timesheets, then enter a value in this field. Enter the number 0 in this column if you do not want to restrict the total hours.

This column will have no effects unless you select the "Limit Timesheet..." option located in the Timesheet>Setup>Options menu.



Туре

Click on this button to **Save** the form.

Click on this button to **Undo** the changes made to the employee default values.

- Click on this button to **Synchronize** all Employee IDs between Abila MIP FA Payroll Module and Microix.
- This button helps to **Retrieve** default values from Abila MIP FA Payroll Module (i.e.Employee ID, Badge ID, Charge ID, Earning ID).



Click on this button to **Update** the leave request codes.

E

Click on this button to **Print** documents.

4.3.3 Pay Periods

The Abila MIP FA Payroll Module may consist of one or more processing groups, each containing all of the pay dates for a specific tax year. These processing groups must be imported into Microix because they are a crucial part of the Timesheet and Time Clock Modules. This process should be done annually and it requires that you setup the new year in the Abila MIP FA Processing Group, first, before importing into Microix.

Yea	ar 🔺			[
Pa	ay Date	Begin Date	End Date	
>	Year: 2013			
~	Year: 2015			
	01/15/2015	01/01/2015	01/15/2015	
	01/31/2015	01/16/2015	01/31/2015	
	02/15/2015	02/01/2015	02/15/2015	
1	02/28/2015	02/16/2015	02/28/2015	
1	03/15/2015	03/01/2015	03/15/2015	
1	03/31/2015	03/16/2015	03/31/2015	
1	04/15/2015	04/01/2015	04/15/2015	
1	04/30/2015	04/16/2015	04/30/2015	
1	05/15/2015	05/01/2015	05/15/2015	
1	05/31/2015	05/16/2015	05/31/2015	
1	06/15/2015			<hr/>
1	06/30/2015	Select a processing group.		
	rd 25 of 48 💥 🖣 💦	Enter the four-digit year and cl		

4.3.4 Shift Codes

At a minimum, there is at least one **Shift Code** that is required. Although, you can create as many as needed. **Shift Codes** help enforce special organization rules such as:

- Identifying a default work schedule.
- Time clock rounding rules.
- Time clock auto lunch deduction.
- Paid holiday schedule.

Shift and Rounding Information

Shift Info	ormatio	Time Clock Rounding	g Early or L	atest to F	Other Rules					
hift Code Ma	Main	N	0 ‡ Clock IN	0 ‡	Shift span pay perio	d 🗌 A	uto generate end of period cut-off time (12:00AM)			
escription Ma	Main	тис	0 1 Clock OUT	0 ‡	Use shift start and end time when calculating hours for the pay period Grace Period in Minutes 0 + Cloud Server Timezone Variance 0 +					
		Do not round secon	ids							
					Auto Sequence rem	aining time	e dock IN/OUT entries when modifying a missed punch			
unch Optior	n									
	al number of hou	nesheet Statement	oyee is deducted for lur	nch after	hours worked. Doubl	e <mark>s</mark> hift is i	dentified after hours worked.			
chedule Pa	al number of hou		yee is deducted for lur	Lunch IN	hours worked. Doubl	e shift is i	dentified after hours worked.			
chedule Pa	al number of hou Paid Holiday Tir	nesheet Statement					Shift Differential			
chedule Pa Week W 1 Mo	al number of hou Paid Holiday Tir Week Day	mesheet Statement	Lunch Out	Lunch IN	Time Out					
chedule Pa Week W 1 Ma 1 Tu	al number of hou Paid Holiday Tir Week Day Monday	Time IN 8:00:00 AM	Lunch Out 12:00:00 PM	Lunch IN 1:00:00 PM	Time Out 5:00:00 PM		Shift Differential			
Chedule Pa Week W ▶ 1 Ma 1 Tu 1 W	al number of hou Paid Holiday Tir Week Day Monday Tuesday	Time IN 8:00:00 AM 8:00:00 AM	Lunch Out 12:00:00 PM 12:00:00 PM	Lunch IN 1:00:00 PM 1:00:00 PM	Time Out 5:00:00 PM 5:00:00 PM		Shift Differential			
Chedule Pa Week W ▶ 1 Mc 1 Tu 1 W 1 Th 1 Th 1 Fri	al number of hou Paid Holiday Tii Week Day Monday Fuesday Wednesday Fhursday Friday	Time IN 8:00:00 AM 8:00:00 AM 8:00:00 AM	Lunch Out 12:00:00 PM 12:00:00 PM 12:00:00 PM	Lunch IN 1:00:00 PM 1:00:00 PM 1:00:00 PM	Time Out 5:00:00 PM 5:00:00 PM 5:00:00 PM		Shift Differential			
Chedule Pa Week W 1 Mo 1 Tu 1 W 1 Th	al number of hou Paid Holiday Tir Neek Day Monday Tuesday Nednesday Thursday Friday	Time IN 8:00:00 AM 8:00:00 AM 8:00:00 AM 8:00:00 AM 8:00:00 AM 8:00:00 AM	Lunch Out 12:00:00 PM 12:00:00 PM 12:00:00 PM 12:00:00 PM	Lunch IN 1:00:00 PM 1:00:00 PM 1:00:00 PM 1:00:00 PM 1:00:00 PM	Time Out 5:00:00 PM 5:00:00 PM 5:00:00 PM 5:00:00 PM		Shift Differential			

Field Name	Description
Shift Code	Enter a short alphanumeric code for the shift.
Description	Enter a brief description.
Time Rounding - In Punch	The criteria for rounding IN PUNCHES should be entered in minutes.
	If an employee chooses to round to the nearest 15 minutes, how will it determine the time? The system uses 15 minutes and divides will round down to 12:00. If the employee clocks in between 12:07 and 12:15 then the system will round up to 12:15.
Time Rounding - Out Punch	The criteria for rounding OUT PUNCHES is entered in minutes.
Time Rounding - Do not round seconds	Check this box if you do not want the seconds to be rounded.
not rouna seconas	Currently, the system will round to the nearest minute. For example, if someone clocks in at 12:00:31 (31 seconds), then the time will be recorded as 12:01. However, if the option Do not round seconds is activated, then the system will record the punch time as 12:00.
Time clock Options - Automatically Insert holiday onto timesheet	Check this box to automatically insert holiday hours on the employee's timesheet.
Time clock Options - Shift works past midnight	Check this box if the shift works past 12 o'clock midnight.

© 2002-2016 Microix Inc.
```
Field Name
```

Description

Schedule

This tab represents the work schedule for the shift. Use the **Insert** button to automatically build a default schedule, then modify the schedule to reflect the correct shift time.

Week	Week Day	Time IN	Lunch Out	Lunch IN	Time Out		Shift Differential
1	Monday	8:00:00 AM	12:00:00 PM	1:00:00 PM	5:00:00 PM	=	Code
1	Tuesday	8:00:00 AM	12:00:00 PM	1:00:00 PM	5:00:00 PM		
1	Wednesday	8:00:00 AM	12:00:00 PM	1:00:00 PM	5:00:00 PM		
1	Thursday	8:00:00 AM	12:00:00 PM	1:00:00 PM	5:00:00 PM		
1	Friday	8:00:00 AM	12:00:00 PM	1:00:00 PM	5:00:00 PM	-	
ecord 1 ek - 0	1 of 10 💥 < Time IN 8:	00 AM 🗘 Li	unch Out 12:00 PM	1 🔅 📭	Insert	×	Record 0 of 0 💠 💥 🧬 🕕

<u>Paid Holiday</u>

This tab defines the paid holiday schedule for the current shift. To insert a default set of holidays, select the holiday leave code from the drop-down list and then enter a four digit year and click on the **Add** \clubsuit button. Use the **Delete** to remove any holidays your organization does not pay and the **Add** \clubsuit button to insert new lines for additional paid holidays.

 \forall Use the **Copy** \blacksquare button to duplicate holidays from another shift to help save time and data entry.

Please setup a leave code in Abila MIP FA Payroll Module and name it "Holiday". DO NOT assign this leave code to anyone's default or regular timesheet. Additionally, it should not have any calculations for accruing hours. Microix uses this code internally and will not utilize it when creating a regular timesheet in Abila MIP FA Payroll Module.

Date	Work Day	Holiday	Hours	Not Eligible	1
01/01/2015	Thursday	New Year's Day	8.00		
01/21/2015	Wednesday	Martin Luther King's Birthday	8.00		
03/18/2015	Wednesday	Washington's Birthday	8.00		
05/27/2015	Wednesday	Memorial Day	8.00		
07/04/2 Add leav	ve code "Holiday"	Independence Day	8.00		
	nd assign it here.	Labor Day	8.00		
				[F==1]	Þ

Field Name	Description
4	To insert a default set of holidays, select the holiday leave code from the drop down list and then enter a four digit year and click on the Add button.
×	To remove any holidays your organization does not pay.
	To duplicate holidays from another shift to help save time and data entry.

4.3.5 Overtime Rule

This form is used to setup overtime rules for eligible employees.

vertime Rule	Other Options
vertime Code OT 🔹	This section is ONLY required if you are calculating overtime based on a weighted average. Additionally, an earning cod should be created in MIP with a calculation method of "Fixed Hourly Amount"
ouble Time Code	WeightAverage RateMultiplier 0 2
alculation Week 🔻 Hours 40 ‡	Comp Time Option
eek Begin On Sun 💌 Week End On Sat 💌	When calculating overtime, transfer as leave accrued. Leave Code (optional)
Enforce 980 schedule rule when calculating overtime	
clude the following Earning codes for overtime calculation	Include the following leave codes for overtime calculation
] Do not include employee default earning code hours	Leave Code
Do not include employee default earning code hours Earning Code	
Do not include employee default earning code hours Earning Code OT	Leave Code
Do not include employee default earning code hours Earning Code OT	Leave Code
Do not include employee default earning code hours Earning Code OT	Leave Code
Do not include employee default earning code hours Earning Code OT	Leave Code
Do not include employee default earning code hours Earning Code OT	Leave Code
ОТ	Leave Code

Field Name	Description
Overtime Code	Displays a list of Abila MIP FA Payroll Module overtime codes. For every different overtime rule, you will have to create a unique overtime earning code in Abila MIP FA Payroll Module.
Double Time Code	eSee California Overtime Rule setup.
Calculation	Select an overtime Calculation method (i.e. California, Day, Pay Period, Week, Weekend)
Hours	Enter the number of Hours that correspond to the value selected in the

Hours Enter the number of **Hours** that correspond to the value selected in the **Calculation** method field.

Field Name	Description
Week Begin On	If this field is active, enter the day your payroll week begins.
Week End On	If this field is active, enter the day your payroll week ends.
	Use the Add to include any leave code hours as part of the workweek hours when considering if the employee worked more than the X number of hours.
	ho Do not include any leave hours unless your policy states otherwise.
Other Options	 Weighted Average (Note: currently under development). Check the box "When calculating overtime, transfer it as leave accrued" to convert overtime hours into accrued leave hours.
Comp Time Options	This option enables you to convert the overtime hours to accrued leave hours.
	This button enables you to add a new overtime rule.
	Click on this button to delete the selected overtime rule.
	This button allows you to save changes to the rule.
	Click on this button to undo the last edit.

4.3.6 Charge ID Restrictions By Employee

While creating a Timesheet, employees have access to all **Charge Codes** that are available in Abila MIP FA Payroll Module. However, you may have the need to restrict each employee to specific charge codes and this form will help provide that function. If you have configured restrictions at the workflow level, employee restrictions will take precedent over the workflow restriction level.

P The **Charge Code** is an alias for Abila MIP FA Payroll Module distribution code.

	Charge Code	Description			Employee Name
9				9	
	Adams	Martha Adams		•	Anna Belle Martin
	ALLOCATION	Allocation Distributio	1		Dana R. Jeffries
	Assets	Assets			Ken Z. OToole
	Brothers	Joyce Brothers	=		Scott Y. Michaels
	Day Care	Day Care Direct			
	Direct	Direct Distribution			
	Evening	Evening payroll distri			
	Food Service	Food Service Direct			
	General	General Distribution			
	Health	Health Dist			
	INV	Inventory Distributio			
	Jeffries	Jeffries payroll distri			
	Martin	Anna Belle Martin			
	MEDinner	ME Dinner Basket			
	Michaels	Scott Michaels			
	Mileage	Mileage	Ŧ		

<u>Actions/</u> Buttons	Descriptions
To restrict	Select the User ID from the left and the charge IDs listed from right, then
charge IDs	click on the Add 📑 button.
To remove	Select the User ID from left and the charge IDs listed from right, then
restricted charge IDs	click on the Remove 🕏 button.

4.3.7 Employee Default Segment Values

This form is used to specify default segment values for each employee.

efault Segmer	
eroarebeginer	it Values Query
egment	Dept 🖉
egment Value	
Select Emplo	yees
Select Al	
Anna Be	
Dana R.	
	Michaels
	Add Remove
	Add Remove Close
	Add Remove Close
ons dd a	Descriptions Select the segment, then the value. Next, select the User ID and cli
ons dd a ult	Descriptions
ons/ cons dd a fult ment emove a	Descriptions Select the segment, then the value. Next, select the User ID and clie the Add button.

4.3.8 Create Charge Code

0

segment

This form allows the users to create **Charge Codes**. Use the drop-down lists for each segment to build the combination of charge codes you would like to generate.

Se	lect Segment Values				1
	Fund	Grant	Progr	Dept	117
Þ	01	108, 201, 208	108, 201, 208	201, 301, 401	1
	s Dist Code ID	s Description	s Status	а Арр Туре	s Currency IDf
Ŷ					
•	01-108-108-201-1	Allocated Healt\Allocated Healt\Program Svs	A	A	ANY
	01-201-108-201-1	Housing \Allocated Healt \Program Svs	A	A	ANY
		Allocated Housi\Allocated Healt\Program Svs	A	A	ANY
4.	01-7-001-201-201-201-201-201-201-201-201-201	Alocated Han was Some Proof Bys	and a second and	(parter & good of a mark and	and house



Click on this button to **View** the details of the Charge Code selected.



Click on this button to **Create** a record of the selected Charge Code.

Click on this button to **Delete** the selected Charge Code.

4.4 My Timesheets

The **My Timesheets** form displays a list of all timesheets created by the logged in user. See below for other functions that are available on this form.

🖁 To filter, sort and group the data see <u>Sorting/Grouping/Filtering Data Grids</u> वि.

Doc	Туре	Document No	Date	Document Description	Workflow ID	Pay Date	
~	Document Statu	s: 0.5 - Preliminary Tir	nesheet Documents (Ar	nna Belle Martin)			
	TSH	13-TS-1024	8/13/2015	TimeSheet for paydate	103	9/15/2015	
1 1			1				
~	Document Statu	s: 1 - Supervisor Docu	ment <mark>s (</mark> Anna Be <mark>ll</mark> e Mart	in)			
	TSH	13-TS-1020	8/13/2015	TimeSheet for paydate	103	8/31/2015	
	TSH	13-TS-1012	8/27/2013	TimeSheet for paydate	103	8/31/2013	
			2				
~	Document Statu	s: 14 - Documents Tra	nsferred to Abila				
	TSH	13-TS-1016	8/13/2015	TimeSheet for paydate	103	8/15/2015	
			1				

Buttons Description Image: Second structure Print a copy of the My Timesheet Ist.

4.4.1 Create New Timesheet

To create a new timesheet, click on the **New** 📑 button and select a pay date. Use the

Edit button to append time or whenever you need to make modifications. While preparing a timesheet, some of the values are defaulted based on the initial setup process. If you find any discrepancies please notify your payroll administrator.

Quick Start - How to complete your timesheet:

- 1. Click on the **Add** the button to create a new row for entering your time by day. Repeat this step for additional lines when charging your time to multiple charge codes (i.e. department/programs/funds/grants/projects/etc).
- 2. Click on the **Insert Leave** button to insert any approved or paid holiday hours.
- 3. Click on the **Overtime Calculation** button to calculate any overtime hours (only if applicable).
- 4. Click on the **Submit** 1 button to send your timesheet for approval.

Timesheet Information

Timesheet No	13-TS	1024		72	
Date	08/13/2015		Description	TimeSheet for paydate 9/1	5/2015 Comment
Employee Name	Anna Belle Mar	tin	Workflow ID	103	
Processing Group	Admin		Pay Date	09/15/2015	

<u>Fields/</u> Buttons	<u>Description</u>
Timesheet No.	Assigned automatically by the system.
Date	The current date will be populated in this field.
Description	The system will automatically assign a document Description based on the selected pay date (read-only field). The pay date is appended to the words TIMESHEET FOR PAYDATE then it becomes your document Description .
Employee Name	Your name will be defaulted in this field (read-only field).
Workflow ID	Your Workflow ID will be defaulted in this field (read-only field).
Processing	This field represents the processing aroup for which the employee is

Group associated. The information is retrieved from Abila MIP FA Payroll Module

Workflow Modules 44

<u>Fields/</u> <u>Buttons</u>	<u>Description</u>
	employee database (read-only field).
Pay Date	This date is associated with your processing group pay schedule and it also dictates the period for which the timesheet belongs.
Comments	Enter any comments in this field. The Comments can be viewed by the approvers and are also printed on the timesheet form.
	Click on this button to Delete your timesheet.
	Click on this button to Save your timesheet.
	Click on this button to Undo the last changes.
	Click on this button to Submit your timesheet for approval.
in a Tar	Click on this button to Send email correspondence. See <u>Shared</u> <u>Activities>Email</u> 210 for detailed instructions on how to send email messages.
Ø	Click on this button to Attach any electronic documents to your timesheet. See <u>Shared Activities>Attachments</u> [211] for detailed instructions on how to include attachments.
T	Click on this button to Print a copy of your timesheet.

<u> Timesheet Detail</u>

Pay Type	Pay Code	Charge Code	Total	Sunday 08/16/15	Monday 08/17/15	Tuesday 08/18/15	Wednesday 08/19/15	Thursday 08/20/15	Friday 08/21/15
Earnings	Wages	Martin	88		8	8	8	1	8

Column	s Description
Рау Туре	The system will automatically default EARNINGS into this column, do not change the default value unless additional instructions are provided by the payroll administrator.
Pay Code	Your default Pay Code will automatically populate in this column. Please do not change the default value unless additional instructions are provided by the Payroll Administrator.
	The list of Pay Codes are limited based on the employee's default

© 2002-2016 Microix Inc.



4.5 Request Leave

Use the **Leave Request** form to perform the following tasks:

- ✓ Request planned or unexpected leave for past, present or future dates.
- ✓ Modify/Adjust requested leave.
- ✓ Delete leaves that were not taken.

 By default, the system will not allow users to manually enter leave on their timesheet. They must first request it by utilizing the ribbon menu option **Leave Request**. However, to change this default behavior, you can select the option **Manually Enter Leave** in the Timesheet>Setup>Options.

By default, requested leave is not required to be approved before they are added to the employee's timesheet. However, after submitting for approval, the approver will not be able to approve any timesheets without approving the leave requests first. Use the global settings, located in the Timesheet>Setup>Options, to indicate the approval level where all leave requests will be submitted for approval.

lec	quest Infor	rmation							Notes (Plea	se do not	enter any medic	al information.)
ron	L		Leave Co Hours Pe		0 ‡		FMLA E Shift Hrs		Family Vacat	ion		-
ea	ive History	1										
-	LeaveDate	WeekDay	Leave	Requested	Taken	Differ	Status	Notes		Туре	ApprovedDate	DateSubmitted
9	9/10/2015	Thursday	Vac	8.0000	8.0000	0.0000	A	Vacation			8/13/2015 4	8/13/2015 4:53:07
-P												
	8/19/2013	Monday	EPTO	5.0000	5.0000	0.0000	A	N/A			8/27/2013 12	8/27/2013 12:47:1
	8/19/2013	Monday	EPIO	5.0000	5.0000	0.0000	A	N/A			8/27/2013 12	8/27/2013 12:47:1
	8/19/2013	Monday	PIO	13			A	N/A			8/27/2013 12	8/27/2013 12:47:1

Field/ Button	Description
From Date	Enter the start date for your leave request.

To Date Enter the end date for your leave request.

Leave Code Select a **Leave Code** from the drop-down list. The list of leave codes are retrieved from the user's Default Timesheet in Abila MIP FA.

Hours	Enter the number of Hours per day you are requesting. You can also use the time Converter icon 🗟 to convert minutes to decimal if needed.
Use Shift	Select this option to insert the default hours specified in the shift code.
Hours Leave Balance	This field retrieves the available balance from the selected leave code. The information is retrieved from the Abila MIP FA Payroll Module.
Notes	Enter a brief comment concerning the requested leave.
Leave	A list of all requested leave along with their approval status.
History	Use this button to Submit the leave request to a designated approver. The approver will receive an email notification of the requested leave.
	This button is used to Modify/Adjust any leave before or after approval. However, if the leave was transferred to a timesheet, the user will be prevented from making any changes.
×	Use this button to Delete a requested or approved leave. However, if the leave was transferred to a timesheet, the user will be prevented from deleting it.
T	Click on this button to Print a copy of the leave requested.
-	P To filter, sort, and group the data please see Sorting/Grouping/Filtering

To filter, sort, and group the data please see <u>Sorting/Grouping/Filtering</u> Data Grids 213

4.6 Employee Information

The **Employee Information** tab provides easy access for employees to view their payroll information such as demographic information, leave balance, and pay stub information.

ame	e and Addre	55											
Employ	yee ID	Martin	S	tatus	A								
First N	lame	Anna Belle	N	1iddle Initial	-			Martin				Ger	Email
Addres	55	8765 Mercury Driv	/e									-	
City	55	Austin	State	TX			Zip Code		78729			_	
	Number			mail			Zip Code	1	10/23				
none	Number	(512)454-6789 Ex	it E	mail									
Demo	ographic Inf	formation					Impo	rtant Da	ites		Emergence	y Contac	t
Citizen	nship	US					Hire Da	ate	12/3	0/2009 -	Name	Γ	
Ethnici		W				_	Birth D			/1970 -	Phone No.	() - Ext
Gende		F	Marital Statu	Is Married		_	Action		_	8/1899 -	Relationship	Ē	
Jenae	-1			- arried			Action	Date	12/2	0/1055	Email		
Payro	oll Informat	ion											
Job Tit	tle	Administrator		Job Class		301				Pay Type	S		
roces	ssing Grp	Admin		Salary				\$8,2	250.00 🗘	Hourly Rate			90.87 🗘
EmpTy	pe	RFT		Exemptions					0 ‡	Direct Deposit			
Direct	Deposit Email			W-2 Email									
ployee	e Info Pay	i formation Stub											
ployee Filter C		Stub											
ployee Filter C 06/30	e Info Pay	Stub					Leave Info	rmation					
ployee Filter C 06/30 Pay St	e Info Pay Option 0/2015	Stub	Period Amount	YTD Total			Leave Info		Period Acc.	Period Taken	YTD Accrued	YTD Take	en Balance
ployee Filter C 06/30 Pay St Ty	e Info Pay : Option 0/2015 tub Informatio	Stub P	1	YTD Total					eriod Acc.	Period Taken	YTD Accrued	YTD Take	en Balance
ployee Filter C 06/30 Pay St Ty	e Info Pay : Option 0/2015 tub Informatio	Stub on Hours/Units 1. Earnings	Period Amount						Period Acc.	Period Taken	YTD Accrued	YTD Take	en Balance
ployee Filter C 06/30 Pay St Ty	e Info Pay : Option 0/2015 tub Informatic /pe / Category: Wages	Stub On Hours/Units I. Earnings 86.6667	Period Amount	\$99,000.0	2				eriod Acc.	Period Taken	YTD Accrued	YTD Tak	en Balance
ployee Filter C 06/30 Pay St Ty	e Info Pay 1 Option D/2015 tub Informatic ype Category: Wages Category:	Stub Hours/Units 1. Earnings 86.6667 2. Taxes	Period Amount \$8,250.0 \$8,250.0	0 \$99,000.00 \$99,000.00	0				Period Acc.	Period Taken	YTD Accrued	YTD Take	en Balance
ployee Filter C 06/30 Pay St Ty	e Info Pay 1 Option D/2015 tub Informatic ype Category: Wages Category: FIT	Stub Hours/Units 1. Earnings 86.6667 2. Taxes 0	Period Amount \$8,250.0 \$8,250.0 \$1,928.1	0 \$99,000.00 0 \$99,000.00 15 \$23,137.80					eriod Acc.	Period Taken	YTD Accrued	YTD Take	en Balance
ployee Filter C 06/30 Pay St Ty	e Info Pay 1 Option D/2015 tub Informatic ype Category: Wages FIT FUTA	Stub Hours/Units 1. Earnings 36.6667 2. Taxes 0 0	Period Amount \$8,250.0 \$8,250.0 \$1,928.1 \$0.0	0 \$99,000.0 0 \$99,000.00 15 \$23,137.8 10 \$0.0					'eriod Acc.	Period Taken	YTD Accrued	YTD Taki	en Balance
ployee Filter C 06/30 Pay St Ty	e Info Pay : Option D/2015 tub Informatic ype Category: Wages FIT FUTA MC	Stub Hours/Units Hours/Units 1. Earnings 36.6667 2. Taxes 0 0 0 0 0	Period Amount \$8,250.0 \$3,250.0 \$1,928.1 \$0.0 \$119.6	0 \$99,000.00 0 \$99,000.00 .5 \$23,137.8 0 \$0.0 3 \$1,435.5					'eriod Acc.	Period Taken	YTD Accrued	YTD Takı	en Balance
ployee Filter C 06/30 Pay St Ty	e Info Pay : Option D/2015 tub Informatic ype Category: Wages FIT FUTA MC SS	Stub Hours/Units 1. Earnings 2. Taxes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Period Amount \$8,250.0 \$3,250.0 \$1,928.1 \$0.0 \$119.6 \$346.5	0 \$99,000.00 0 \$99,000.00 5 \$23,137.80 10 \$0.00 13 \$1,435.5 10 \$4,158.00					'eriod Acc.	Period Taken	YTD Accrued	YTD Tak	en Balance
ployee Filter C 06/30 Pay St Ty	e Info Pay : Option D/2015 tub Informatic ype Category: Wages FIT FUTA MC	Stub Hours/Units Hours/Units 1. Earnings 36.6667 2. Taxes 0 0 0 0 0	Period Amount \$8,250.0 \$1,928.1 \$0.0 \$119.6 \$346.5 \$0.0	0 \$99,000.00 0 \$99,000.00 5 \$23,137.80 10 \$0.00 13 \$1,435.51 10 \$4,158.00 10 \$0.00 10 \$0.					'eriod Acc.	Period Taken	YTD Accrued	YTD Tak	en Balance
ployee Filter C 06/30 Pay St Ty	e Info Pay : Option 0/2015 tub Informatio ype Category: FIT FUTA MC SS SUTA	Stub Stub Hours/Units Hours/Units Hours/Units St. Earnings St. 86.6667 CONTRACTOR ON O	Period Amount \$8,250.0 \$3,250.0 \$1,928.1 \$0.0 \$119.6 \$346.5	0 \$99,000.00 0 \$99,000.00 5 \$23,137.80 10 \$0.00 13 \$1,435.51 10 \$4,158.00 10 \$0.00 10 \$0.					'eriod Acc.	Period Taken	YTD Accrued	YTD Tak	en Balance
ployee Filter C 06/30 Pay St Ty	e Info Pay : Option 0/2015 tub Informatio ype Category: FIT FUTA MC SS SUTA Category:	Stub Stub Hours/Units Hours/Units Hours/Units 1. Earnings 86.6667 2. Taxes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Period Amount \$8,250.0 \$8,250.0 \$1,928.1 \$0.0 \$119.6 \$346.5 \$0.0 \$2,394.2	0 \$99,000.00 5 \$23,137.80 10 \$0.00 13 \$1,435.55 10 \$4,158.00 10 \$0.00 8 \$28,731.36	0 0 0 0 5 5 0 0 0				Period Acc.	Period Taken	YTD Accrued	YTD Tak	en Balance
ployee Filter C 06/30 Pay St Ty	e Info Pay : Option 0/2015 tub Informatio ype Category: FIT FUTA MC SS SUTA	Stub Stub Hours/Units Hours/Units St. Earnings St. 86,6667 CONTRACTOR ON O	Period Amount \$8,250.0 \$8,250.0 \$1,928.1 \$0.0 \$119.6 \$346.5 \$0.0 \$2,394.2 \$178.0	0 \$99,000.0 0 \$99,000.00 5 \$23,137.80 10 \$0.00 33 \$1,435.50 10 \$4,158.00 10 \$20,00 8 \$28,731.36 90 \$2,136.00					Period Acc.	Period Taken	YTD Accrued	YTD Tak	en Balance
Ployee Filter C 06/30 Pay St Ty + *	e Info Pay : Option D/2015 tub Informatio ype Category: FIT FUTA MC SS SUTA VCategory: Health	Stub Stub Hours/Units Hours/Units Hours/Units 1. Earnings 86.6667 2. Taxes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Period Amount \$8,250.0 \$8,250.0 \$1,928.1 \$0.0 \$119.6 \$346.5 \$0.0 \$2,394.2	0 \$99,000.0 0 \$99,000.00 5 \$23,137.80 10 \$0.00 33 \$1,435.50 10 \$4,158.00 10 \$20,00 8 \$28,731.36 90 \$2,136.00					Period Acc.	Period Taken	YTD Accrued	YTD Tak	en Balance

P The information displayed on both tabs are read-only.

4.7 Time Clock

Microix PC Time Clock enables employees to use a PC to record and report hours worked. It completely replaces manual time card machines or your hand written time and attendance records. Employees may clock in/out from their own workstations or from a centrally located computer station. The transactions are sent to the *Microix* database instantly and can be viewed by the employee and their supervisor.

Supervisors can modify or create manual entries for each employee by navigating to the ribbon menu item PREPARE AND PROCESS MULTIPLE TIMESHEETS.

Microix utilizes the current time on the SQL Server to record the employees clocking in/out entries. We recommend that you synchronize all of your workstations with the SQL server time. It helps reduce the questions regarding why the time on a workstation is different from the time being recorded.

roix PC Time Cl	ock	2
	10:15:14 AM	
otal Pay Perio	od Hours accumulated -	
Anna Belle Ma	rtin	
USER ACCOUNT	Anna Belle Martin]
Password	*****	
Charge ID	Day Care	1
	Clock IN	

Items Description

Total The system will display the total number of **Hours** you have accumulated for the **Hours** current pay period.

User Enter the *Microix* user to clock in/out.

Accoun

t

Passw Enter your *Microix* login **Password**.

ord

- Charge Charge ID is defined by your Payroll Administrator and it may represent each
- **ID** program, job, project, or department that you can charge your time. The system will set this field to your default charge code or you can change it by using the

Magnifying button \checkmark to select a different one. If the list does not contain the correct values, you may notify your Payroll Administrator. You will be able to change this value when clocking in but it will be disabled when clocking out.

Clock After entering your password and charge ID, use this button to **Clock In/Out**. **In/Out**

4.8 In/Out Board

The **In/Out Board** enables you to see the current clock in/out status for each employee within the organization. It also shows an absent report for the ones who did not record any punches for the specified date.

In/Out Board is only available when deploying our PC/Web Time Clock or any of our compatible time clock hardware.

Any of our time clock hardware that requires polling will not update the in/out board in real time. The **In/Out Board** will be updated after polling is completed. Polling clocks are configured with using Windows Task Scheduler.

	r Options					
ate	8/26/2015					
1/01	JT Board Absent Sta	atus				
W	orkflow 🔺					
L	ast Name	First Name	PunchTime	Location	Status	
9						
•	V Workflow: 103					
	Jeffries	Dana R.	5:00:00 PM	MICROIX-LEVI	OUT	
	Martin	Anna Belle	5:00:00 PM	MICROIX-LEVI	OUT	
	Michaels	Scott Y.	5:00:00 PM	MICROIX-LEVI	OUT	
	OToole	Ken Z.	5:00:00 PM	MICROIX-LEVI	OUT	

8/26/2015	0		
UT Board Absent	Status		
	L.		
atus 🔺			
Workflow ID	Last Name	First Name	Requested Leave
 Status: Prese 	nt		
103	Martin	Anna Belle	No
103	Jeffries	Dana R.	No
103	OToole	Ken Z.	No
103	Michaels	Scott Y.	No
			117

4.9 Manual Punch

Employees who missed clocking in/out may utilize this form to create manual time clock entries. After creating manual entries, the system will automatically send an email notification to their immediate supervisor.

Supervisors are not required to approve or deny manual time clock entries. It will be recorded automatically in the employee's record.

Date	9/25/2015	-		Badge ID	Charge Code	Punch Type	Punch By	Punch Date	Punch Time	Notes
Punch Type	IN	-	+	1000	Martin	*	USR	20150925	080000	Manual Pun
Punch Time	8:00:00 AM	* *	Γ							
Charge ID	Martin	+								
Notes										
Manual Pun	ch in for Martin									

Items/ Description

Date Enter the **Date** of the missed punch.

Clock Enter the actual time you arrived or left. In/Out Time Charge Select a Charge ID or accept the default. ID

ReasonEnter a brief explanation justifying why you are creating a **Manual Punch**.

4.10 Time Clock History

Use the **Time Clock History** form to retrieve time clock entries for a given period. Employees are restricted to only viewing their information. However, supervisors can access each employee's time clock entries by navigating to the **Report** menu.

Fre	m E	8/16/2015		To 8/31/	2015		🖲 🔎 Find 🧯	Print		
ne	Clo	ck Entries								
w	eek	•								
			CHDATE -							
PUNCH		HTYPE	PUNCHTIME	SOURCE	HOURS	CHARGEID	NOTES	SYSTIME	CPU	LUNCH RULE
	~ N	/eek: 34								
		PUNCHD	ATE: Monday, Augu	ıst 17, 2015						
		IN	8:00 AM	ADM	4	Martin	Manual entry by:	8/13/2015 4	MICROIX-LEVI	0
1		OUT	12:00 PM	ADM	0		Manual entry by:	8/13/2015 4	MICROIX-LEVI	0
1		IN	1:00 PM	ADM	4	Martin	Manual entry by:	8/13/2015 4	MICROIX-LEVI	0
1		OUT	5:00 PM	ADM	0		Manual entry by:	8/13/2015 4	MICROIX-LEVI	0
1					8					
1			ATE: Tuesday, Aug	ust 18, 2015						
1		IN	8:00 AM	ADM	4	Martin	Manual entry by:	8/13/2015 4	MICROIX-LEVI	0
		OUT	12:00 PM	ADM	0		Manual entry by:	8/13/2015 4	MICROIX-LEVI	0
1		IN	1:00 PM	ADM	4	Martin	Manual entry by:	8/13/2015 4	MICROIX-LEVI	0
1		OUT	5:00 PM	ADM	0		Manual entry by:	8/13/2015 4	MICROIX-LEVI	0
					8			1		
	,	PUNCHD	ATE: Wednesday, A	August 19, 20	15					
		IN	8:00 AM	ADM		Martin	Manual entry by:	0/12/201E 4	MICDOTY LEVI	0

4.11 Approve Leave

After approvers receive email notifications for leave request, they can use this form to approve or deny the leave request.

.eq	uested Leave	WorkHow Le	eave Calendar								
ι	Jser Name 🔺	•									
	LeaveCode	LeaveDate	Weekday	Requested	Comments	DateSubmit	Туре	Microix	InProcess	MIP	Balance
q											
Þ	🔻 User Nai	me: Dana R. J	leffries (SUM=	24)							
	Sick8	9/1/2015	Tuesday	8	sick	9/1/2015 1		24	24	240	192
	Sick8	9/2/2015	Wednesday	8	sick	9/1/2015 1		24	24	240	192
	Sick8	9/3/2015	Thursday	8	sick	9/1/2015 1		24	24	240	192
				24				An An	prove X	Deny	a) Email

Butto D n	Description			

Click on this button to Approve the selected leave.

You can select multiple items by holding down the SHIFT key and clicking on them with the mouse or by holding down the SHIFT key and pressing an arrow key to extend the selection from the previously selected item to the current item. You can also select items by dragging with the mouse. Holding down the CTRL key and clicking an item will either select/deselect that item.



Click the **Deny** button to deny leave request.

Click the **Send** button to send email correspondence to the employee if you have questions about the leave request.

Workflow Leave Calendar - before approving leave, supervisors can use this tab to verify whether other employees have not been pre-approved for similar days off.

Calendar color definition:

- Red Denied Leave
- Green Approved Leave
- White Requested Leave



- 2. Month View
- 3. Timeline View

	August 🕨 🖣 2	015 Vorkflow ALL	<i>P</i> §	Approved Requested	Denied 🍰 Export	t To Outlook
	Monday	Tuesday	Wednesday	Thursday	Friday	Sat/Sun
	August 24	25	26	27	28	29
ŀ	31	September 1	2	3	4	
		8Hrs of Sick8 Denied (Dana R. Jeffries)	8Hrs of Sick8 Requested (Dana R. Jeffries)	8Hrs of Sick8 Requested (Dana R. Jeffries)		
I	7	8	9	10	11	
		8Hrs of Sick8 Approved (Dana R. Jeffries)	8Hrs of Sick8 Approved (Dana R. Jeffries)	8Hrs of Vac Approved (Anna Belle Martin)		
J	14	15	16	17	18	
						20

4.12 **Process Multiple Timesheets**

Time clock entries captured by a PC or time clock hardware device are uploaded to the *Microix* database and are available immediately for viewing through this form or via reports. However, the time clock entries that were recorded by a time clock hardware that utilizes a polling schedule will not be available for immediate viewing until polling is completed.

① *Microix* utilizes workflows to group several employees together so that the employees can be processed and reported together. Additionally, each workflow contains the groups immediate supervisor and approval process.

All approvers within the workflow will also have access to this form. If you prefer not to grant them all access, then remove their security permissions via the Ribbon Menu **Maintenance>Security**.

Filter Options

 Workflow and 	nd Payroll Filter				
WorkFlow	103	Processing Group	Admin	PayDate	09/15/2015

<u>Fields</u>	Description
Workflow	Select the appropriate Workflow and proceed to selecting a Processing Group . If you do not see your Workflow in the lookup list box then contact someone in Payroll and request that your name be added to the Workflow approval process.
Processing Group	Select an Abila MIP FA Processing Group . Processing Groups are used in Abila MIP FA Payroll Module to group several employees together so that the employees can be processed and reported together. They also dictate the pay cycle for each employee such as W (Weekly), B (Biweekly), S (Semimonthly), or M (Monthly).
Pay Date	Select a Pay Date.
	The time clock tab will only show time clock entries for the select Pay Date period and the Timesheet tab will only show in-process timesheets for the selected Pay Date .
Employee Name	The system will automatically filter the list of employees based on the Workflow and Processing Group selected.

<u>Managing Employee's Time Clock Entries</u>

Supervisors/Timekeepers will use this section to perform the following tasks:

- \checkmark Create missed punches for employees.
- ✓ Modify existing punch clock entries.
- \checkmark Generate preliminary timesheets for each of their employees and submit to payroll or to other approvers within the workflow.

or	kFlow 103	Pro	Admin	PayE	late 0	9/15/2015					
me	sheets Summary Tim	e Clock Entries									
T	Document No	PayDate	Employee	Earnings	Leave	Tot	tal Earnings	Overtime	Total Hours	Mileage	Amount
•											
•	V Workflow ID: 103										
	13-TS-1024	9/15/2015	Anna Belle Martin		0	8	8	0	8	0	\$0.0
	13-TS-1025	9/15/2015	Dana R. Jeffries		0	16	16	0	16	0	\$0.0
	⊞ 13-TS-1027	9/15/2015	Scott Y. Michaels		0	24	24	0	24	0	\$0.0
				3	0	48	48	0	48	0	\$0.00

1	won	KIIO	w and	Payroll Filter						
Vor	rkFlov	w	1	.03	P F	Processing Group Adm	n	PayDate	e 09/30/2	2015 🖲
īme	eshee	ets	Sumn	nary Time Clock	C Entries					
Emp	ployee	e Na	ame Ar	na Belle Martin		P				
-			_							
_	Veek Punc			te	Type	Time	HH:MM	Elapsed Time	Sys Time	Notes
_	Punc	ch B	y		Туре	Time	HH:MM	Elapsed Time	Sys Time	Notes
	Punc V 1	ch B We	y ek: 39	Charge Code			HH:MM	Elapsed Time	Sys Time	Notes
	Punc V 1	ch B We	y ek: 39	Charge Code (SUM=0)			HH:MM	Elapsed Time		
	Punc V 1	ch B We	y ek: 39 Date:	Charge Code (SUM=0) Friday, Septem	ıber 25, 201	5 (SUM=0)	HH:MM	Elapsed Time	8/26/2015 9:	

Button Description

S

- Click on this button to **Add** a new time clock in/out entry.
- Click on this button to **Delete** time clock entries.
- **Glick on this button to Save changes.**
- Click on this button to Edit time clock entries.

Apply the following steps:

- 1. Select an employee from the **Employee Name** lookup list.
- 2. Click on the row that contains the date and time you would like to edit.
- 3. Next, click on the **Edit** 3 button and proceed with your modifications.
- 4. Finally, click on the **Apply** I button to save your changes.
- The **Create Preliminary Timesheet** button enables you to convert all of the employee's time clock entries into a completed timesheet. By default, requested leave, paid holidays, and overtime hours will also be included during this process. The completed timesheets should be reviewed for any discrepancies before

submitting to payroll or other approvers within the approval chain.

Shift rules such as rounding of in/out entries and automatic lunch deductions will also be applied when the timesheets are generated.

Preliminary timesheets may be generated multiple times. However, you should delete any existing timesheets for the same pay date because it will cause duplicate hours.

Olick on this button to **Refresh** the selected employee's elapsed time.

Manage Preliminary Timesheets

Supervisors/timekeepers will use this section to perform the following tasks:

- \checkmark Review the preliminary timesheets summary data for accuracy including but not limited to:
 - Earned Hours
 - Leave Hours
 - Holiday Hours
 - Overtime Calculated Hours
 - ✓ If necessary, make manual adjustments to the preliminary timesheets hours.

✓ Submit timesheets to other approvers or directly to payroll for processing (The workflow routing rules will determine the timesheet ultimate destination).

	Documer	nt No	PayDate	Employee	Earnings	Leave	Total Earnings	Overtime	Total Hours	Mileage	Amount
Þ	v Wor	kflow ID: 1	.00								
	± 1	2-TS-1007	11/15/2012	Anna Belle Martin	7.35	0	7.35	0	7.35	0	\$0.00
	± 1	2-TS-1008	11/15/2012	Dana R. Jeffries	8	32	40	0	40	0	\$0.00
	± 1	2-TS-1009	11/15/2012	Frederick E. Smith	8	0	8	0	8	0	\$0.00
				3	23.35	32	55.35	0	55.35	0	\$0.00
				CI	ick on the	e + button	to view the				

Butto Description

ns

- Manually create a new timesheet for a specific employee when time clock entries do not exist for the employee (refer to <u>"How to Create a New Timesheet</u> [43]" for detailed instructions). If time clock entries exist, you can generate the timesheet by using the **Create Preliminary Timesheet** and button located on the **time clock Entries** tab.
- The system allows you to open a timesheet in edit mode. You are able to make manual adjustments to the timesheet by clicking on the **Edit** button before submitting to Payroll for processing.

Note: Correcting Timesheet Information:

Circumstances may occur when you will need to change time, hours, or leave code information on your employee's timesheet before you can approve it. If your

policies permit you to make the changes, then use the **Edit** button to open the timesheet and make the necessary modification. Additionally, you may use the **Notes** icon to justify your changes. However, if your policies do not permit, use the **Re-Route** button to return the timesheet to the employee or the person who prepared it and request they make the necessary corrections.

Click on this button to **Delete** the selected employee's timesheet.

✓ If necessary, you can regenerate the timesheet by using the Create
Preliminary Timesheet button located on the time clock Entries Tab. All manual edits will have to be re-entered.

Select all the timesheets or specific ones and use the Submit subtract button to approve and send to the next approval level.

Steps you should perform before approving and submitting any timesheet:

- Before approving, verify the accuracy of the employee's regular earned hours, leave hours and overtime hours by examining the Time In and Time Out values (if applicable). The total leave and earned hours should equal the employee's regularly scheduled hours for that pay period.
- 2. The hours found in the OVERTIME column should be examined for accuracy and should be confirmed that it was pre-approved by their immediate supervisor. Additionally, refer to your internal policies when examining overtime hours.
- 3. If the above has been confirmed and no changes to the employee's entries are needed, then the timesheet is ready to be approved. If changes or corrections are necessary, then use the Edit Distribution to open the timesheet and make the necessary modifications. Use the Notes Distribution to justify your changes.

If you will be absent during the period that timesheets are due for approval then use the Ribbon Menu Maintenance>Approval Substitute [179] to designate an alternate approver.

Multiple items are selected by holding down the SHIFT key and clicking on it by using the mouse or by holding down the SHIFT key and pressing an arrow key to extend the selection from the previously selected item to the current item. You can also select items by dragging with the mouse. If you hold down the CTRL key and click an item, then it will either select or deselect that item.

4.13 Approve Timesheet

The approver will use this form to approve timesheets that were submitted to them for approval. The system will send an email notification to each approver via their regular email client. At a scheduled time, the approver will login to *Microix Workflow Modules* and modify, append or delete timesheet entries or choose to reroute the document to the originator and have them make the necessary changes. They can also send an email message to question any entries on the timesheet. If approved, the document will be sent to the next level for approval or review. Upon final approval, the timesheet is seamlessly

transferred to Abila MIP FA Payroll Module as a regular timesheet.

a	rch Workflow	rogram Service:	s 🔎												
w	/orkflow ID 🔺														
1	Document No	PayDate	PayrollID	Employee		Processing G	Earnings	Leave	Total Earnings	Overtime	Total Hours	Mileage	Amount	Status	-
ľ															
T	v Workflow ID	: 103													
1	⊞ 13-TS-1	8/31/2015	Martin	Anna Belle Marti	n	Admin	8	8 0	88	3 0	88	0	\$0.00	1 - Supervisor Documen	ts
1	· 13-TS-1		Martin	Anna Belle Marti	n	Admin	8	8 5			93			1 - Supervisor Documen	
1	· 13-TS-1		Jeffries	Dana R. Jeffries		Admin	8	8 0	88	3 0	88			1 - Supervisor Documen	
1	⊞ 13-TS-1		Jeffries	Dana R. Jeffries		Admin	1	2 16	88	3 0	88		\$0.00	1 - Supervisor Documen	ts
1	⊞ 13-TS-1		Otoole	Ken Z. OToole		Admin	8	8 0	88	3 0	88		\$0.00	1 - Supervisor Documen	ts
1	⊞ 13-TS-1	8/31/2013	Otoole	Ken Z. OToole		Admin	8	8 8	96	5 0	96			1 - Supervisor Documen	ts
1	⊞ 13-TS-1	8/31/2015	Michaels	Scott Y. Michaels	5	Admin	8	8 0	88	3 0	88	0	\$0.00	1 - Supervisor Documen	ts
1	⊞ 13-TS-1	8/31/2013	Michaels	Scott Y. Michael	5	Admin	8	8 8	96	5 O	96	C	\$0.00	1 - Supervisor Document	ts
1					8		68	37	725	0	725	0	\$0.00		
	⊘ 🄹 Record Select All		oplemental Times	heet	8		68		725	0	725		\$0.00		•rin
	Select All			heet			68	37	725	0	725	0	\$0.00		Prin
] :	Select All	Create Sup		heet Gross Earnings			68 Edit	8 37	T25	0	fy Transfer	Calcula	te OT		Prin
) : on	Select All	Create Sup	nary		8 EmpRa		68 Edit	8 37	T25	0	fy Transfer	Calcula	te OT	Transfer Leave	Prin
	Select All ove Timesheet y Date Proce urs	Create Sup	nary	Gross Earnings	8 EmpRa		68 Edit	8 37	I ID Last Nan	0	fy Transfer	Calcula	te OT	Transfer Leave	Prin
	ove Timesheet 1 y Date Proce urs orkflow	Create Sup Timesheet Sumn	nary	Gross Earnings Pay Code -	8 EmpRa	te EntryDa	Edit	s Payro	I ID Last Nan	0 Verif	fy Transfer	Calcula	te OT	Transfer Leave	Prin
on lo	ove Timesheet 1 y Date Proce urs Children Control Cont	Create Sup Timesheet Sum essing Group Charge ID	nary Pay Type Employee	Gross Earnings Pay Code - EPTO fries	8 EmpRa	te EntryDa	68 Edit	s Payro	IID Last Nar	0 Veril	fy Transfer	Calcula Colcula No	te OT	Transfer Leave	Print
	ove Timesheet 1 y Date Proce urs Children Control Cont	Create Sup Timesheet Summ essing Group Charge ID	Pay Type Pay Type Employee Dana R. Jef	Gross Earnings Pay Code - EPTO Tries Iartin	8 EmpRa	te EntryDa	68 Edit	s Payro	IID Last Nar	0 Veril	fy Transfer hame Doc Grand Totz 88	0 Calcula No Pund	te OT	Transfer Leave	Print
	ove Timesheet 1 y Date Proce urs Children Control Cont	Create Sup Timesheet Summ essing Group Charge ID	Pay Type Employee Dana R. Jef Anna Belle M Dana R. Jef Ken Z. OToc	Gross Earnings Pay Code - EPTO fries let	8 EmpRa	te EntryDa	68 Edit	s Payro	IID Last Nar	ne First N	i 725 iy Transfer i kame Doc Grand Totz 88 76 72 88	No Pund al 104 181 72 88 8	te OT	Transfer Leave	Print
on lo	Select All ove Timesheet y Date Proce urs schflow C y y y y y y y y y y y y y y y y y y	Create Sup Timesheet Summ essing Group Charge ID / Jeffries / Martin	Pay Type Pay Type Dana R. Jef Anna Belle M Dana R. Jef	Gross Earnings Pay Code - EPTO fries let	8 EmpRa	te EntryDa	68 Edit	s Payro	IID Last Nar	ne First N ages	Aame Doc Grand Totz 88 75 72 88 88	No Pund	te OT	Transfer Leave	2rint
on lo	Select All ove Timesheet T y Date Proce urs srkflow C UD3 V N	Create Sup Timesheet Sum essing Group Charge ID • / Jeffries / Martin	Pay Type Pay Type Dana R. Jef Anna Belle M Dana R. Jef Ken Z. OToo Ken Z. OToo	Gross Earnings Pay Code Pay Code For EPTO Fries Reference Refere	8 EmpRa	te EntryDa	68 Edit	s Payro	IID Last Nar	ne First N ages	ame Doc Grand Totz 88 76 72 88 88 88	No Pund	te OT	Transfer Leave	Print
on lo	Select All ove Timesheet y Date Proce urs orkflow C U	Create Sup Timesheet Summ essing Group Charge ID • / Jeffries / Martin Nartin Total / Michaels	nary Pay Type Employee Dana R. Jef Anna Belle M Dana R. Jef Ken Z. OToc Scott Y. Mid	Gross Earnings Pay Code - EPTO Tries le haels	8 EmpRa	te EntryDa	68 Edit	s Payro	IID Last Nar	ne First N	725 fy Transfer fame Doc Grand Totz 88 76 72 88 88 88 88 88 88	No Pund 104 181 72 88 88 88 88 96	te OT	Transfer Leave	Print
pr Pa	Select All ove Timesheet y Date Proce urs orkflow C U	Create Sup Timesheet Sum essing Group Charge ID • / Jeffries / Martin	Pay Type Pay Type Dana R. Jef Anna Belle M Dana R. Jef Ken Z. OToo Ken Z. OToo	Gross Earnings Pay Code - EPTO Tries le haels	8 EmpRa	te EntryDa	68 Edit	s Payro	IID Last Nar	ne First N ages	ame Doc Grand Totz 88 76 72 88 88 88	No Pund	te OT	Transfer Leave	2rint

Fields Description

/ <u>Butto</u> ns

The approver can use this button to **Edit** a timesheet.

Note: Correcting Timesheet Information:

Circumstances may occur when you will need to change time, hours, or leave code information on your employee's timesheet before you can approve it. If your policies permit you to make the changes, then use the **Edit** button to open the timesheet and make the necessary modification. Use the **Notes** icon to justify

your changes. However, if your policies do not permit, use the **Re-Route** button to return the timesheet to the employee or the person who prepared it and request they make the necessary corrections.

Click on this button to **View** a timesheet (in read-only mode).

Click on this button to **Approve** selected timesheet(s).

Steps you should perform before approving any timesheet:

- 1. Before approving, verify the accuracy of the employee's regular earned hours, leave hours, and overtime hours by examining the Time In and Time Out values (if applicable). The total leave and earned hours should equal the employee's regularly scheduled hours for that pay period.
- 2. The hours found in the Overtime column should be examined for accuracy and should be confirmed that it was pre-approved by their immediate supervisor. Additionally, refer to your internal policies when examining overtime hours.
- 3. If the above has been confirmed and no changes to the employee's entries are needed, then timesheet is ready to be approved. If changes or corrections are necessary, then use the **Edit** $\overline{\mathbb{S}}$ button to open the timesheet and make the necessary modifications. Use the Notes Icon (or Column) to justify your changes.

 \forall If you will be absent during the period that timesheets are due for approval, then use the Ribbon Menu Maintenance>Approval Substitute 179 to designate an alternate approver.

🗥 The system will not allow you to approve a timesheet if it contains any unapproved leave requests.

Multiple items are selected by holding down the SHIFT key and clicking on it by using the mouse or by holding down the SHIFT key and pressing an arrow key to extend the selection from the previously selected item to the current item. You can also select items by dragging with the mouse. If you hold down the CTRL key and click an item, then it will either select or deselect that item.

Click on this button if the approver would like to **Re-Route** the timesheet to the originator and have them make any necessary changes.

Click on this button to **Print** a copy of the approval list.

Click on this button to **Retrieve** previously completed timesheets for the selected employee.

This button enables the approver to review the time clock entries of the requester.

4.14 Document List

Refer to Shared Activities>Document List 219 for more details.

4.15 Reports

You can access Timesheet reports via the Ribbon Navigation menu. A list of reports will be available in the **Report Name** lookup list box. Select a report and enter a specific date or pay period. To view the report, click on the **View** button and use the **Print** button to print the report to screen. After printing to screen, you can send the report to disk, export to Excel, or add as an attachment to your email.

Refer to Shared Activities>Reports 219 for more details.

See <u>Report Export Options</u> 216 for more information on exporting and emailing reports.

Report Name	Report Lay	/out		Select a Pay Date			
Employee Leave Accrua Timesheet Form Time Clock Entries Timesheet Summary Timesheet Summary Roi Timesheet Allocation	w Format			Date 8/28/2015 📵 To		/iew 😰 Print	
Requested and Annrove	ed Leave						
		Leave	Period Accrued	YTD Accrued	Period Taken	YTD Taken	Balance
Requested and Approve Employee Leave Accrua		Leave Sidk8	Period Accrued	48.0000		0.0000	
Employee Leave Accrua	l/Taken and Balance 🔻		Period Accrued				240.000
Employee Leave Accrua Dana R. Jeffries	I/Taken and Balance 💌	Sick8	Period Accrued	48.0000		0.0000	240.000



Description

Click on this button to **View** the report generated for the selected values.



0

Click on this button to **Print** a copy of the report.



5 Requisition Module

5.1 Introduction

The *Microix Requisition Module* enables accountants and non-accounting staff to create purchase requests from their desktop computers and submit them electronically for approval. Our system helps to expedite the approval process, reduce data entry errors and also ensures that the correct information necessary to process a request is accurately provided.

Highlights:

- Easy to navigate and use simple and easy learning curve.
- Ability to create and submit requisitions or check requests for approval.
- Multi-level approval process with a maximum of 90 levels including dollar threshold and category routing rules.
- Budget checking feature.
- Query payments with check information features.
- Automatic email notifications.
- Built-in workflow process to help enforce business rules.
- Approval substitutes.
- Seamless integration with Abila MIP FA Encumbrance and Accounts Payable Module.



Menu Description

ItemMyThis section displays a list of all documents for the logged in user. It alsoDocumentallows you to perform the following tasks:

S 71

- 1. Create a new purchase or check request.
- 2. Edit existing documents that are not yet submitted for approval.
- 3. Retrieve/find any documents that have been created in the system.
- 4. Recall documents that were submitted for approval but not yet approved.

Receiving Receive goods or services that you have acquired (please refer to your as) internal policies on whether or not this process is required).

 Query
 Displays a list of vendors from Abila MIP.

 Vendors
 Displays a list of the general ledger segment codes from Abila MIP.

 Query
 Displays a list of the general ledger segment codes from Abila MIP.

 Chart of
 Accounts

 Asc1
 Use this section to approve any purchase or check requests.

 Document
 S

 S
 S

Menu Description

Item

Document This function is used by approvers to view the status of documents for which **Search** [92] they have approved or are scheduled to approve.

<u>Reports</u> [92] Displays a list of all reports available for the *Requisition Module*.

 Display
 Managers may use this option to view a summary of their department/funding budget balance.

 Balance
 Balance

 Image: Shopping
 Allow you to manage the items that will be available for selection when entering a new document.

Setup 64 Setup default values and define other business rules for creating and managing requisition documents.

5.2 Requisition Module Checklist

NOTE: Abila MIP Encumbrance and/or Accounts Payable Module is required before implementing the *Microix Requisition Workflow Module*.

Check list of items for implementing the Requisition Workflow Module

- ✓ <u>Setup</u>^[143] users (manually enter each employee or import from Excel or Abila MIP FA Payroll Module).
- ✓ Create <u>approval level</u> 172 titles activate all possible approval level that will be used later when you are setting up the approval process.
- ✓ Create and setup <u>organization workflows</u> 169.
 - Workflow <u>options</u>
 - Setup default bill and ship to address.
 - $_{\rm O}$ Define budget segments for checking the available funds.
 - Assign vendor filters (optional).
 - <u>Requesters</u> 153] setup all users who will be creating requisitions.
 - <u>Approvers</u> **1**55] setup approval process for routing requisitions for approval.
 - <u>Account Restrictions</u> [161] limit access to Abila MIP FA account codes by workflow.
 - <u>Restrict Distribution Codes</u> (optional) limit employees from using specific distribution codes.
- ✓ Define <u>document numbering</u> [174] schema unique document numbers for each document type (ENC and API).
- ✓ Assign user <u>permissions</u> [147] for access to each ribbon menu item.
- ✓ Configure <u>application options</u>¹⁶⁹:
 - Enter the SMTP mail server information for email notifications.
 - Enter organization's current fiscal year end.
 - Select the budget version to be used when retrieving available funds.
 - Change the default password for the admin account (recommended before going live).

Check list items for ongoing maintenance

Adding new users

- \checkmark <u>Create</u> 145 a new user account.
- ✓ Assigning the user to a <u>workflow</u> 153.
- \checkmark Assign <u>permissions</u> 147 to the user.
- \checkmark Change document ownership (if applicable).

Terminating employees

- ✓ <u>Remove user</u> 153 from workflow.
- ✓ <u>Inactivate user</u>143.

Annual maintenance

√ Change <u>fiscal year end</u> 169.

5.3 Setup

The purpose of this section is to setup default values and define other business rules for creating and managing requisition documents.



Functions	<u>Descriptions</u>
Options	Setup the default flags for the Requisition Module.

New Vendor Maintenance Delete unused vendors.

Setup Funding Source	Add funding sources that are on a different fiscal year as your
Fiscal Year End	current organization's fiscal year.

Create User Defined Fields	Allows users to add custom fields to the purchase requisition form.
Setup Spending Limits	Setup limits for vendor or employee spending.
Credit Card Statement Authorization	Retrieve your credit card statement from your bank. Generate documents from the statement and transfer to accounting.
Punchout Maintenance	Use a vendor punchout website to create and receive punchout information while electronically connected to the vendor website.

5.3.1 Options

Select the **Options** function from the **Setup** menu. The following window opens on the screen, displaying a list of all the functions with check-boxes allowing you to turn on or off each selected function.

Transfer Options	🗐 🔊 🌛
Enable Encumbrance transfers	Other Option
Create Abila Purchase Order after Encumbrance Transfer	
Bypass Encumbrance while creating Abila Purchase Order	Enable budget warning
Enable Accounts Payable transfers	Allow users to edit receiving/picking date
Enable Journal Voucher transfers	Do not allow users to back date the purchase order date
Allow users to edit Session ID	Allow line Item vendor selection
Transfer Attachments to Abila (ENC,ENL and API)	Use Abila distribution code units
Receiving required for transfer to Accounts Payable (ENC and API)	C Account Codes are required at requester level
Only create AP invoices from posted Encumbrances	Prevent account codes at requester level
Override Balancing Segment when applying offset	: Require a vendor before submitting for approval
Apply Abila JV Offset when transferring JV Transactions	: Disable vendor selection at requester level
	Do not allow approvers to edit Abila Vendor Data
Document Statement	Enforce Abila Account Code Combination
This Purchase Order Authorizes the purchase of the items or services in the quantities and	When receiving/picking hide the quantity ordered and unit price
	Reason/Justification is required at requester level
Add New Vendor Rule	Turn off best fit and auto column width
Allow Users to Add a New Vendor	Enforce COA restrictions when switching workflows
User Definable	Do not default effective date on a new document
	JV SegmentID For Payment
	Show Number of Decimals

Check the box to the left of the option to control the functions provided for the user.

Transfer Options

- Enable Encumbrance transfers.
- Create Abila MIP purchase order after encumbrance transfer.
- Bypass encumbrance while creating Abila purchase order.
- Enable accounts payable transfers.
- Enable journal voucher transfers.
- Allow users to edit session ID.
- Transfer attachments to Abila MIP (ENC, ENL and API).
- Receive required for transfer to accounts payable (ENC and API)
- Only create AP invoices from posted encumbrances.
- Override balancing segment when applying offset.

• Apply Abila JV offset when transferring JV transactions.

Other Options

- Enable budget warnings.
- Allow users to edit receiving/picking date.
- Do not allow users to back date the purchase order date.
- Allow line item vendor selection.
- Use Abila MIP distribution code units.
- Account codes are required at requester level.
- Prevent account codes at requester level.
- Require a vendor before submitting for approval.
- Disable vendor selection at requester level.
- Do not allow approvers to edit Abila MIP vendor data.
- Enforce Abila MIP account code combination.
- When receiving/picking hide the quantity ordered and unit price.
- Reason/justification is required at requester level.
- Turn off best fit and auto column width.
- Enforce COA restrictions when switching workflows.
- Do not default effective date on a new document.
- Show number of decimals.

Fields/ Description

Buttons

Documen Text that will appear on the printed requisition form.

t

Statemen

t

New Indicates whether users can add a new vendor or not.

Vendor

Rule JV

Selects general ledger segment to use for payment.

Segment

ID for

Payment

Click on this button to **Save** the changes.



Click on this button to **Undo** the previous edit.



Click on this button to **Import** documents. Refer to **Shared** Activities>Import from Excel 216 for more details.

5.3.2 New Vendor Maintenance

This form allows a user to delete unused vendors. Select the **New Vendor Maintenance** option from the **Setup** menu. The following window will appear:

rag a column header h	here to group by that colu	mn				
Vendor ID	s Status	Vendor Name	Doc Num	Date	Description	Status
ATL Industries	NV	Atlanta Industries				
Microix	NV	Microix Workflow Mod				

This window displays all the vendors present in the database.



user of the completion of the action will pop up.

5.3.3 Setup Funding Source Fiscal Year End

Utilize this form to add any funding sources that are on a different fiscal year as your current organization's fiscal year. This information is only used by the *Requisition Module*. Any documents that are using the accounts that a user specifies on this form will retrieve the available funds data based on the **Begin Date** and **End Date** for the funding source.

Im	port Budget Cont	rols		Update	Budget Controls		
0	Import from Abila E	Budget Control 🔘 Import From	a Specific Segment	egin Date			
ieg	gment		0	Search	2014 ‡ Replace	2014 🗘	
	Comment	A securit No.	Ev Basis Data		FY End Date	Apply	
	Segment	Account No	FY Begin Date				
•	2	101	1/1/2015		12/31/2015		
	2	108	1/1/2015		12/31/2015	_	
_	2	201	1/1/2015		12/31/2015	=	
	2	208	1/1/2015		12/31/2015		
	2	301	1/1/2015		12/31/2015		
	2	308	1/1/2015		12/31/2015		
	2	990	1/1/2015		12/31/2015		
	2	998	1/1/2015		12/31/2015		
-	2	999	1/1/2015		12/31/2015	-	

Import Budget Controls:

Users have the option to import from Abila MIP's **Budget Control or a Specific Segment** option. If the **Specific Segment** option is selected, then the desired segment must be picked from the list. Click the appropriate option and then the **Process** button. You will then be prompted to confirm the action.

Update Budget Controls:

To apply the **Budget Controls** option select the **Begin Date** or **End Date** option and click on the **Apply** \checkmark button.

Fields/ Buttons	<u>Description</u>
4	Click on this button to Add a new budget control element to the displayed list.
×	Click on this button to Delete a line item from the displayed list.
	Click on this button to Save the changes.
	Click on this button to Undo the last edit.

5.3.4 Create User Defined Fields

This form enables users to add fields to the purchase requisition form. Select the **Create User Defined Fields** option from the **Setup** menu.

	nent 🔘 Detail	Search Field			Ŧ	4	×	S.	Sec.
ustom Field	d Information			Lookup Values					
eld ID [1 🗘 Leng	th	1 ‡						
tle [Contract Number								
eld Name [udf_Contract_Number								
ata Type	VarChar		-						
ontrol Type	TextEdit		-						
efault	Sort	Order	0 ‡						
Display in Se SQL state	Grid 🗹	Required							
-									

The following window will open on the user's screen:

<u>Fields/</u> Buttons	<u>Description</u>
Search Field	User can search for a UDF or select a field from a drop-down list. The rest of the fields in the form will be filled in according to the default values of the selected field.
Field Title	Enter the name of the field that should be displayed on the requisition form.
Sort Order	The order of the fields will be presented on the requisition form.
Lookup SQL Stmt	Intended for users with programming skills to query lookup data from another database.
Default value	Initial value for the field.
Control Type	Select one of the options from the drop-down list: 1. LookupEdit 2. TextEdit

3. DateEdit

Click on this button to **Add** a new user defined field (UDF).



Click on this button to **Delete** the selected UDF.



Click on this button to **Save** the UDF.



4

Click on this button to **Cancel** the edit performed.

Click on this button to to **Map** the UDF to the purchase requisition form.

UDF mapping to Abila MIP FA Click on this button to **Add** a new line item.



Click on this button to **Undo** the previous edit.

5.3.5 Requision/PO Spending Limits

The **Requisition/PO Spending Limits** screen will allow you to set limits for a particular employee or specific vendor's spending.

Select the type of limit to create (**Vendor** or **Employee**):

In the Description column, choose either the **Vendor** or **Employee** name to limit.

In the Amount column, set a dollar value as the limit.

Click on **Yes** to save your work.

Drag	a column header here to group by that column					
De	escription			Amount		
9						
Ar	nna Belle Martin				\$1	,000.00
	Microix Workflow Modules × Do you want to save changes? Yes No					
	Yes	No]			

5.4 My Documents

This form displays a list of all requisitions, AP invoices and encumbrance modifications created by the login user. See below for other functions that are available.

P To filter, sort and group the data see Sorting/Grouping/Filtering Data Grids 213.

Doc Ty	ype	Туре	Document No	Reference No	Date	Document Des	Workflow ID	Vendor Name	Total	% Completed	A
v De	ocumen	t Status: 0 - Reque	ster Documen	s							
EN	NC	Request Items	13-EN-1010		8/11/2015	Request items	103	UNASSIGNED -	11.97	0.00 %	
EN	NC	Standard Requi	13-EN-1009		8/11/2015	Request for 2	103	ABC - ABC Of	400.00	0.00 %	
				2					411.97		
v De	ocumen	t Status: 10 - Acco	unting Docume	ents (Anna Belle	Martin)						
EN	NC	Standard Requi	13-EN-1013		8/13/2015	Test Partial Pay	103	ABC - ABC Of	5,988.00	50.00 %	
AF	PI	A/P Invoice fro	13-EN-1013	APABCPARTIAL	8/13/2015	Invoice for 13	103	ABC - ABC Of	2,994.00	100.00 %	
AF	PI	Accounts Payab	AP-1003		8/13/2015	TEST AP Doc	103	ABC - ABC Of	539.75	0.00 %	
EN	NC	Standard Requi	13-EN-1012		8/12/2015	Requisition a r	103	ABC - ABC Of	3,600.00	0.00 %	
EN	NC	Request Items	13-EN-1011		8/12/2015	Request Item	103	UNASSIGNED -	109.78	0.00 %	
				5					13,231.53		
v De	ocumen	t Status: 14 - Docu	ments Transfe	rred to Abila							
EN	NC	Standard Regui	13-EN-1002		7/22/2013	Blanket PO	103	Rapid - Rapid	20,000.00	0.00 %	Ø
AF	PI	Accounts Pavab	AP-1001	AP-1001	7/22/2013	Expense Reim	103	CPA - Williams	709.00	0.00 %	-
	NC	Standard Dogui	12 EN 1001		7/22/2012	UD Drinter	102	ARC ARC OF	200.00	100.00.9/	-
			10	0					\$34,752.49		

Butto Description

ns

Click on this button to **Add** or **Create** a <u>New Document</u> 72¹.

Click on this button to **Edit** an existing document. The **Edit** function is not available after submitting your document for approval.



Click on this button to **View** the document in read-only mode.



Click on this button to temporarily or permanently **Transfer** ownership of your new document to another *Microix* user.



If you've submitted your document for approval and need to make any modifications, you can try to Recall the document to your queue. However, if it was approved, then the system will not allow you to recall it.

View all payments that were applied to the AP invoice or purchase document.

Click on this button to **Print** a copy of the My Document list.

5.4.1 **Create New Document**

To create a new document click on the **Add** 📑 button located at the bottom of the **My Documents** form. A form will appear allowing you to choose a document type and prefix.
Document Options: ENC PO/Requisition Document Type PO/Requisition So Sales Order Transaction Type Standard Requisition X X Number Prefix 13-EN X X Accounts Payable Options Request Items from 1 N Standard Requisition Show all open encumbrances for the following vendor N Standard Requisition	t Document Ty	pe	Module I	ID s Description	
Document Type PO/Requisition Transaction Type Standard Requisition Number Prefix 13-EN Accounts Payable Options Type Description Show all open encumbrances for the following vendor	-		API	Account Payable	
Document Type PO/Requisition Transaction Type Standard Requisition Number Prefix 13-EN Accounts Payable Options Type Description Show all open encumbrances for the following vendor	ocument Opt	tions:	ENC	PO/Requisition	
Number Prefix 13-EN Accounts Payable Options Type Description Show all open encumbrances for the following vendor			so	Sales Order	
Accounts Payable Options Show all open encumbrances for the following vendor N Standard Requisition	Transaction Type Standard Requisition				
Accounts Payable Options Request Items from I Show all open encumbrances for the following vendor Standard Requisition	Number Prefix	13-EN 🔹	×		
Show all open encumbrances for the following vendor Request Items from I Standard Requisition	ccounts Pavable	Options	Туре	Description	-
Show all open encumprances for the following vergor	iccountes r dydoic			Request Items from Invent	ory
D Datura Itama ta Inua	Show all open	encumbrances for the following vendor	N	Standard Requisition	
			R	Return Items to Inventory	
Vendor ID W Warehouse transfer	endor ID	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	W	Warehouse transfer	
🖌 Ok 🕌 Cancel		V Ok 🛃 Cancel			
×			x		

Fields/ Description Buttons

Docume 1. **Accounts Payable** - Select this option to create check requests or vouchers. This type of transaction will be transferred directly to Abila MIP FA

Accounts Payable Module.

- 2. **PO/Requisition** Use this option to create a requisition or purchase order. This type of transaction can be transferred directly to Abila MIP FA Encumbrance Module.
- 3. **Encumbrance Modifications** Select this option to create modifications to an existing posted encumbrances in Abila MIP FA.

Administrators can remove some of the **Document Types** that are available in the lookup list box by navigating to the <u>Maintenance Tab>Organization</u> <u>Workflow>Requesters</u> 153] tab. Next, select the **Document Type** and remove the employees from the selected list box.

Transact There are several different transaction types for PO/Requisition documents: **ion Type**

- I Request Items from Inventory
- N Standard Requisition
- R Return Items to Inventory
- V Inventory Purchase Order
- W Request Inventory Transfer

The N - Standard Requisition type is covered in this section of the manual while the inventory transaction types are detailed in the <u>****</u> Module>Create New Inventory Document [113] section.

Docume Select a document prefix from the combo box. Multiple prefixes can be created **nt Prefix** via the <u>Maintenance>Global Options>Document Number</u> [174] form. Document

<u>Fields/</u><u>Description</u> Buttons

prefixes are ultimately part of your document number and it can be used to assigned different sequential number for each selected prefix.

Document Type - Standard Requisition

^ Documen	t Information				
Document No.	13-EN	То В	Be Assigned 117	Reaso	on/Justification
Description	Vendor Purchase Order				
Prepared By	Anna Belle Martin	Workflow ID 1	103	-	
Order Date	9/21/2015	Required Date	10/1/2015	-	
Billing/Shi	ipping Information				·
Bill To	Main 👻	Ship To Ma	ain 🔽 🊄	Engli	al Instructions/Comments
Vendor In Vendor ID Name		Suite Austin	North Lamar 200 1 TX 78755 555-5555 Ext (512)555-5555 Ext		

<u>Field/</u><u>Description</u> Button

Docume Assigned automatically upon saving or the administrator may turn on a feature that allows users the ability to manually enter a pre-defined number (see <u>Maintenance>Global Options>Document Number</u> [174]).

Descripti Enter a general description of the item(s) being purchased/requested. Upon

on transferring the document to Abila MIP Fund Accounting, the system will truncate this description based on the maximum field length Abila MIP FA accommodates.

PreparedYour name will appear in this field as read-only.

By

Workflo The system will automatically default your Workflow ID in this field. If you

w ID belong to multiple workflows, then click on the **Down** arrow to select a different **Workflow ID**.

Order The current date will be defaulted in this field. **Date**

Required The system will automatically enter the **Required Date** as ten days after the **Date Order Date.** You may change this date, if necessary..

Bill To You can accept the default **Bill-To** address or change it based on your internal policies. Click on the **Down** arrow to select a different **Bill-To** address if applicable.

A default **Bill-To** address can be defined for each workflow and set as read-only option. See **Shared Activities>Address Code Maintenance** [218] tab.

<u>Field/</u> Button	<u>Description</u>
Ship To	Accept the default Ship-To address or change it based on your internal policies.
	Click on the Down arrow to select a different Ship-To address if applicable.
Vendor ID	Enter the Vendor ID or use the Down arrow to search for a specific vendor. When searching for a vendor, you can click on the different columns to search by ID, Name or Address .
Vendor Name	The Vendor Name will automatically populate in this field after selecting a Vendor ID .
	' An option in the requisition setup indicates whether this field is a required entry ${f t}$ for requesters.
	Enter any comments that will provide additional information or special i instructions to Vendors and/or Approvers. These comments/instructions will also be included on the printed form. n
	If custom fields were added to the document, they will appear in this section. Consult internal documents for instructions on using custom fields (User Defined tFields).
	Click on this button to Delete your document.
	Click on this button to Save changes to your document.
	Click on this button to Undo the last changes.
W	Click on this button to Submit your document for approval.
	You can view the Audit Trail . This window displays the progress of the document in the approval cycle. See Shared Activities>Audit Trail ²¹³ for more details.
a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a	Click on this button to Email correspondence. See <u>Shared Activities>Email</u> [210] for detailed instructions on how to send email messages.
Ø	Click on this button to Attach electronic files to your document. See <u>Shared</u> <u>Activities>Attachments</u> [211] for detailed instructions on how to include attachments.
T	Click on this button to Print a copy of your purchase request.

	Item No.	Qty	Units	Date	Description	Туре	Price	Amount	Dist Code	Fund	G	Grant	GL	Progr	Dept	117
	🗈 x113	23.00	EA	9/21/2015	Copier Paper	N/A	\$2.78	\$63.94	Day Care	01	3	301	57001	401	201	1
•		11.00	EA	9/21/2015	Toner/Ink	N/A	\$12.82	\$141.02	Day Care	01	3	301	57001 -	401	201	1

The general ledger segments in this form are imported from Abila MIP FA.These fields will be filled in from your organization's Abila MIP database (the segments displayed in this document are from a sample data base). Each field can also be selected from a drop-down list.

Note: To avoid errors while replicating these codes, a copy feature has been provided.

note: 10	avoid errors while replicating these codes, a copy reature has been provided.
<u>Field/</u> Button	Description
Item No.	This is the item's catalog number for a vendor.
Quantity	User should enter the number of items to be purchased.
Units	This field will default to "EA".
Date	This field will be filled in with the date provided earlier.
Vendor ID	Select the preferred vendor for the item being ordered.
Dist Code	See <u>Requisition Module>Create New Document>Distribution Code</u> <u>Allocation</u> ଛିଥି
Code	
Code Descript on Type	Allocation هکاً. If an item is selected from the list, the description will be defaulted. The user
Code Descript on Type	Allocation 82. If an item is selected from the list, the description will be defaulted. The user can override the description if they choose. The user should select the appropriate option for each item from a drop-down list. This describes the type of item being ordered. The tax rate may or may not be applicable for the item depending on the item

Note: The cell code and description is provided for a quick view. The benefit of this feature is that approvers do not have to to drill into each segment. Click on the line item to view the complete information.

<u>Field/</u> Button	Description
4	Click on the Copy the account codes of the above item.
×	Click on this button to Delete the selected item from the purchase request.
	Click on this button to Cancel the edit performed on the selected field.
b	Click on the Templates 🔄 button to open a predefined purchase requisition.
	Click on the button to Copy items from a previously written purchase request.

All the items in the selected purchase request will be added to the current document. The user can edit these items after copying them.

This function enables managers and supervisors to check unnecessary spending. It provides a quick check for budget allocations for the items in the purchase request.

Note: This function is linked to Abila MIP FA general ledger.

- Click on he button to apply a mass update for a chosen field (refer to <u>My</u> <u>Documents>Create New Document>Global Update</u> [81] for more details).
- Click on the button to import a spread sheet as a purchase request (refer to **Shared Activities>Import from Excel** for more details).
- Click on this button to add items to global list.

Transfer:

Using this option a user can transfer a document to another user in the same workflow.

Sector Se	Isfer
When a user clicks on	the following window pop-ups on the screen:

Transfer Document	- 🗆 X
Transfer To:	
Anna Belle Martin	•
User Name	Email Address
Anna Belle Martin	AMartin@domain.org
Dana R. Jeffries Ken Z. OToole Scott Y. Michaels	DJeffries@domain.org KOToole@domain.org SMichaels@domain.org
Ne transferring. During to document until it is re	r his period you will not have access to the turned to you. Send I Close



To Click on the **Down** arrow to select the name of the person from the same workflow to whom the document should be transferred.

Message Enter a message (if any) for the recipient of the document.

Click on this button to ${\bf Send}$ the document to the recipient. The user will be asked to confirm the action in the next window.



Click on "Yes" to confirm or click "No" to return to the My Documents page.



To exit the transfer document function and return to the My Documents page.

5.4.1.1 Vendor Maintenance

To add a new vendor click on \clubsuit . This function can be enabled for users depending on your organization's rules.

<u>Field/</u> Button	Description
	Click on this button to Add a new vendors to the list.
	Click on this button to Save the vendor information in your database.
	Click on this button to Undo the changes or exit from the vendor information

General Information:

form.

General Information		
Vendor ID	Status	NV
Name		
Phone	Fax	

<u>Fields/</u> Buttons	Description
Vendor ID	Enter the Vendor ID to add to the vendor list. The Accounting Department will be able to edit this field before approving the vendor.
Name	Enter the complete legal name of the vendor.
Phone	Enter the telephone number of the vendor.

Fax Enter the **fax** number of the vendor.

1099 Information:

1099 Information					
Issue 1099 for this Vendor					
Default 1099 MISC Box Number					
Tax ID Type	•				
Tax Identification N	lumber				

<u>Fields/</u> Buttons	<u>Description</u>
Issue a 1099 to this vendor	Check this block if you plan to issue 1099 for this vendor. The user should check with the Accounting Department.
Default 1099 MISC Box Number	Select the appropriate option from the drop-down list.
Tax ID type	Select the correct Tax ID from a drop-down list.
Tax Identific ation number	This information can be provided by the vendor.

The information required in this form can be completed by the Accounting Department. The requester can proceed even if this information is not available to them.

Default Values:

Default ¥alues			
Class			•
Туре			•
Default GL			\mathcal{P}
Default Dist Code			•
Vendor Account			
Net Days Due	30 📮	Currency	USD
Memo IDf 00000	000-0000-0000-0000-00	Name Control	

<u>Fields/</u> Buttons	
Class Type	Select the appropriate option from a drop-down list. This list can be set up according to your organization's requirements. Select the vendor Type from the drop-down list.
Default GL	If the user has the information about the G/L account, then they can enter this information or select an option from a drop-down list. The G/L account entered here will be the default account for each of the transactions for that vendor.
Default Dist Code	The user can select an existing distribution code from a drop-down list. The Distribution Code entered here will be the default code for any transaction entry for this vendor. The Distribution Code can be changed for individual transactions.
	Enter the account details for the vendor. This information can be filled in by your Accounting Department.

Main Address:

Enter the vendor's address in the space provided in the **Main Address** tab.

PO Address	
	-
Zip	
	PO Address

If the **Main Address** and **PO Address** of the vendor are the same, then check the block in the **PO Address** tab to avoid re-entering the vendor address.

5.4.1.2 Templates

This function allows a user to create a purchase request with predefined fields. This way users need not fill in information every time they create a purchase requisition. Click on the **Templates** is button to open a predefined purchase requisition.

Document Tem	plate
Template Name	Travel Reim 🔹
Distribution Code	Day Care Direct 🔹
	V OK K Cancel



Templat Select a predefined template document from a drop-down list by clicking on the **e Name Down** arrow .

DistributiSelect the **Distribution Code** to be used for the template from a drop-down list **on Code** by clicking on the **Down** row.

5.4.1.3 Global Update

Click on the **Global Update** button to perform a mass update. The user can search for and update a field for all line items rather than editing each one individually. When the user clicks on the **Global Update** button the following window will appear:

obal Updates	
Edit Type	
 Account Codes Item Description Assign GL Based on It 	tem Description
Search and Replace Ad	ccount Numbers
Segment Name	•
Search For	-
Replace with	*
Assign GL account bas	ed on Item Description
Search For	
Assign GL	*
Search and Replace It	em Description
Search For	
Replace with	
	🖌 Apply 🛄 Close

Fields/ Description

<u>Buttons</u>

SegmentSelect the appropriate option from the drop-down list by clicking on the **Down Name** arrow.

SearchSelect the code for the segment from the drop-down list by clicking on theForDown arrow

ReplaceSelect the option which the segment should be replaced from the drop-downWithlist.

Click on this button to **Apply** the changes to the code segments.



Click on this button to **Close** the **Global Update** form and return to the purchase request.

5.4.1.4 Distribution Code Allocation

This feature allows the user to split the cost of an item among multiple departments. The distribution codes with their allocations are set up in Abila MIP. During entry of a line item, if the user selects a distribution code from the pick list, then the application will read from the database and add the allocation percentages to that line. When the document is transferred to Abila MIP the allocation percentages will be applied against the line amount and spread across the distribution accounts.

	Iten	n Ne	ο.	Qty	Units	Date		Vendor Id		Dist Code	
Þ		Com	nputer	5.00	EA	12/3)/2012			Direct	-
		Q.	Percent	Fund	Grant		Progr	Dept	11		
		÷	25.00 %	01	101		101	101	1		
			25.00 %	04	201			101	1		
			25.00 %					101	1		
			25.00 %	01					1		
		*									

5.5 Receiving

The **Receiving** function notifies the system that the items in a purchase requisition have been received.

	Doc Type	Document No	Reference No	Date	Description	User Name	Workflow ID	Vendor Name	Document Status	Received %
9										
۲	ENC	13-EN-1002		7/22/2013	Blanket PO	Anna Belle Martin	103	Rapid Supplies Pr	Documents Trans	0.00 %
	ENC	13-EN-1009		8/11/2015	Request for 20 u	Anna Belle Martin	103	ABC Office Supply	Supervisor Docu	0.00 9
	ENC	13-EN-1024		9/2/2015	test	Anna Belle Martin	103	UNASSIGNED	Requester Docu	0.00 %
	ENC	13-EN-1039		9/21/2015	Vendor Purchase	Anna Belle Martin	103	ABC Office Supply	Accounting Docu	0.00 9
	ENC	13-EN-1043		10/2/2015		Anna Belle Martin	103		Requester Docu	0.00 9

Select a purchase document from the list and then click on the **Open** subtron. The purchase request will open in a new tab and the user will be able to view the line items in the document.

Document	nent Information Special Instructions/Comments V				Vendor Information					
Document No.	13-EN	1012		Γ			-	Vendor ABC		
Description	Requisition a refridgerato	r for receiving						Nam ABC Office	e Supply	
Prepared By	Anna Belle Martin	Workflow ID 1	03							
Item ID	8/12/2015 ~	Required Date 8,	Oty Ordered	Qty Receiv	Qty Cancel	Last Date R	2. Sa	n the QTY Received ve the document to c		ng phase.
,										
	Refrigerato EA		3	3	0 0		1	3.00	8/26/2015	Anna

How do I reset receiving? (two options)

If the document is NOT 100% received – you can reset receiving for a particular line by selecting the received line and click on the **Reset Receiving** button on the bottom left:



If the document is 100% received – navigate to **Maintenance**> **Document Maintenance** , then select the document and click on the **Reset Receiving** button on the bottom left:

🗟 🏶 🚜 💿 🙀 🏶 💣 Record 1 of 1000 🛛	Q 9)	Record 1 of 1000	
----------------------------------	-----	--	--	---	------------------	--

<u>Fields/</u> Buttons	<u>Description</u>
	Click on this button to Save the current document or changes to the document.
	Click on this button to Undo changes to the items receive status.
	To view the audit trail. This window will display the progress of the document in the approval cycle. See <u>Shared Activities>Audit Trail</u> 213 for more details.
	To receive all the items in the purchase request. User will be prompted to confirm the action. Click on "Yes" if you have received all the items or click on "No". Once all the items in a purchase request have been received it will no longer be seen in the "Purchase Order Receiving List" for the user.
l T	Click on this button to Attach documents to the purchase request (i.e. e-mails, quotations, spread sheets, etc.) See <u>Shared Activities>Attachments</u> [21] for more details. Click on this button to Print a copy of the purchase request.
Qty	Enter the quantity received.
Туре	Select the appropriate option from a drop-down list. The list can be set up according to your organization's requirements. The user can select if the item was received, damaged, backordered etc.
Date	This field will default to the current date. The user can also edit this field.
Ву	This field will default to the name of the user.
Notes	Enter comments or information (if any) about the received item.
4	Click on this button to Add a new line to the current item that the user is

receiving. This button can also be used to copy the receiving information of the previous item for the next item.



Click on this button to **Delete** the selected line.

Click on this button to **Undo** the edit performed.

5.6 Query Vendors

This form gives you one-touch access to the vendor list, which can then be filtered, sorted and/or printed.

	Vendor ID	Vendor Name	Address	City	State	Zip	Status
2							
•	ABC	ABC Office Supply	161 North Lamar	Austin	TX	78755	A
	Bell	Southwestern Bell	PO Box 129800	Houston	ТΧ	78462-9800	А
	City	City Constructors	5678 Congress Avenue	Austin	ТΧ	78701	А
	CPA	Williams & Errickson, CPA's	7100 Highway 360 South Suite 210	Austin	тх	78346-5744	А
	IntSup	International Supplies	2188 Murkey Lane	Ottawa	ON	K1A 0B1	А
	ISInc	International Supplies, Inc.	2113 Clear Street	Ottawa	ON	K1A 0B1	А
	Mulberry	Mulberry & Thompson, Attor	2121 West Grand Parkway	Austin	ТΧ	78705-1111	А
	Rapid	Rapid Supplies Provider	1001 Ocean Blvd	Cancun		77500	А
	Trans	Transportation Services, Inc	1200 South Congree Avenue	Austin	ТΧ	787046455	А
	UNASSIGNED	UNASSIGNED					А
	Windell	Windell Property Management	3747 Town West Boulevard, Suite 1400	Austin	ТΧ	78705-5445	А

5.7 Query Chart of Accounts

This screen provides easy, quick access to the Chart of Accounts. You may select a segment to display all of the codes available for that segment. The users with the required security rights can also add accounts from this screen.

ag a column header here to group	p by that column			
Code	Title	Short Title	Status	
101	Health Care	Health Care	А	1
108	Allocated Health Care	Allocated Healt	A	
201	Social Service	Social Service	A	
208	Allocated Social Services	Allocated Socia	A	
301	Food Service	General Food Se	A	
308	Allocated Food Services	Allocated Food	A	
401	Day Care	Day Care	A	
408	Allocated Day Care	Allocated Day C	A	

5.8 Approve Documents

Approve Documents enables a manager or supervisor to view, edit, and approve documents that have been submitted to them for approval. This functionality can be activated for the appropriate personnel according to your organization's requirements. Click on **Approve Documents** to open a new tab displaying the list of purchase requests that an approver has to approve.



When an approver opens a document for approval the following tab opens on the approver's screen:

Documer	nt Inform	ation													
ocument No.	12.EN			1013			Dansan /	Justificatio	-		ditional In	Compation	(Ilean De	fined Field	-1
Description	Test Partia	Davi		1015			Reason/1	Justificatio	n .	Aut	utional In	ormation	(User De	nnea Fiela	5)
Prepared By	Anna Belle			Vorkflow ID 1	103	•			-						
Order Date				tequired Date 8		• •									
	8/13/2015			equired Date	5/23/2015										
Billing/Sh	ipping In	ormatio	n						-						
Bill To	Main		▼ Sh	nip To Ma	ain	- 🥥									
									Commo						
							Special II	nstruction	s/comme						
Vendor In	formatio	n					Special II	istruction	s/comme						
Vendor In Vendor ID	ABC		8.	161 North			Special II	istruction							
	ABC	-	€ √	161 North Suite 200 Austin TX)		Special II	istruction							
Vendor ID	ABC		₿ 🗸	Suite 200 Austin TX (512)555	78755 -5555 Ext		Special II	istructions							
Vendor ID	ABC	-	₽ ✓	Suite 200 Austin TX (512)555	78755			istructions							
Vendor ID	ABC ABC Offi	ce Supply	Date	Suite 200 Austin TX (512)555	78755 -5555 Ext	Price	Amount	Dist Code		Grant	GL	Progr	Dept	1117	
Vendor ID Name Item No.	ABC ABC Offi	ce Supply Units	Date	Suite 200 Austin TX (512)555 (512)555) (78755 i-5555 Ext i-5555 Ext Type			Dist Code	•	Grant	GL 18001	Progr	Dept	117	



- Click on this button to **Void** a purchase request. A dialog box will open and ask for confirmation. Click on **Yes** to confirm or click on **No** to return to the document.
- Click on this button to **Save** the current document or changes to the document.
- Click on this button to **Undo** changes to the document.
- 3

E

Click this button to **Approve** the currently opened document (refer to **Approve Documents** for more details).

Click on the **Audit Trail** button to list the progress of the document in the approval cycle (refer to **Shared Activities>Audit Trail**²¹³ for more details).

This button allows you to send an **Email** from Microix. A manager or supervisor can use this function to request the user to make changes to the document. The user can use this function to ask for additional information about a purchase request that they are creating (refer to **Shared Activities>Email**²¹) for more details).

- Click on the Attach button to add documents as attachments to the purchase request(i.e. emails, quotations, spread sheets, etc. refer to <u>Shared</u> <u>Activities>Attachments</u> [211] for more details).
 - Click on this button to **Re-Route** the purchase request to a selected user from a list. (refer to <u>Shared Activities>Re-Route</u>व्यी for more details).

Click on this button to **Print** the purchase request.

Approve Documents:

- Click on store the currently opened document. A dialog box will appear asking the user to confirm the action.
- Select **No** to return to the document. Confirm the approval action by clicking on **Yes**. A new dialog box will appear on the user's screen.

Form Printing	
Discourse and a formation of	
Please select a form layout	
Send To 🧿 Screen 🔘 Printer	🗊 Print 📗 close

- Choose the appropriate option and print the form or save the document in any other printable format.
- Click on the **Close** 🗱 button to exit from the printing option.
- Once completing or exiting the print action, a window called **Encumbrance Transfer** will appear on the user's screen.

	ption				
	e but do not transfer	to MIP			
Effective I	ate				
Date	9/21/2015			[-
Use the	original effective date	of the doc	ument		
Session No.	effective date as part	of the sess	ion nun		+
- obe ore	Purchase Order Rece	iving			
	Tarchase of der Neee				

Fields/ Description Buttons
Transfer Check this box to transfer the approved document to Abila MIP FA. Option
Effective This field will default to the current date. User can edit this field. Additionally, the user can check the box if the original effective date of the document should be used when approving the document.
Session Informati on Click on Confirm the action. Click on No to exit generating a Session No. Click on Yes to confirm the action. A session number will be generated for the document. T his field will be filled with the previous session number, by default. If an approver wants to add the purchase request to an existing session, then the Session No. can be selected from a drop-down list.
Transfer Select the appropriate option and information (attachments, comments, etc.) Transacti pertaining to the document that will be transferred to Abila MIP FA.

```
ons
```

Click on this button to process the document transfer to Abila MIP FA as an unposted batch. A new dialog box confirming the successful transfer will popup. Click **OK** to return to the **Requisition Document Approval List** window. This will complete the approval process and the document will no longer appear in this window.



Click on this button to exit the approval action. A dialog box informing the user of the action will pop-up. Click **OK** to return to the **Requisition Document Approval List** window.

5.8.1 Split Requisition

This feature of the *Requisition Module* allows a supervisor or manager to automatically split a requisition document into multiple documents based on two line-item criteria: Item Type (Inventory vs Non-Inventory) and Vendor. This results in multiple documents containing only one type of item or only one particular vendor per document.

Note: You will need to first allow vendors to be selected as a line item. Find this under **Requisitions> Setup> Options**. Check the **Allow line item vendor selection** box. Then you will log out and log back into the software.



Note: The first time you attempt to split a document, you will receive a message that it

is not at the appropriate level to split. Refer to the end of this section for information on designating the **Split Document Approval Level**.

The process works as follows: A requisition document is entered which has multiple line items. Each of these lines are marked with the desired vendor but the vendors are different. The other option would be if multiple item types were selected, some inventory, some non-inventory. The order is then submitted by the requester.

Item No.	Vendor Id		Qty		Units	Date	Description	Туре	Price	Amount	Dist Code	Fund	Grant	GL
• O101	Bell	-		2.00	EA	10/6/2015	Black Desk Chair	N/A	\$59.00	\$118.00		01	101	18001
■ M23456	ABC			5.00	EA	10/6/2015	Stethoscope Kit	N/A	\$29.99	\$149.95		01	101	18001

The approver receives the requisition document and authorizes the purchase. The approver selects the **Open** button to view the document. Noting that multiple vendors (or item types) are presented, to avoid having to split the requisition up into multiple documents manually, the approver selects the **Split Document** button:

s 🗟 🧟 📰	0 🍙	S 🖷 🕻	1 🔂 😽
			Split Document

- At this point, the software checks the transaction lines for:
- A) Multiple vendors
- B) Multiple item types
- C) Both (Note: you can only choose one or the other to split by)

Microix Workflow Modules	×
This process will split this document into multiple requisitions by vendor. Continue with split?	
Yes No	
Microix Workflow Modules	
This process will move the inventory items to a new inventory dispense document, while keeping the non-inventory items on the current document. Continue with split?	
Yes No	

Split Options	×
Please enter V for Vendor or I for Inventory Items	OK Cancel
	Cance

Affirming that the message will take the original document, keep the lines for the vendor/ item type with the most line items and then create new documents for each other vendor/item type represented. You can accomplish this by moving their line items to the new documents. The new documents will be named with the original document number prefixed with an "-S1", "-S2", etc. to link the documents together visually. At the same time, the documents will be submitted to the next approval level automatically.

Split Document Approval Level:

1. Select the **Maintenance** tab.

2. Click on **Global Options** button then select **Approval Level Title.**

3. Place a checkbox in the **Split Documents** column of the approval level for which you would like to split.

curity Organization Workflow		Document Approval Maintenance Substitution N			Product Registration						
		Application Options	tenance		5	1					
	2	Approval Level Title									1 🔎
umber Approval Lev		Document Numbers									
el 🔺 Level Title		Change Document Ownership	nsolidat	Split Docum	Warehouse	Received N	Disable EMail	Disable Edit	Disable Print	Must View	Active
0.0 Requester		Terminology									V
											V
2.0 Manager		System Login									V
3.0 IT Manager		Global Lookup									1
4.0 Director		Global Lookap									
5.0 CFO		Global Settings									
6.0 Purchasing											
7.0 N/A		System Audit Trail									
8.0 N/A	NA	Approvarin									
9.0 N/A	N/A	Approval in									
10.0 Accounting	Accountin	ng Approved 🔽		V							v
	Approval Level Title Approval Level Title Approval Level Title Approval Level Title Co.9 Preliminary Co.9 Prel	Approval Level Titles	unity Organization Workflow Global Options Document Maintenance Approval n Approval Level Title Approval Level Title Implementation options Approval Level Title Implementation Document Numbers Implementation Change Document Ownership Implementation 0.0 Requester Implementation 0.1 Supervisor Implementation 1.0 Supervisor Implementation 1.0 Director Implementation 1.0 Director Implementation 1.0 N/A V/A Approval muticity	urity Organization Options - Document Approval Post F Maintenance Substitution Messages Dr Approval Level Title	unity Organization Global Document Approval Post Forms System Approval Level Title Approval Level Title Approval Level Title Implement Implement Implement Approval Level Title Document Numbers Implement Implement Implement Implement 0.0 Requester Change Document Ownership Implement Implement Implement 0.0 Requester Implement Implement Implement Implement 0.0 Requester Implement Implement Implement Implement 0.0 Requester Implement Implement Implement Implement 0.10 Supervisor Implement Implement Implement Implement 1.0 Director Implement Implement Implement Implement	unity Organization Global Document Approval Post Forms System Product Approval Level Title Approval Level Title Image: Change Document Numbers Image: Change Document Ownership Image: Change	unity Organization Global Document Approval Post Forms System Product Approval Level Title Application Options Application Options enance rs rs Approval Level Title Document Numbers rs solidat Split Docum Warehouse Received N 0.0 Requester Terminology Implication Options Implication Options Implication Options Implication Options 0.0 Requester Document Numbers Implication Options Implication Options <td< td=""><td>Organization Workflow Options Global Maintenance Substitution Maintenance Substitution Approval Level Title Product Registration Product Registration Approval Level Title Image: Change Document Numbers Image: Change Document Ownership Image: Change Document Ownership 0.0 Requester Image: Change Document Ownership Image: Change Document Ownership Image: Change Document Ownership 0.5 Preliminary Image: Change Document Ownership Image: Change Document Ownership Image: Change Document Ownership 0.5 Preliminary Image: Change Document Ownership Image: Change Document Ownership Image: Change Document Ownership 1.0 Supervisor Image: Change Document Ownership Image: Change Document Ownership Image: Change Document Ownership Image: Change Document Ownership 1.0 Supervisor Image: Change Document Ownership Image: Change Document Ownershi</td><td>Organization Workflow Options Global Maintenance Substitution Maintenance Substitution Messages Designe Approval Level Title Product Registration Product Registration Approval Level Title Image Document Numbers Image Document Numbers Image Solidat Split Docum Warehouse Received N Disable EMail Disab</td><td>Organization Workflow Global Options Document Maintenance Subsitution Post Messages Designer Forms Alerts Registration Product Registration Approval Level Title</td><td>Organization Workflow Workflow Global Options Document Maintenance Substitution Messages Designer Alerts Registration Product Registration Approval Level Title Approval Level Title France Change Document Numbers France Substitution Change Document Ownership Solidat Split Docum Warehouse Received N Disable Edit Disable Print Must View 0.0 Requester Change Document Ownership Solidat Split Docum Warehouse Received N Disable Edit Disable Print Must View 0.0 Requester Terminology Image Image</td></td<>	Organization Workflow Options Global Maintenance Substitution Maintenance Substitution Approval Level Title Product Registration Product Registration Approval Level Title Image: Change Document Numbers Image: Change Document Ownership Image: Change Document Ownership 0.0 Requester Image: Change Document Ownership Image: Change Document Ownership Image: Change Document Ownership 0.5 Preliminary Image: Change Document Ownership Image: Change Document Ownership Image: Change Document Ownership 0.5 Preliminary Image: Change Document Ownership Image: Change Document Ownership Image: Change Document Ownership 1.0 Supervisor Image: Change Document Ownership Image: Change Document Ownership Image: Change Document Ownership Image: Change Document Ownership 1.0 Supervisor Image: Change Document Ownership Image: Change Document Ownershi	Organization Workflow Options Global Maintenance Substitution Maintenance Substitution Messages Designe Approval Level Title Product Registration Product Registration Approval Level Title Image Document Numbers Image Document Numbers Image Solidat Split Docum Warehouse Received N Disable EMail Disab	Organization Workflow Global Options Document Maintenance Subsitution Post Messages Designer Forms Alerts Registration Product Registration Approval Level Title	Organization Workflow Workflow Global Options Document Maintenance Substitution Messages Designer Alerts Registration Product Registration Approval Level Title Approval Level Title France Change Document Numbers France Substitution Change Document Ownership Solidat Split Docum Warehouse Received N Disable Edit Disable Print Must View 0.0 Requester Change Document Ownership Solidat Split Docum Warehouse Received N Disable Edit Disable Print Must View 0.0 Requester Terminology Image Image

5.9 Document Search

Refer to **Shared Activities>Document List**²¹ for more details.

5.10 Reports

This function enables the user to generate reports for **Document List** with **Receiving Information** and **Requisition/PO** reports (refer to <u>Shared Activities>Reports</u> [219] for more details).

5.11 Display Account Balance

Managers can utilize this form to view the available funds for any of their assigned accounts.

Filte	r Informat	tion								Report Type			
ron	n 1/1/	2015	То	12/31/2015	E	Workflow Prog	ram Services		\mathbf{P}	[Default Layo	out]	🔎 📊 s	ave 🔀 Delete
etai	il View Su	mmary View	Chart										
Acct	Туре 🔻												
GL		Fund	Dept	Account Title	Fund Title	Dept Title	Budget	Actual	Encumbrance	Balance	Un-Posted	Microix	Available
~	Acct Typ	e: EXP											
		01	201	Direct Child	Operating F	Program Ser	\$0.00	\$1,015.90	\$0.00	(\$1,015.90)	\$0.00	\$0.00	(\$1,015.90)
	⊞ 64001			Direct Child			\$1,026.59	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$1,026.59	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$1,026.59
	⊞ 63001	05	401	Direct Medic	Federal Gra	Executive Di	\$0.00	\$9.96	\$0.00	(\$9.96)	\$0.00	\$0.00	(\$9.96)
	⊞ 63001	05	301	Direct Medic	Federal Gra	Accounting	\$0.00	\$59.80	\$0.00	(\$59.80)	\$0.00	\$0.00	(\$59.80)
	⊞ 63001	04	201	Direct Medic	State Grant	Program Ser	\$0.00	\$27.41	\$0.00	(\$27.41)	\$0.00	\$0.00	(\$27.41)
	⊞ 63001	04	101	Direct Medic	State Grant	Administration	\$0.00	\$1,710.15	\$0.00	(\$1,710.15)	\$0.00	\$0.00	(\$1,710.15)
							(\$611,282	(\$982,237	(\$18,657.76)	(\$389,613	(\$40.00)	(\$539.75)	(\$390,193.07)
-							(+/	(1111)	(1//	(+	(+)	(1)	(1

<u>Fields/</u>Description Buttons

From Select the date for viewing the budget information.

To Select the date up to which purchase requests should be included in the report.

Workflo Select the workflow from a drop-down list by clicking on \checkmark .

<u>Field/</u> Button	Description
Q	Click on this button to View the result.
	Click on this button to Export the result in Excel (.xls) format. The user will be prompted to save the file.
T	Click on this button to Prin t a copy of the result.

P

Click on this button to Exit the Display Account Balance form.

Note: To group the data, drag a column header to the grey shaded area and the system will adjust the resulting table according to the selected column.

5.12 Shopping List

The *Requisition Module* **Shopping Cart** provides a method for users to add and maintain the items that are available for selecting on a purchase request. This allows users to add line items to their purchase requisition without having to enter the entire information manually.

The user can select the **Shopping Cart** tab from the *Requisition/Purchase Order Module* ribbon menu. The following window will open on the user's screen:

-	here to group by that co						
ItemID	Status	Description	Category	GLCode	DistCode	TypeID	
± X102	A	Paper	Office Supplies	57001		N/A	
⊞ X103	A	Pens	Office Supplies	57001		N/A	
⊞ X104	A	Pencil	Office Supplies	57001		N/A	
⊞ x105	A	Paperclips	Office Supplies	57001		N/A	
⊞ X123123	A	Test	TEst	14001			

Field/ Description Button

Click on this button to Add a new item to the Global Item List. Click on the button to add item details. Once the item is saved in the global list, then users can add it directly to their purchase request.



Click on this button to **Delete** a selected item.



Click on this button to **Save** the added item to the list.



Click on this button to **Cancel** the previous edit performed to the item list.



Click on this button to **Import** items from an Excel sheet(refer to <u>Shared</u> <u>Activities>Import from Excel</u> [216] for more details).



Click on this button to **Print** a copy of the item list.



6 Inventory Module

6.1 Introduction

The *Microix Inventory Module* is a feature-rich tool that allows you to efficiently and effectively manage your inventory. It works hand-in-hand with *Microix's Requisition/ Purchase Order Module* to leverage off of a proven workflow approval process.

Highlights:

- Easy to navigate and use.
- Simple and easy to learn.
- Real-time item availability for ordering.
- Multi-warehouse item storage management.
- One-touch reporting for demand, stock levels and valuation.
- Barcode support.
- Adjustments.
- Physical count sheets.

The Inventory Module caters to two types of individuals - those that will manage the inventory and those who will order the inventory items for use. Each of the inventory ribbon menu options are detailed below. Follow this link: Internetory Module>Create New Inventory Documents [113] for details about the Requisition/Purchase Order Module functions that are used by inventory.



Menu Item Description
My Lists all inventory adjustments documents you have created in Microix. Allows
Inventory you to add new adjustments, including beginning balances, edit your existing
Adjustmen entries and submit the adjustments for approval within the workflow process.
<u>ts</u> [98]
<u>Inventory</u> Quick order entry feature for creating a request for items from inventory.
<u>Shopping</u>
Items 102
Inventory Enter and maintain the inventory items
Items 102
Inventory Shows the stock level status of each item in inventory, highlighting those Stock Level that require attention when validated against pre-determined rules
107
<u>Produce_A</u> Production screen allowing creation of assemblies based on location

<u>Produce A</u> Production screen allowing creation of assemblies based on location <u>ssemblies</u>

Menu Item	Description
Inventory	Warehouse function to pick items from inventory
<u>Picking</u> 109 Inventory	Warehouse function to receive items into inventory
Receiving	
<u>Item</u>	Prints labels for stocking inventory items
<mark>Labels</mark> 110 Physical	Create physical count sheets and enter updated inventory counts
<u>Count</u> 111	
<u>Approve</u> Adjustmer	Approve adjustments that are submitted to you for approval
ts 112	
<u>Setup</u> l໑6້ າ	Setup the system-wide costing and general ledger account information for inventory

6.2 Inventory Module Checklist

Check list items for implementing the Inventory Module

- \checkmark <u>Setup</u> scot method and general ledger accounts to be used.
- ✓ Enter or import <u>Inventory Items</u> 102.
- ✓ Import Inventory <u>Item Images</u>¹⁰⁶ (optional).
- ✓ Enter or import item <u>beginning balances</u> 98[®].

Check list items for ongoing maintenance

- ✓ Enter or import inventory adjustments [98].
- ✓ Periodically perform physical count 1111.

6.3 Setup

The first step that must be completed before using the *Inventory Module* is the **Setup** section. The cost method, default general ledger accounts for specific inventory type transactions, inventory segment and offset entries in MIP are entered using the **Setup** screen. This activity generally needs to be done only one time.

Options											
Cost Method LIFO 🔻											
	Auto-Rec	eive	All Document	ts		Auto-Fulfill All Documents					
Enable Inventory Encumbrance Transfers						Use Cost On Sales Orders					
	Restrict t	o Inv	entory Items	s Only on Reque	st fro	m Inventory [Docu	iments			
36	eneral Le	dge	r								
Sales Returns Account			46501	46501 💌		-	Inventory Location Segment	Fund			
Due From GL Account 14001 Due to GL Account 24001				14001			-	Inventory Location Default	N/A		
				24001 👻			Physical Inventory Adjustment Account	18001			
ri	ce Adjustm	ent A	Account (obs	olete)	-			Beginning Balance Clearing Account	18001		
Co	nvert Acco	unt T	уре								
In	ventory	Offs	ets for Ac	counts Paya	ble	Inventor	y Lo	ocation Default Values by Workfl	ow		
	Source		Currency	Fund		GL		Offset Fund	Offset GL		
•	API	-	ANY	01		18001		01	20000		
	API		ANY	01		18002		01	20000		
-											
R	ecord 1 of	2 9	} 💥 								

<u>Fields/</u> Buttons	<u>Description</u>
Cost Method	FIFO, LIFO, STD or AVG. Because of the importance of this field to the application, it is set one-time and then locked.
Auto- Receive All	If your organization does not require the warehouse action of receiving inventory, this option should be selected. The application will automatically receive inventory into stock when documents are transferred to Abila MIP.
Documen ts	
Auto- Fulfill All	If your organization does not require the warehouse action of fulfilling/picking inventory, this option should be selected. The application will automatically decrease the inventory in stock when documents are transferred to Abila MIP. If Lot, Serial Number or Expire Date are set up as required entry fields for an item, the Auto-Fulfill option will override that requirement.
Sales	General ledger account for Sales Returns.

Fields/ Description Buttons

Returns

Account

Due From Not currently being used by the application.

GL

Account

Due To GL Not currently being used by the application.

Account

Inventory The general ledger segment that will designate the inventory location. Because **Location** of the importance of this field to the application, it is set one time and then **Segment** locked.

Physical General ledger account for adjustments. Inventory Adjustme nt Account Beginning General ledger account for beginning balances. Balance Clearing Account Convert This option converts inventory accounts to Other Assets and Other Assets to Account inventory type accounts. Use with caution, or as directed. Type

Inventory Offsets for Accounts Payable

Use this grid to set up the inventory offset accounts in the Abila MIP Fund Accounting database. This must be set up before transferring any inventory transactions to Abila MIP.

Inventory Locations Default Values by Workflow

Use this grid to set up the inventory locations default values. Specify the default location and the master warehouse for each workflow.

6.4 My Inventory Adjustments

Inventory adjustments are made to adjust quantity or to adjust inventory cost. There are two types of inventory adjustments – standard inventory adjustments and beginning balances. An item must have a beginning balance before it can be requisitioned. The quantity on hand for the beginning balance is updated when the inventory adjustment is approved and transferred to Abila MIP.

My **Inventory Adjustments** displays a list of all inventory adjustment documents created by the login user.

S	tati	JS 🔺						
T	Do	: Туре	Туре	Document No	Date	Document Description	Workflow ID	Total
T	v	0 - New [Documents					
		ADJ	Inventory Adjustment	ADJ-1144	11/7/2012	Adjustment - Toner Cartridge	100	-305.98
1		ADJ	Inventory Adjustment	ADJ-1143	11/7/2012	Office Supplies Adjustments for Water Damage	100	-83.38
1				2				-389.36
	v	10 - Acce	ounting Documents					
		ADJ	Inventory Adjustment	ADJ-1134	11/1/2012	Physical Inventory Adjustments	100	-50.00
				1				-50.00
	Y	14 - Doc	ument Transferred to MIP					
		ADJ	Inventory Beginning Balance	ADJ-1140	11/7/2012	Office Supplies Beginning Balances	100	20,997.00
		ADJ	Inventory Adjustment	ADJ-1131	10/23/2012	IPhone Cost Change	100	900.00
				6				\$31,327.64
e	cor	d1of6						Þ

Buttons Description Image: second second

Print a copy of the **My Inventory Adjustments** list.

6.4.1 Create New Inventory Adjustment

To create a new inventory adjustment click on the **New button** located at the bottom of the **My Inventory Adjustments** screen.

Document	Information							
Document Number	r ADJ	To Be Assi 76	Co	mments				
Date	8/26/2015		•					
Description								-
Prepared By	Anna Belle Ma	tin						
Norkflow	Program Servi	ces	•					
Adjustment Type	Inventory Beginning Balance							*
	Value	Title						
Transactions	В	Inventory Beginning Balance						
Item Number	C N	Inventory Cost Adjustment Inventory Quantity Adjustment	Fund	Grant	GL	Progr	Dept	117
	N	Inventory Quantity Adjustment	Fund	Grant	GL	Progr	Dept	117

Document Information

<u>Fields/</u> Buttons	Description
Ductons	
Docume	The system will automatically assign a number to each new inventory
nt	adjustment document.
Number Date	The current Date will be defaulted in this field but can be overridden.
Descript on	iEnter a general Description of the adjustment.
	dYour login will appear in this field in read-only mode.
	The system will automatically default your Workflow ID in this field. If you
w	belong to multiple Workflows , click on the Down row to select a different Workflow .
Adjustm ent Type	Inventory Beginning Balance or Inventory Adjustment.
	nEnter any Comments that will provide additional information or special instructions.
	Delete the current adjustment document.
	Save changes to the adjustment document.
	Undo the last changes.
	Submit the adjustment document for approval.
E	View the Audit Trail . This window will display the progress of the document in the approval cycle (refer to Shared Activities>Audit Trail 13) for more details).

Use this button to send **Email** correspondence (refer to <u>Shared</u> <u>Activities>Email</u>²¹⁰ for detailed instructions on how to send **Email** messages).

<u>Fields/</u> <u>Buttons</u>	
Ø	Use this button to Attach any electronic files to your adjustment document (refer to Shared Activities>Attachments and for detailed instructions on how to include attachments).
T	Print a copy of the adjustment document

Transactions

Field Butto		<u>Description</u>
Item		Use the pick list to select the inventory item to be adjusted.
Num	ber	
Desc	riptio	This field will fill with the Description of the item selected.
n		
Туре		"In" or "Out" to indicate whether the adjustment is adding to or deleting from inventory. Beginning balance adjustments can only be "In".
Quan	ntity	Number of units of the adjustment.
Unit	Cost	Unit Cost of the adjustment.
Amo	unt	The system will automatically calculate the quantity ordered with the unit cost.
Gene Ledg		Segments will default based on the definitions entered in the inventory setup and items master but can be changed.
-	nents	
-	•	Open a new row to add an adjustment.
1	×	Delete the selected line.
L	3	Cancel the edit performed on the selected field.
d	4	Import a spreadsheet to create the adjustment transactions (refer to Shared Activities>Import from Excel [216] for more details).

6.5 Inventory Shopping Items

This function gives requesters a way to view a list of the inventory items, with their current quantity on hand, and quickly create either an Internal Purchase or Sales Order type requisition. The list of items available to the user is filtered based on the security set up in the workflows in which the user is a requester.

	Select	Order Qty	Product Image	Item No.	Location	Description	Category	QOH	UOM	List Price
9			No image data							
		0		iPhone	101	IPhone	Phone	95	EA	\$61.2
		0		WP7	101	Windows 7 Phone	Phone	22	EA	\$48.7

Click on the **Select** check box to choose which items to order, enter the **Order Qty** for each, then select either **Internal Purchase** or **Sales Order** and then click **Create Order** to generate the order document.

6.6 Inventory Items

Inventory Items must be entered or imported into the items master table before they will be available for processing. Clicking on the **Inventory Items** ribbon menu button will display a list of all the inventory items in the system.

	Item ID	Status	Description	Туре	Category 📍	Sub-Category	Preferred Vendor
P					Office		
1	220512	A	Multi-Use Copy Paper 8 1/2 X 11, 5000 Sheets per Case	Inventory	Office		
	226151	А	Laserjet Black Toner Cartridge	Inventory	Office		
	227800	А	Colored File Folders - Box of 100	Inventory	Office		
	Start	s with([Cate	egory], 'Office')				Edit Fil

Butto ns	Description Create New Inventory Item ¹⁰³ ।
	Edit an existing inventory item.
Q	Detailed report screen of item movement in and out of stock.
4	 There are two types of inventory imports available from the Import button pull-down menu: 1.) Import Items from Spreadsheet - Import a spreadsheet to create the new inventory items (refer to <u>Shared Activities>Import from Excel</u>^[216] for more details). 2.) Import Item Images - Import images stored on disk (refer to <u>Inventory</u> <u>Module>Inventory Items>Import Item Images</u>^[106] for more details).
T	Print a copy of the Inventory Items list.

6.6.1 Create New Inventory Item

To create a new inventory item click on the **New** button located at the bottom of the **Inventory Items** list screen.

Item In	format	tion			Sales Info	ormation				× 🖬 👌	F
item Num	ber	0001			Sales GL	46501	-	Item Ima			
Barcode N	No.	10111212			COGS GL	67000	-		2		
Descriptio	n	Walmart			🔲 Item is i	taxable					
Category		Gift Card		•							
SubCateg	ory	Walmart		-	Tracking	Requirement	S				
Product T	ype	Inventory		-	🗌 Lot 📝	Serial 📃 Exp	iration Date				
Status		A		-	Bin/She	lf					
Purchas	se Info	rmation			Dimension U		•		No image o	lata	
		ntory at the time	e of purchase		Length		0 ‡				
		UNASSIGNED		-	Height		0 ‡				
nventory	/ GL	18002		~							
xpense	GL	62001		-	Width		0 ‡				
urchase	UOM	EA 🔻 Conv	version Ratio	1 🗘	Weight UON	1	*				
nventory	UOM	EA		•	Weight		0 ‡				_
uantity	on Hand	and Stock Level	Rules Vendor	UOM/Barcode	BAL/Fund Ac	count Default Va	lue Items/Ma	aterials Comm	nents		
Locat	ion	Default Bin	Min Stock L	Max Stock	Warning Level	Re-Order Qty	Standard/A	Sale Price	List Price	Misc Price	-
• 01			5	13	8	10	\$20.00	\$25.00	\$25.00	\$25.00	

There is the capability to capture extensive information about each item, although not all fields may be relevant or necessary to your organization. The fields that are highlighted with green are required.

Item Information

<u>Fields/</u> Buttons	Description
Item	Unique identifier for the inventory item
Number	
Descript	i Description that will appear with the item number to identify the item.
on	
Categor	User-defined global lookup to help organize the items.
У .	
	Always set to "Inventory".
Туре	
	Unique number to be used with barcode readers.
No.	
Sub-	Additional user-defined global lookup to be used along with Category .
Categor	
У	
Status	"A" (Active) or "I" (Inactive). Only Active items will be available for ordering.

Purchase Information

Fields/ Description Buttons
Preferre Used by the Inventory Stock Level form for re-ordering.
d Vendor
Inventor Inventory general ledger account for the item.
y GL
Expense General ledger account to use for expensing the item.
GL
Purchasi Unit of measure used during purchasing of the inventory item.
ng UOM
Conversi Ratio between the purchasing and inventory UOM.
on Ratio
Inventor Unit of measure inventory items are stored and sold in.
y UOM

Sales Information

<u>Fields/ Description</u> Buttons

Sales GL General ledger account to use for the selling of the item.

Tracking Indicate whether the item will be tracked by Lot Number, Serial Number and/or **Require** Expiration Date. If any of these requirements are set, this information must be entered by the warehouse during inventory picking.

Dimensions

The dimension fields: Length, Width, Height, etc. are used for informational purposes only and are not required.

Additional Information

Microix provides user-defined fields to allow for additional categorizing of the inventory items to specific organization requirements.

Field/ Button	<u>Description</u>
Commen ts	Free-form text to add any information concerning the item.
Item Image	An image of the item can be uploaded into the database and is displayed on the Inventory Shopping Items form to help users identify items when creating inventory requests. To upload the image use the pop-up menu shown when you right-click in the picture box.

<u>Fields/</u> Button	Description
	Delete the inventory item.
	Save changes to the inventory item.
0	Undo/Cancel the last changes.
E	Print a copy of the inventory item information.

Quantity On Hand and Stock Level Rules

Once the beginning balance inventory adjustments are entered or imported, this grid will show a line for each location where the item is stored. The stock level rules and pricing fields can then be updated.

<u>Fields/</u> <u>Buttons</u>	<u>Description</u>
Location	Location of the warehouse where the item is stored. This is a read-only field.
Bin	Bin where the item is kept in the location. Not currently being used.
Min	These fields are used by the Inventory Stock Level screen to identify items
Stock	that need re-order attention.
Level,	
Max	
Stock	
Level,	
Warning	
Level	
Re-Orde	rDefault Re-Order Quantity shown on the Inventory Stock Level screen.
Qty	
Standard Cost	Used for the standard costing method. Determined by inventory adjustments.
Sales	Used for Sales Orders and Sales Order Returns,
Price &	
List Price	2
Misc	User-defined price. Not currently being used.
Price	

6.6.2 Import Item Images

The *Inventory Module* allows images of the inventory items to be stored in the database. These item images are displayed on the **Inventory Items** maintenance form and as well on the **Inventory Shopping Items** list. Images can be imported one-by-one by opening the **Inventory Items** maintenance form and loading the image into the picture box or multiple images can be imported at one time using the **Import Item Images** feature. You would use this feature after you have entered or imported your inventory items. The items must exist in the database before the images can be imported.

To prepare to import the images en-masse, you should copy all the images you want to import into a single directory. Therefore, that function will know which inventory item to link their respective image to. You must name the image with the item's ID. Once you have the images named properly, stored in a single directory, you are ready to to import.

Click on the **Import Item Images** pull-down menu selection of the **Import** button. The **Browse For Folder** dialog box will be displayed.

Browse For Folder	_	X
 E Desktop Ibraries Ickie Image: Computer Image: Control Panel Image: Recycle Bin 		
Make New Folder	ОК	Cancel

Browse to the directory where the images are housed and click the **OK** button. The process will load each image into the database, linking it to its respective item. If an item is not found in the database, then the process will notify the user and give them the option to continue or not. The user will also be notified when the process has completed and all the images loaded.

6.7 Inventory Stock Level

This feature is designed for the Purchasing Manager to have an easy method for assessing the current status of each inventory item in stock and creating an inventory purchase order to reorder those items that require it. The list of items available to the user is filtered based on the security set up in the workflows in which the user is a requester.

Select	Item No.	Description	Location	Default Bin	Status	Туре	Category	QOH	Requested	Available	Returns	Ordered	Min Level	Max Level	Warning	Vendor	Re-Order Oty	Last Cost	UOM
															Leve		217		
	F100	Dozen W	01		Re-Order	Inventory	Food	6	3	3	0	0	3	8	5		0	\$3.99 8	A
	F101	Box of O			Good	Inventory	Food	25	20.2		0			31	19		,	\$1.99 E	
	F102	Gallon of			Good	Inventory	Food	20			0			25	15		0	\$2.29 8	
	F102	Slice Brea			Good	Inventory	Food	12			0				9		0	\$2.29	
	F104	Butter Pack			Good	Inventory	Food	30			0				23		0	\$0.99 5	
	F105	Cooking Oil			Over Stock	Inventory	Food	35			0			44	26		0	\$3.99 6	
	M100	Stethosc			Good	Inventory	Medical	10			0				8		0	\$29.99 8	
	M101	Wheel Chair			Good	Inventory	Medical	5			0				4		0	\$499.00 8	
	M102	Disposabl	01		Good	Inventory	Medical	30	0	30	0	0	15	38	23		0	\$6.99 8	A
	M103	Pack of D	01		Low	Inventory	Medical	50	22	28	0	0	25	63	38		0	\$4.99 8	A
	M104	Box of F	01		Good	Inventory	Medical	60	0	60	0	0	30	75	45		0	\$1.99 E	A
	M105	Magenta	01		Good	Inventory	Medical	10	0	10	0	0	5	13	8		0	\$35.00 E	A
	O100	Cherry M	01		Low	Inventory	Office Su	2	0	2	0	0	1	3	2		0	\$899.00 E	A
	0101	Black Des	01		Good	Inventory	Office Su	5	0	5	0	0	3	6	4		0	\$59.00 E	A
	O102	HP Laser	01		Over Stock	Inventory	Office Su	9	0	9	0	6	2	4	2		0	\$499.00 E	A
	O103	Copy Pap	01		Good	Inventory	Office Su	10	0	10	0	0	5	13	8		0	\$25.00 E	A
	0104	Pen (Pkg.)	01		Good	Inventory	Office Su	15	0	15	0	0	8	19	11		0	\$10.99 E	A

When the screen is loaded, the **Status** column is initialized by comparing the quantity onhand against the various stock level settings. The **Status** will be set to one of: **Re-Order** , **Low**, **Good** or **Over Stock**. The items with the status other than **Good** are color-coded as well to highlight those lines as possibility needing attention. The stock levels rules, along with the reorder quantity are set on the **Inventory Items** setup screen.

To place an inventory purchase order, the Purchasing Manager clicks on the **Select** check box next to the items they want to order and enters the **Re-Order Qty** for each. After all the items are selected, clicking the **Create Order** button will generate the inventory purchase order document.

6.8 **Produce Assemblies**

Assembly Parameters	5
Assembly	-
Location	
Quantity	Unit Cost
Required Information	L
Serial Number	
Expiration Date	
6.9 Inventory Picking and Receiving

Inventory Picking and Inventory Receiving are warehouse processes that work almost exactly the same. Each respective ribbon menu selection will show a list of documents that are ready for processing. If Inventory Picking is clicked, the documents ready for picking are shown. If Inventory Receiving is clicked, the documents ready for receiving are shown. Picking and receiving can both be completed with a hand scanner and the Import Barcode Data option which is covered at the end of this section. First, let's cover the manual process:

	Bud	aet Dequisit	ion/Purchase (order In	ventory T	imesheet	Maintenance	Support				
		iget Requisit	iony-urchase c									
			<u>#</u> 7	±	*					-		ĻŤ
	Inventory ustments	Inventory Shopping Items	Inventory Items	Inventory Stock Level	Produce Assemblies	Warehouse	Item Phys Labels Cou		Approve Adjustmer		t Reports S	etup *
	Activi	ties 🖓		Inventory	- E	Die Die	dia a		a l	Accountin)g	- Fa
on	ne Page	Inventory Picking	x				cking					
						Re	ceiving					
Dr	ag a colum	n header here to	group by that	column			ceiving					
-	-					Im	port Barcode	Data no	a	-		P: 1 1 Pr
	Doc Type	Туре	Document	Date	Req By	(axiii)	pontourcouc	Data ID	Customer/	Document	Total	Picked %
9												
•	ENC	Request It	13-EN-1011	8/12/2015	8/22/2015	Anna Belle	Request It	103	Anna Belle	10 - Accou	\$109.78	0.00 %
	ENC	Request It	13-EN-103	9/4/2015	9/14/2015	Anna Belle	Test Split	103	Anna Belle	1 - Superv	\$503.28	0.00 %
	ENC	Request It	13-EN-104	10/6/2015	10/16/2015	Anna Belle	2 Vendors	103	Anna Belle	2 - Manag	\$267.95	0.00 %
_												
											Open	Print
											open 🔄	Fine

Click the **Open** button to load the document to be processed.

Document I	Information			Specia	al Instructi	ons/Comm	IE	Vendor Inf	ormation		
Document No.	13-EN 10	11				-		Vendor ID	UNASSIGNE	D	
Description	Request Item - for	picking						Name			
Prepared By	Anna Belle M Wo	rkflow ID	03					Dilling / Chi			
Order Date	8/12/2015 - Rec	quired Date 8	/22/2					Billing/Shi	oping Inform	nation	
								Bill To	Main	Ship To	Main
		Ob. Ord	Qty Pick	Qty Can	Last Dat	OOH	Qty Pi	cked Qty Car	Date Pic	Picked By	Notes
Item ID	Item Des Unit Type	Qty Ord	Sed License	del anun							

Nothing in the document can be changed except for the picking/receiving information: QtyPicked, Qty Cancelled, Date Picked, Picked By, and Notes. The system will automatically set the **Date** to the current date and **By** field to the current user.

Not all the items on the order have to be picked/received at one time but they must all be

before the document can be approved and transferred to MIP (the one exception to this requirement is inventory vendor purchase orders that are transferred to MIP as encumbrances). Once an item is picked/received and the screen exited, that line cannot be changed when returning to the screen to complete the process. The picking/receiving action updates the quantity on hand of that item in stock. Once an item is picked, the quantity picked no longer exists in stock. When an item is received, the quantity received is then available for use.

6.10 Item Labels

The *Inventory Module* will allow you to print barcode labels for your inventory items. Input desired number to print, select the range of items to print, click the checkbox to apply, then choose the **Print** button to view/print the result.

Note: The default item labels print for Avery 8160 - Easy Peel Address Labels, compatible with template 5160.

Note: The default three-column layout allows for inventory ID's up to 7 characters. For inventory ID's up to 13 characters, utilize this other article to create a custom two-column layout. For ID's over 13 characters, you would create a custom one-column layout.

Note: When designing Item ID's, avoid using special characters. Stick to alpha-numeric only.

Navigate to **Inventory > Item Labels.**

- 1. Input the quantity of labels per item you would like to print.
- 2. Select the range of items for which you would like to print labels.

3. Choose the green checkbox located near the **Quantity** to print input box. After choosing the green checkbox, you will see the "Print Quantity" update with the quantity chosen.

4. Choose the **Print** icon to view/print the resulting set of item labels.

			🌣 🖺				b 📑 🕂	t i	
	entory Invento ing Items Items		roduce Warehou semblies		ount Tracking	Approve Docum Adjustments Search		p	
Activities	6	Inventory	G.	Warehouse	G	Accour		6	
me Page Item La	bels ×	4							
t Quantity to Print	1 1	Inventory P	roducts	C Asset It	tems				
rag a columy	ere to group by th	at column							
-	Barcode No		-				1		
Item No									
	bar coue no	Description	Туре	Category	Sub-Category	 Purchase UOM 	Conversion Ratio	Inventory UOM	Print Quantity
	barcoue no								Print Quantity
	barcoverno	Silicone Sealant		Category	Sub-Category Misc	EA		Inventory UOM	
0001	barcove no		Inventory						Print Quantity
	barcoce no	Silcone Sealant	Inventory Inventory	Misc	Misc	EA	1	1 EA	
0001	Dis Louis Ho	Silcone Sealant Roll of Insulation	Inventory Inventory Inventory	Misc Misc	Misc Misc	EA EA		1 EA 1 EA	
0001	bar code no	Silicone Sealant Roll of Insulation Caulk	Inventory Inventory Inventory Inventory	Misc Misc Misc	Misc Misc Misc	EA EA EA		1 EA 1 EA 1 EA	
0001	barcove no	Silicone Sealant Roll of Insulation Caulk Weather Stripping	Inventory Inventory Inventory Inventory Inventory	Misc Misc Misc	Misc Misc Misc Misc	EA EA EA EA	3	1 EA 1 EA 1 EA 1 EA	
0001		Silicone Sealant Roll of Insulation Caulk Weather Stripping Rubberization S	Inventory Inventory Inventory Inventory Inventory Inventory	Misc Misc Misc Misc Misc	Misc Misc Misc Misc Misc	EA EA EA EA EA		1 EA 1 EA 1 EA 1 EA 1 EA	
0001 000 000 000 000 000 000	718103011495	Silicone Sealant Roll of Insulation Caulk Weather Stripping Rubberization S Gutter	Inventory Inventory Inventory Inventory Inventory Inventory Inventory	Misc Misc Misc Misc Misc Misc	Misc Misc Misc Misc Misc	EA EA EA EA EA EA		1 EA 1 EA 1 EA 1 EA 1 EA 1 EA 1 EA	

Result:

			0002		
Description	Silcone Sealant	Description	Roll of Insulation	Description	Caulk
NOM	EA	UOM	EA	UOM	EA
	0004		0005		
Description	Weather Stripping	Description	Rubberization Sealant	Description	Gutter
UOM	EA	UOM	A statement of the stat	UOM	EA.

6.11 Physical Count

The **Physical Count** function of the *Inventory Module* provides a method for creating count sheets to be used to do the manual count of the actual inventory in stock.

Dra	g a column h	eader here to group	by that colum	าท								
I	temID	Description	Location	Category	Unit of Meas	Default Bin	QOH	Physical Count	Count By	Date Counted	Notes	Variance
•												
F	100	Dozen White	01	Food	EA		6					
F	101	Box of Oatm	01	Food	EA		25					
F	102	Gallon of Milk	01	Food	EA		20					
F	103	Slice Bread (01	Food	EA		12					
F	104	Butter Pack	01	Food	EA		30					
F	105	Cooking Oil	01	Food	EA		35					
N	1100	Stethoscope Kit	01	Medical	EA		10					
P	1101	Wheel Chair	01	Medical	EA		5					
P	1102	Disposable Gl	01	Medical	EA		30					
N	1103	Pack of Disp	01	Medical	EA		50					
P	1104	Box of Facial	01	Medical	EA		60					
P	1105	Magenta Scr	01	Medical	EA		10					
0	0100	Cherry Maho	01	Office Supplies	EA		2					
0	0101	Black Desk C	01	Office Supplies	EA		5					
0	0102	HP Laser Col	01	Office Supplies	EA		3					
0	0103	Copy Paper (01	Office Supplies	EA		10					

A count sheet is created by first selecting the location and then clicking on the ^w icon. The process generates a count sheet for all active items in stock for the location selected, along with the current quantity on hand for each. The count sheet is then printed using the **Print** button at the bottom of the screen and distributed to the warehouse personnel that are tasked with doing the count. The count sheet includes a barcode which can be used with a barcode reader to facilitate the process.

After the physical count is completed, the results are entered onto the screen or imported from the barcode reader. The information captured is the physical count quantity, the person who completed the count, the date the count was completed (defaults to the current date), and any relevant Notes. The variance between the quantity on hand and the physical count is calculated by the application and shown on the screen.

After all the items are entered, an inventory adjustment can be created automatically using the **Create ADJ** button. The create adjustment process will create one inventory adjustment document for all the items that have a variance. The document can then be routed through the approval process and the inventory in stock will be adjusted accordingly.

The count sheets are saved in the database and can be audited at any time.

6.12 Approve Adjustments

Approve Adjustments works exactly the same as **the <u>Requisition Module Approve</u>** <u>**Documents**</u> [86]. The inventory adjustments that are available for transfer to MIP are

listed. After Accounting reviews and validates a document they will click the is icon to approve it and load the transfer screen. Clicking the **Process** button will then transfer the adjustment document transactions to MIP.

Document I	nform	ation			-					
Description Inver Prepared By Anna Workflow Progr Adjustment Type Inver Transactions	8/11/2 Invent Anna E Progra	tory QTY adjust 5 out 10 in Belle Martin m Services		Session Information Session No. 15379310193 • + Use the effective date as part of the session number Document Information Voucher Number ADJ-1003						
ansactions	actions		-	Date 9/21/2015 📵						
	ment Type Inventory Quantity Adjustment actions mNumber F101 TBox of Oatmeal Pancake Mix	Т	Process Cancel	Fund	Grant	GL 18001	Progr	Dept	117	
			I		01	101	18001			
					9.95					

The quantity on hand of each inventory item on an adjustment document is not updated until the adjustment is transferred to MIP.

6.13 Create New Inventory Document

Instead of building new tools for entering and managing inventory documents, the *Workflow Modules* application utilizes the established *Requisition/Purchase Order Module* for these tasks. The *Requisition/Purchase Order Module* forms have been updated to include inventory specific features and requirements. Please navigate to the **Requisition Module>My Documents** [71] and **Requisition Module>Approve Document** [86] tabs for all the details about how to enter and manage a document through the workflow process. When creating an inventory document, the **Document Type** will either be "PO/Requisition" or "Sales Order". The inventory specific transaction types are documented in the following sections.

Document Opt	tions:	
Document Type Transaction Type	PO/Req	uisition
	Standar	d Requisition
Number Prefix	Туре	Description
	I	Request Items from Inventory
Accounts Payable	N	Standard Requisition
	R	Return Items to Inventory Warehouse transfer
Show all open	**	Waterloade a ansier
Vendor ID		
	x	

Transaction TypeDescription

Request Items from Use this selection to order inventory items from stock for internal use. Inventory 114 This type of transaction is used when items order on a Request Items Return Items to from Inventory document, are returned to be put back into stock. Inventory 115 Inventory Purchase Order inventory items from a vendor to replenish stock. Order 116 Request Inventory Used by multi-warehouse organizations to move stock from one location to another. Transfer 117 Sales Order 118 Use this type of requisition to sell inventory to customer. Sales Order ReturnThis type of transaction is used when items order on a Sales Order 119 document, are returned to be put back into stock.

6.13.1 Request Items from Inventory

A **Request Items from Inventory** requisition is an internal purchase request. In other words, a request from inventory from an individual within your organization. The **Request Items from Inventory** transactions detail grid is the same as the regular purchase order/ requisition except that columns that are not applicable to this type of transaction are not shown - to help the user with ease of data entry.

2	Docume	nt Info	rmatio	n								
	Item No.	♥ Qty	Units	Date	Description	Type	Unit	Amount	Dist Code	Fund	Grant	GL
	⊞ F102	12.00	EA	10/2/2015	Gallon of Milk	N/A	\$2.29	\$27.48	N/A	01	101	60001
Þ	⊞ F101	24.00	EA	10/2/2015	Box of Oatmeal Pancake Mix	N/A	\$1.99	\$47.76	N/A	01	101	60001
*												

<u>Fields/</u> Buttons	Description	
ltem No.	Enter the inventory item number or use the Magnifying from a list of items.	${ ho}$ button to choose

Qty Item Quantity.

Units Read-only field which defaults to the Inventory UOM from the **Inventory Items** master.

Date The current **Date** will be defaulted in this field, which can be changed. This field is used in MIP as the effective date of the transaction line.

Descriptio Defaults to the Description from the Inventory Items master but can be

Fields/ Buttons	
n	changed.
Туре	Accept the default ``N/A". Other types are not applicable to this type of transaction.

General
LedgerSegments will default based on the definitions entered in the inventory setup
and items master. Segments that are read-only are highlighted in grey. The
others can be changed.

One feature of this type of transaction is the capability to order kits. Follow this link: **Inventory Module>Create New Inventory Document>Ordering Kits** [15] for details.

6.13.2 Ordering Kits

A useful feature of the inventory module is the ordering of kits. A kit is a grouping of inventory items into one logical ordering unit. See the Inventory Module>Build Kits section to understand how kits are created. To order a kit, click on the \nearrow icon on the detail toolbar to display the Kit Selection Screen wizard.

🔡 Kit Selection Scr	een	×
Please select the wish to order	e Location and Kit and enter the Quantity you	9
Location	101	-
Kit	OS KIT 1	-
Quantity	1	
	< Back Next >	Cancel

Select the Location, Kit, enter the Quantity and then click the Next button. The application will validate the item quantities against what is in stock and will let you know if there is enough inventory to create the number of kits requested. If there is not enough stock, the wizard will give the option of changing the request or continuing by clicking Finish. The kit items will then be added to the order.

6.13.3 Return Items to Inventory

This type of inventory document transaction is used when items order on a **Request Items from Inventory** document, are returned to be put back into stock. Instead of entering these items, they are copied into the document using the \square icon on the detail toolbar. When you click on this icon, a screen will be presented with a list of all Request Items from Inventory Type documents that have been transferred to MIP.

cument 1	nfo	mation							
ent No. 13	-EN					To Be Assign	ed 12		
-	ору	Document							
ate		Document No	Document Descri	Date	User ID	Item No	Item Description	Quantity	
ng/Shir	9	12 EN 1029	test	0/2/2015	Appa Pollo Martia	E102	Olice Prend (Wheat)	1	_
5	•	13-EN-1028	test	9/3/2015	Anna Belle Martin	F103	Slice Bread (Wheat)		
No. D3									

Document Type - Return Items to Inventory

Select the document with the item(s) being returned and then click the **Copy** button, which will copy all of the items ordered into the return document. You can then delete the items not being returned and/or adjust the quantities to match those that are.

6.13.4 Inventory Purchase Order

This type of inventory transaction document will be used by the Purchasing Manager to create a vendor purchase order to replenish inventory stock. This process is exactly the same as that used to create a standard requisition, the only difference is that the items on this document are inventory items and the **Price** defaults to the price of the last inventory purchase order for each item, although it can be overridden by the requester.

 Docume 	nt Inform	ation						
Document No	13-EN				To Be A	ssigned	129	Reason/J
Description	Order Inv I	tems from Vendo	r					
Prepared By	Anna Belle	Martin			Workflow ID 103			-
Order Date	10/2/2015				▼ Required Date 10/12/20	015		-
Billing/S	hipping In	ormation						
Bill To	Main				Ship To Main		Ŧ	Special Ir
Vendor I	nformatio	ı						
Vendor ID	ABC				▼ ● ✓ □ 161 North Suite 200	Lamar		
Name	ABC Off	ce Supply			Austin TX	78755 5555 Ext (512)555-5	555 Ext	
		1	1					
Item No.		Qty	Units	Date	Description	Туре	Price	Amount
▶ ⊞ F102		151.00	EA	10/2/2015	Gallon of Milk	N/A	\$2.29	\$345.79
		115.00	EA	10/2/2015	Slice Bread (Wheat)	N/A	\$2.40	\$276.00
		211.00	EA	10/2/2015	Butter Pack	N/A	\$0.99	\$208.89

6.13.5 Request Warehouse Transfer

This type of inventory requisition will only be used by organizations whereas the inventory is stored in more than one location, because its role is to move inventory from one location to another.

	tem No.	Qty	Units	Date	Description	Туре	Transfer To	Fund	Grant	GL	Progr	Dept	117
ŧ	🛙 iPhone	20.00	EA	11/26/2012	IPhone	Out	201	01	101	64001	101	101	1
ŧ	B WP7	30.00	EA	11/26/2012	Windows 7 Phone	Out	201	01	101	64001	101	101	1
±	🛙 iPhone	20.00	EA	11/26/2012	IPhone	In		01	201	64001	101	101	1
ŧ	WP7	30.00	EA	11/26/2012	Windows 7 Phone	In		01	201	64001	101	101	1

The inventory transfer process works as follows:

- 1. A requester enters an inventory transfer request by selecting items from one location and then entering the "Transfer To" location.
- 2. The document is submitted through the workflow process.
- 3. The warehouse picks the order. The order must be picked in its entirety before it can continue on.
- 4. Once the order is fully picked, the module will generate the "In" transactions to the new location automatically.
- 5. The warehouse receives the items into the new location.
- 6. Accounting approves the document and transfers it to MIP.

6.13.6 Sales Order

This type of inventory transaction document is used to create a customer sales order. The **Document Type** and **Transaction Type** will both be "Sales Order".

Document Op	tions:						
Document Type	Sales Ord	Sales Order					
Transaction Type	Sales Ord	-					
Number Prefix	Туре	Description					
	N	Sales Order					
Accounts Payable	R	Sales Order Return					
Show all open							
Vendor ID							
	х						

When the document entry form is shown, the process is the same as creating an inventory vendor purchase order. The exception is that instead of selecting a vendor, you will select a customer.

	Customer ID	UN	IASSIGNED	*	6	
Name	s Name Addres		Address	s V		
		٩				
	Item No.		AAA Control	4321 Red Rive	AAA	Des
			ABC Home Health Services	20005 North I	AB	
			Austin Community Services	12388 Union St	Austin	1.
			Billy Smith	,	Billys	
			Board of Education, Central	15001 East 15t	CBE	
			Cash only customer	,	CASH	
			Central Board of Education	15001 East 15t	Edu	

The detail transactions are the same as the inventory vendor purchase order as well, except an additional column for Tax Rate is shown if applicable to the workflow. Once submitted the sales order document follows the approval process set up in the workflow for sales orders.

	Item No.	Qty	Units	Date	Description	Туре	Tax Rate	Price	Amount	Fund	Grant	Rev GL	Progr	Dept	117
•	🗉 iPhone	5.00	EA	12/12/2012	IPhone	N/A	5.000 %	99.000	\$519.75	01	101	46001	101	101	1
	⊞ WP7	5.00	EA	12/12/2012	Windows 7 Phone	N/A	5.000 %	79.000	\$414.75	01	101	46001	101	101	1
*															
		7													
		10							\$934.50						
Re	cord 1 of 2	🖶 🗶	\$ 2	5 👸 🔘 🔇											

6.13.7 Sales Order Return

This type of inventory document transaction is used when items ordered on a Sales Order document, are returned by the customer to be put back into stock. Instead of entering these items, they are copied into the document using the i icon on the detail toolbar. You will first select a customer. When you click on the i icon, a screen will be presented with a list of all Sales Order type documents for the customer selected, that have been transferred to MIP.

Document No	Description	Workflow ID	Date	Vendor Name
MX-50-1041	Sales Order	100	12/6/2012	Austin - Austin Community Services

Select the document with the item(s) being returned and then click the **Copy** button, which will copy all of the items ordered into the return document. You can then delete the items not being returned and/or adjust the quantities to match those that are.



7 Budget Module

7.1 Introduction

Microix provides management with a convenient budget administration tool by allowing them to input all revenue, expense and salary related budget data directly into the system. As a result, the numerous spreadsheets commonly used for this function are eliminated.

Once a manager has completed the input and verification of their budget, a workflow process automatically forwards the budget worksheets to the next approver in line. Any approver can review or make modifications to the budget worksheet. They can approve or deny them on a one-by-one basis. After the approver has approved the budget worksheets, the workflow continues and the worksheets are passed to the next approval level. This process occurs throughout the organization to make the budget approval process both efficient and organized.

After all worksheets have been approved by the Budget Administrator, managers are restricted from altering the numbers. However, the system remains a valuable resource throughout the year as managers have on-line access to employee revenue, expense and salary information.



Highlights:

- Easy to navigate and use.
- Simple and easy learning curve .
- Multi-level approval process.
- Budget multi-year grants and programs.
- Consolidate worksheets for organization wide reporting.
- Send email notifications.
- Re-route worksheets until budget is satisfactory.

Menu Item	Description
My Worksheets	 This section displays a list of all budget worksheets for the logged in user. It also allows you to perform the following task: 1. Create a new budget worksheet (in most cases this is not necessary because the worksheets are distributed by the Budget Administrator). 2. Edit existing budget worksheets that are not yet submitted for approval. 3. Retrieve/find any budget worksheets that you have created in the system. 4. Recall a budget worksheet that was submitted for approval but not

Menu Item	Description
	yet approved.
Salary Worksheets	The manager can budget each employee salary along with their allocations and benefits.
Distribute Worksheets	The Budget Administrator will use this menu item each year to distribute all the budget worksheets to each manager within the organization.
Approve Worksheets	This section is used to approve any budget worksheets that were submitted for approval.
Refresh Worksheet Data	 This section is intended for Budget Administrators to perform the following task: 1. Refresh current year actual with a new cut-off date. 2. Refresh current year budget to include budget revisions that were done in Abila MIP FA. 3. Globally removed specific accounts from the budget worksheets. 4. Update estimated current year actual.
Consolidate Worksheet Query	Combine all Budget Worksheets into a single report.
Document Lis Reports	stApprovers can search/view budget worksheets that were created by their approving workflows. View default budget reports.
-	
Setup	Global Budget Module options: 1. Salary worksheet - benefit codes 2. Budget worksheet - monthly distribution codes

7.2 Budget Module Checklist

NOTE: Abila MIP FA Budget Module is not required unless you need to create additional budget versions other than original and revised.

Check list items for implementing the Budget Module

- ✓ <u>Setup</u>^[143] users (manually enter each employee or import from Excel or Abila MIP FA Payroll Module).
- \checkmark Create <u>approval level</u> 172 titles activate all possible approval levels that will be used later when you are setting up the approval process.
- ✓ Create and setup <u>organization workflows</u>¹⁶⁹.
 - Workflow options
 - \circ Select the segments is that will be used during the budget creation process.
 - <u>Requesters</u> 153 setup all users who will be entering budget data.
 - <u>Approvers</u> 155 setup approval routing for the *Budget Module*.
 - <u>Account Restrictions</u> limit access to Abila MIP FA account codes by workflow.
 - <u>Personnel</u> 162 assign employees to a specific workflow for managers to budget salaries and benefits.

- ✓ Define <u>document numbering</u> 174 schema a number used to uniquely identify each budget worksheet.
- \checkmark Assign user <u>permissions [147]</u> for access to each ribbon menu item.
- ✓ Configure application options 169:
 - Enter the SMTP mail server information for email notifications.
 - Enter organization current fiscal year end.
 - Select the budget version to be used when retrieving current year budget data.
 - Change the default password for the admin account (recommended before going live).
- ✓ Create <u>Budget Worksheet Templates</u> [134] and distribute them to the budget managers.

Check list items for ongoing maintenance

Adding new users

- ✓ <u>Create</u> 145 a new user account.
- ✓ Assigning users to a workflow 153.
- ✓ Assign user <u>permissions</u> 1471.
- \checkmark Assign the new employee to a budget worksheet template.

Terminating employees

- ✓ <u>Remove user</u> 153 from workflow.
- ✓ <u>Inactivate user</u> 1431.

Annual maintenance

✓ Update <u>benefit table</u> 125 (only if Salary Worksheets are being used).

- ✓ Update <u>personnel salary</u>^[13] and allocations (only if Salary Worksheets are being used).
- \checkmark Modify each <u>budget worksheet template</u> [134] and provide the following values:
 - Change historical period
 - Change new budget period
 - Modify cut-off-date
 - Modify email message
 - Modify worksheet assignments

7.3 Setup

The purpose of this section is to setup default values and define other business rules for creating timesheets.

	↓↓ † Setup	
1		Benefit Rates
4		Maintain Monthly Distributions
	- \$	Create Monthly Distributions
		Budget Worksheet Options

Functions	<u>Descriptions</u>	
Benefit Rates	-	fit codes and other employee expenses that will be nagers are working with the Salary Worksheets.
Maintain Monthly Distributions	 Create global all workflows. Delete unused Correct any content 	ed monthly distribution codes. distributions that are not totaling 100%.
Create Monthly Distributions	Monthly Distribution Codes	oution creation screen:
	Description	
	Dist Code 857 Description 54001	
	Workflow ID 300	
	System Distribution	
	Monthly Allocations	
	Entry Type O Amount O Percent	
	Jan 6.6667 % 5 500.00	Feb 0.0000 % 2 0.000
	Mar 33,3333 % C 2,500,00	
	May 0.0000 % 2 0.00	3 m 0.0000 % 2 0.00
	Jul 0.000 % 0 0000.0	
	Sep 40.0000 % 3,000.00 Nov 0.0000 % 0.00	
		Clear
	Montly Allocation Information	Retreive Monthly Allocation From Sage
	Budget Amount 0.00	1/1/2011
	Allocated Amount 7,500.00	141 40
	Balance 7,500.00	
	Total Percent 100.0000 %	
Budget	The options here al	llow you to set Narrative Required or Prevent GL

Budget Worksheet Options The options here allow you to set **Narrative Required** or **Prevent GL Edit** after specifying a workflow and choosing the account numbers.

	tion 🧿 Add Restrictions 💿 Remove Restrictions		Туре	Prevent GL Edit	Narrative Required
	Workflow ID	Ŷ	Workflow		
9					
Þ	103		Program Serv	vices	

7.3.1 Benefit Rates

Create global **Benefit Codes** and other employee expenses that will be available when managers are working with the Salary Worksheets. You can import the benefit codes from Abila MIP FA Payroll Module or import them from an Excel file.

	MIP Benefit Table	MS Excel File	Salary Benefit for Ea	ch Emplo		🔓 🔊 🐉	
	Benefit Code	Title	GL Account	Period Amount	Rate	PayPeriods	Default
9							
•	FICA	FICA	51001	\$0.00	0.00625	1	
	Health	Health Insurance	51101	\$170.00	0.00000	12	
	Insurance	Insurance	40101	\$0.00	0.00000	1	
	Life	Life Insurance	51105	\$0.00	0.00500	1	
	LifeOver50	Life Ins Premium Over 50,	51105	\$0.00	0.00750	1	
	MediCal	MediCal	40101	\$0.00	0.00000	1	
	Medicare	Medicare	40101	\$0.00	0.00000	1	
	Ret	Employer Retirement Match	51150	\$0.00	0.00125	1	
	SS	SS	51001	\$0.00	0.00225	1	
	Vision	Vision Plan	51101	\$0.00	0.00150	1	

If you update the **Rate** or **Annual Amount** column of a benefit code, then all employees that are associated with the **Benefit Codes** will be updated automatically on the Salary Worksheet.

7.3.2 Monthly Distribution Codes

Budget Administrators can use this form to perform the following task:

- 1. Create global **Monthly Distribution Codes** that are accessible to all workflows.
 - 2. Delete unused Monthly Distribution Codes.
 - 3. Correct any distributions that are not totaling 100%.

orkflow				. (All m	nonthly	distribut	ion cod	es							
Code		Description	Total	Jan				lse the necessa		Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Match
🗉 Wor	kflow:	100			~	_										
78		45001 - Service Fees	100.0	0 0%	0.00 %	40.00	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	20.00	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	40.00	
80		40001 - State Grants Revenue	100.0	72.54	23.23	1.26 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.53	Match	roturn	tho n	umber o	ofbudo	ot	
857		54001 - Dues & Fees	100.0	6.67 %	0.00 %	33.33	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00	worksh				-		
Eve	ning	Monthly Salary Distribution for Sa	100.0	7.94 %	7.94 %	7.94 %	7.94 %	7.94 %					ibution		6	
Ren	t	Rent	100.0	72.54	23.23	1.26 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.53 %							
xSal	lar	Microix Generated Monthly Salary	100.0	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.35	8.37 %	
xSal	lar	Microix Generated Monthly Salary	100.0	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.37	
xSal	lar	Microix Generated Monthly Salary	100.0	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.37 %	and a second
xSal	lar	Microix Generated Monthly Salary	100.0	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.37 %	
- Wor	kflow:	ALL														
12M	Ith	12mth Distribution	100.0	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.33 %	8.37 %	1
4 qt	s	4 qrt	100.0	50.00	0.00 %	0.00 %	50.00	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	
861		51101 - Health Insurance	100.0	50.00	0.00 %	0.00 %	50.00	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	

<u>Button Description</u> <u>s</u>

Add/ Edit Click on the **Add** ⁺ button to create a new **Monthly Distribution Code** or use the **Edit** */* button to make changes to an existing code.

Description					
Dist Code	857				6
Description	54001				0
Workflow ID	300		-		
System Dist	ribution				
Monthly Allo	cations				
Entry Type 🧕	Amount	O Percent			
Jan	6.6667 % 🕄	500.00	Feb	0.0000 % 🕻	0.0
Mar 3	3.3333 % 🚺	2,500,00	Apr [0.0000 % 0	0.0
Мау	0.0000 % 0	0.00	Jun [0.0000 % 1	0.0
Jul .	0.0000 % 🕻	0.00	Aug [20.0000 % 🕻	1,500.0
Sep 4	0.0000 % []	3,000.00	Oct [0.0000 %	0.0
Nov	0.0000 % 0	0.00	Dec [0.0000 %	0.0
		*	Clear		
Montly Alloc	ation Informa	ition	Retre	ive Monthly Allocation	n From Sage
Budget Amou	nt 0.00		1/1/20	011	
Allocated Am	ount 7,500.00				
Balance	7,500.00				
Total Percent	100.0000	%			

×

Click on this button to **Delete** an unused **Monthly Distribution Code**.

 ${f i}$ The system will not allow you to delete the code if it is being utilized by an

Button Description

active budget worksheet.

Solution the state of the second state of the

7.4 My Worksheets

S

Do	ос Туре	Document No	Date	Document Descrip	Workflow ID	Period Begin	Period End	Expense	Revenue	Att
F			-							
~	BD	Status: 0 - Request 13-BD-1009	9/15/2015	Budget Document	103	1/1/2016	12/31/2016	0.00	0.00	
	BD	13-BD-1009	8/11/2015	Budget Document		1/1/2016	12/31/2016	77,972.00		
	BD	13-BD-1007	8/11/2015	Budget Document		1/1/2016	12/31/2016	21,036.44		
	BD	13-BD-1006	8/11/2015	Budget Document	103	1/1/2016	12/31/2016	325,287.27	57,790.00	
	BD	13-BD-1003	8/27/2013	Budget Document	103	1/1/2014	12/31/2014	20,204.67	956.39	
1	BD	13-BD-1002	8/27/2013	Budget Document	103	1/1/2014	12/31/2014	0.00	2,880.77	
1	BD	13-BD-1001	8/27/2013	Budget Document	103	1/1/2014	12/31/2014	25,370.10	23,379.52	

The **My Worksheet** form displays a list of all Budget Worksheets created by or distributed to the logged in user. See below for other functions that are available on this form.

To filter, sort, and group the data refer to **Sorting/Grouping/Filtering Data Grids** 213.

Butto ns	Description
4	Click on this button to Create a new Budget Worksheet. In most cases, the Create button will never be used because the Budget Worksheets are distributed to the managers by the Budget Administrator.
	Edit 127) a Budget Worksheet.
Q	Click on this button to View an existing Budget Worksheet (read-only).
4	If you have submitted your budget worksheet for approval and need to make modifications, use the Recall button to return the Budget Worksheet to your queue. However, if it was approved, the system will not allow you to recall it.
T	Print a copy of the My Worksheet list

7.4.1 Edit Budget Worksheet

Use this option to edit a Budget Worksheet that was distributed to you by the Budget Administrator.

Budget Worksheet Information



OCI	ument Deta	A	Title	T		-				
	Dept	54001	Public Relations Expense Dues & Fees Subscriptions	EXP EXP EXP		Ionthly tribution	Actual 2011	Actual 2012	YTD Actual 2013	Projecte
	± 101		Building Rent	EXP		th	208 27	421.18	0.00	
	± 101		Utilities and Maintenance Indirect Expense	EXT	w	orkflow a	account	0.00	0.00	
			Pooled Expense	E			are used on	13.49	15,399.00	1
	· 101	56501	Rev Office and Other Supplie	F			worksheet	12,371.99	0.00	
	± 101	59001	Depreciation Expense	E		rm only v es to ado	hen a user	362.50	0.00	
	± 101		Direct Food Direct Transportation	F		ccount or		27.41	0.00	
	± 101	62001	Direct Shelter				It will only	0.00	0.00	
			Direct Medical Expense Allocated Overhead	1			ccount allowed	\$192,144.96	\$16,108.00	\$2
1	01	64000	Allocated Oea		Dy	the worl	KIIOW	0.00	0.00	
							(\$106,624.51)	\$177,880.76	(\$1,263.85)	(\$
Reco	ord 32 of 32		🔊 💠 🚨 🗷 🤞 🗸							

<u>Fields/</u><u>Description</u> <u>Buttons</u>

DocumentAssigned automatically by the system.No.Indicates the date when the worksheet was created.

Description The system will automatically assign a document description **Budget Document for**. You should append the name of your budget to complete the description (for example, append your department name and/or funding source name).

This field becomes the document description when it is transferred to Abila MIP FA.

Prepared Your name will be defaulted in this field (read-only field). **By**

Workflow IDYour Workflow ID will be defaulted in this field (read-only field).

<u>Fields/</u> Buttons	Description
Comments	Enter any comments in this field. The comments can be viewed by the approvers and are also printed on the Budget Worksheets.
	This button allows you to Delete your Budget Worksheet. Do not use this button unless it is necessary or you are instructed to do so. All the data you entered on the Budget Worksheet will be deleted.
	$\ensuremath{\textbf{Save}}$ your Budget Worksheet. We recommend that you periodically save your work.
	Undo the last changes.
V	Submit your budget for approval. This should be done after you have completely entered your budget.
()= 0 ()=	Use this button to send Email correspondence (refer to <u>Shared</u> <u>Activities>Email</u> [210] for detailed instructions on how to send email messages).
Ø	Use this button to Attach any electronic documents to your Budget Worksheet (refer to Shared Activities>Attachments 211) for detailed instructions on how to include attachments).
Ţ	Print a copy of your Budget Worksheet.

Budget Worksheet Transaction Information

The **Budget Transaction** section contains detailed information about the item(s) in the overall budget. It includes the general ledger account information and description, prior-year-actual, current-year-actual and current-year-budget from Abila MIP FA general ledger.

	Fund	Dept	GL	Description	Monthly Distribution	YTD Actual 2014	Projected 2014	Budget 2014	Budget 2015
~ 1	Categor	y: Revenue							
1	⊞ 01	101	40101	Federal Grants Reve	12Mth	0.00	0.00	0.00	820,000.0
1	⊞ 01	101	46601	Day Care Revenue	12Mth 👻 🔎	Current Year	0.00	New Annual	2,922.2
~	Categor	repres		distribution		Projected 00 Actuals are	\$0.00	Budget Amount	\$822,922.23
1	⊕ 01	of the t the mo		nt amongst	xSalary-119-451	calculated 72	480,753.72	0.00	332,283.6
1	⊞ 01	the mo	nuns.		12Mth	Actuals to the	922.68	0.00	0.0
1		101	51001	Payroll Taxes	xSalary-119-488	YTD Remaining 00	0.00	0.00	2,842.3
1	⊞ 01	10 Clink	on the stic	es to our and les	12Mth	Budget34	24,041.34	0.00	0.0
1	⊞ 01			con to expand to expand	12Mth	0,980.58	6,980.58	0.00	0.0
1	⊞ 01		highlighte		12Mth	202.41	202.41	0.00	0.0
1	⊞ 01			kistence of	. 12Mth	551.12	551.12	0.00	0.0
1	01	narra	tives for th	iat line.	12Mth	61.38	61.38	0.00	0.00
	H 101	101	51101	Health Insurance	vEslary 110 442	15.007.68	15.007.68	0.00	7 713 0
						(\$574,955.59)	(\$574,955.59)	\$0.00	\$441,400.43
ecord	2 of 24	🕂 💥 🔊	4. 2.	A					

New Annu Budget	alUse this column to enter the and account. If your policy requires specific accounts, then use the line) to enter the budget narration	you to e + icon (nter t locate	oudget nai ed at the l	rratives for eachering of eache	ach or each
	Magnifying Glass P button wh Click it again to return to this vie		ghligh	nted in the	screenshot	below.
	V. Catagong Payanua					
	✓ Category: Revenue ☐ 01 101 40101 Federal Grants Reve 124th		0.00	0.00	0.00	345,200.00
		Unit/Hour	0.00 Rate/Amount		0.00	345,200.00
	E 01 101 40101 Federal Grants Reve 12Mth	Unit/Hour 1		Amount	0.00	345,200.00
	Image: Display the second se	Unit/Hour 1 100	Rate/Amount 100,000.00	Amount 100,000.00	0.00	345,200.00
	01 101 40101 Federal Grants Reve 12Mth A budget Narratives Revenue Source 1 12	1	Rate/Amount 100,000.00	Amount 100,000.00	0.00	345,200.00
Projected	01 101 40101 Federal Grants Reve 12Mth A budget Narratives Revenue Source 1 12	1 100	Rate/Amount 100,000.00 2,452.00	Amount 100,000.00 245,200.00 \$345,200.00		

This column is only visible if the workflow option to display it is true.

By default, your annual budget will be distributed evenly each month. Monthly **Distribution** However, if you require unique monthly allocations, then use the **Magnifying**

> **Glass** P button to open the Monthly **Distribution** form. This form allows you to spread your annual budget based on a percentage or amount for each month.



Use this button to **Insert** new account on your budget form.

 ${f I}$ This is not necessary unless instructed by your Budget Administrator.



Delete the selected timesheet row.

 ${f I}$ The system will only allow you to deleted line items that were added to the Budget Worksheet.

Undo the last changes.

This button will allow you to allocate an overhead cost by departments and/ 4Þ. or funding source via a Abila MIP FA distribution code.

2 This button is not to be used unless instructed by your Budget Administrator.

Use this button to **Import** Salary Worksheet data into your Budget 80 Worksheet.

L This button is not to be used unless instructed by your Budget

Columns Description

Administrator.

- The **Formula Wizard** button will allow you to perform simple Excel type calculations such as increasing the annual budget by 5% or allowing you to take your current year budget and increasing it by 10% to become the new budget.
- **Import/Update** budget data via an Excel spreadsheet.

UFor detailed instructions on how to use this function see <u>Import from</u> <u>Excel</u>[216].

7.5 Salary Worksheet

The Salary Worksheet is specifically designed to streamline the salary budgeting process by providing management with an online tool to project the organization salary figures without affecting your current payroll system. In addition, efficiency is gained because department managers use the system to enter budgetary data such as salaries, benefits, overtime, commissions, incentive pay and bonuses. After utilizing the Salary Worksheets, organizations will realize the benefits and time savings features from having a single online system that caters to their salary budgeting needs.

Budget Administrators can delegate this process in a couple of ways:

- 1. Allow managers to budget their employees.
- 2. Allow the Human Resources Manager to budget all employees within the entire organization.

earch	Adams					\sim								1 🔊 /
Employee In	formation							ē	Update pe	rcent increase for	a range of emplo	oyees		
EmployeeID	Adams								Option Option	y total raise 🛛 🔘	Apply portion of raise	Earning From	Te	0
First Name	Martha				Last Name	Adams			GL	Find Accourt		% Change		0.00 % 🕻 🖋 🦂
Workflow ID	103				Job Title	Case Worker			Fund			in change		
PayType					Processing Grou				Dept					
Salary Alloca	ation													
Copy Distributio	on Code Adam	5		- 3	1				Salary Inform	nation				
Fund	Dept	GL		Percent	curAmount		Monthly Allocation		Action Date	10/1/2016	* Account	50002 -	FTE Rate	100.00 % 🗘
▶ 01	101	50001	P	50.0	0 %	\$23,566.40	12Mth		Hourly Rate	22.0000	Cotal Hours	2080 ‡		
01	101	56003		50.0	0 %	\$23,566.40	12Mth		Current Salary	\$45,760.00	 % Change 	3.00 % 🗘	New Salary	\$47,132.80
									Benefit Infor	mation				
									Benefit Code	GL Account	Amount	No of Pay Periods	Rate	Total
									FICA	46601	\$0.00			
									Health	51101	\$170.00			
									Life	51105	\$0.00			
									Ret	51150 51001	\$0.00			
									Vision	51001	\$0.00			
									VISION	51101	\$0.00	1	0.00130	\$70.7
				100.0) %	\$47,132.80								\$5,433.5
	🕂 🗶 🔊	*							X <					

Option 1: (Allow managers to budget their individual employees)

 To implement this option, navigate to the Maintenance>Organization Workflow>Personnel tab and import employees into their associated manager's workflow.

Option 2: (Allow the HR manager to budget all employees within the entire organization)

 To implement this option, navigate to the Maintenance>Organization Workflow>Personnel tab and import all employees into the Human Resources Manager's workflow.

Field s	<u>Description</u>					
Fmpl	The information	in this section	was imported	durina setun	Verify the information	

Empl The information in this section was imported during setup. Verify the information **oyee** provided is accurate. **Infor**

mati on

Salar The information in this section was imported during setup. Verify the informationy provided is accurate or make any modification if needed.

Infor mati on

Salar Salary Allocations are also imported during setup. Verify whether the information **y** provided is accurate or make any modifications, if needed.

Alloc ation

	und	P Dept	GL	Percent	curAmount	Monthly Allocation
01	1	101	50001	22.00 %	\$10,369.22	12Mth
01	1	101	56003	78.00 % 🛞	\$36,763.58	12Mth

Here is an example of how to enter the allocation for an employee earning 24,000 per year and is split between two departments:

• Use the Add ⁺ button to create a new line and enter 04 and 101 in the Fund and Dept columns (your database will vary based on your Abila MIP FA segment structure). Next, enter 8,000 in the curAmount column which represents the

portion of salary dept 101 is responsible for paying. Use the **Add** to button again to enter a second new line and enter fund 04 and dept 201. Because this row contains the final allocated entry, use the **Money** button and the system will automatically fill 16,000 in the **curAmount** column which is equivalent to the unallocated salary amount.

Use the + button in the Copy Distribution Code field if there is a predefined



How to use: select a code from the **Benefit Codes** combo box and click on the **Add** to button. To remove a **Benefit Code**, select the code from the grid and click on the **Delete** to button.

% You can enter a pre-determined percent increase based on promotions or cost of **Incre**living. **ase**

 \forall Use the following section to globally forecast increases based on a salary range and segment.

Descript	tion				
Dist Code	Adams			a 💊 🔖	Option to help compute the increase % if not 100%
Description	n Monthly Sala	ry Distributio			
Workflow	ID 103	This process	s will compute the rais	··· · · ·	A pdate percent increase for a range of employees
Syster	m Distribution		action date. Action d		Option Apply total raise Apply portion of raise Earning From \$0.00 To \$100,000.00
Monthly	Allocations	must be corr	rect for all employees	before	GL Find Account 101 % Change 5.00 %
					This Account 101 /6 Change J.00 /6 - W age
	0				Fund
Entry Type			MPORTANT: Manual		Pund Dept
	e O Amount	838.93		78.93	Fund
Entry Type Jan Mar		838.95	changes to the action date will not re-comput	78.93	Pund Dept
Jan Mar	8.2305 % 🗘	838.95		18.93	Pund Dept
Jan Mar	8.2305 % ‡ 8.2305 % ‡	838.93 838.9 838	changes to the action date will not re-comput	te 838.93	Fund Dept 5% / 12mths = 0.4166 * 3mths of raise = 1.25%
Jan Mar May	8.2305 % ‡ 8.2305 % ‡ 8.2305 % ‡	838.95 838.9 838	changes to the action fate will not re-comput he % Change value.	te 838.93 838.93	Fund Dept 5% / 12mths = 0.4166 * 3mths of raise = 1.25% Salary Information Action Date 10/1/2016 * Account 5002 * FTE Rate 100.00 % \$
Jan Mar May Jul	8.2305 % 8.2305 % 8.2305 % 8.2305 % 8.2305 % 1	838.95 838.9 838 838 838.93 838.93	changes to the action date will not re-comput he % Change value.	te 838.93 838.93 838.93 838.93	Fund Dept 5% / 12mths = 0.4166 * 3mths of raise = 1.25% Salary Information



Add a new employee or open position to fill.

Delete an existing employee or position.

Save changes.



7.6 Distribute Worksheets

This form is used by the Budget Administrator to load and distribute the Budget Worksheets to all managers within the organization. When creating a Budget Template, use a generic name such as "Annual Budget". It is not recommended to include a fiscal year with the template name because the template is reused each budget year. Most organizations will be required to create at least one Budget Template. However, multiple templates are necessary if you have some budgets that are based on a different fiscal period than your organization's fiscal year.

Quick Start - How to Distribute Budget Worksheets to each manager: (*NOTE*: setup must be completed first)

- 1. Select a Budget Template from the **Search** list box.
- 2. In the **Template Worksheet Assignment** section, click the **Process** checkbox next to each manager that you would like to create a Budget Worksheet.
- 3. Click on the **Gear** icon to start the process. Because of the amount of data to be retrieved from Abila MIP FA, we recommend that you only process a maximum of 10 worksheets at a time.

											4		
Budget Temp	late Informa	tion	Budg	et History Perio	d		Historical	Data					
lame Distribution Type	Annual Budge 12Mth	•	Period 1/1/20		y years? Per 2 ‡ 12/			get and Actual Ac Vorkflow Budget			ut-off-date 7/31/2015	Total Project Ver	
mail Notifica	tion Messag		New I	Budget Period			Budget Narratives Options				Budget Narratives Source		
N/A Norksheet A	Image: State of the s							ndude narratives Narratives withou	-	ative with amoun	0	ents transferred to A cess documents	
Workflow	 User Name 	Pr	ocess	Description	Condition	GL From	GL To	Fund	Grant	Progr	Dept	117	
103	✓ Anna Belle	ма		Administration	a	40001	67100	01			101		
	Anna Belle	Ма		Program Service	a	40001	67100	01			201		
103		ма		Executive	a	40001	67100	01			401		

Budg	get Templa	ate Information	n				Histori	cal Data
Vame Distrib	oution Type [Annual Budget 12Mth	distri	dition filter sho buting a budg copy and past	et worksheet to other lir	et. You les		Budget and oix Workflow
Emai Subje Messa	ct N/A	ion Message	or yo dupli the c restri	ad of building u can use the cate each row ondition to ea ictions are not buting a work	copy icon to v and it will a ch new line. t considered	o Ilso copy Account	i Do r	t Narrativ e not include n ude Narrativ
		signments	-					
		User Name	Process	Description	Condition	GL From	GL To	Fund
W		-	X	Description Program Ser	Condition	GL From 40001	GL To 67100	Fund 01
W 10	orkflow	User Name						
W 10	/orkflow - 00 00	User Name Anna Belle M	X	Program Ser	a	40001 40001 40001	67100 67100 67100	01

Fields Description

Name Recommended names for your Budget Template:

1. Use the following name if your organization budgets are based on the same fiscal period:

- Annual Budget
- 2. Use the following name for budgets that have different fiscal periods:
 - Annual Budget Jul-Jun
 - Annual Budget Jan-Dec
 - Annual Budget Oct-Sep

Distribut Budget Worksheets are distributed and displayed to managers using an ion Type annualized format. Managers also enter their new budget based on an annualized amount. Using the system default value "12Mth" will cause *Microix* to spread the annualized budget evenly for 12 months when transferring to Abila MIP Fund Accounting. However, if managers need to manipulate the monthly spread, they can do so directly on the Budget Worksheet.

See **Budget>Setup>Monthly Distribution Codes** if you would like to create additional codes.

Email Upon processing and distributing the Budget Worksheets, *Microix* will trigger and **Message**email message to each manager and include the information you have provided

Fields Description

Notificat in this section.

ion

Here is an example of what you can enter in this section: Subject - Fiscal Year XXXX Budget Message - Please enter your budget and return by MM/DD/YYYY. If you have any questions please call Budget Administrator for assistance.

Budget For each Budget Worksheet, *Microix* allows you to include up to 5 historical columns. *Microix* recommends that you include at least the current year and prior year for your budget historical columns.

New For each Budget Worksheet, *Microix* allows you to include up to 5 new budgetBudget columns. If you are not performing multi-year budgets then we recommendPeriod entering a period that only spans one year.

- Abila MIP Budget and Actual Activities This option should be your primary choice unless you are budgeting a new funding source. When using this option, enter a cut-off-date. The date entered in this field will be used by *Microix* to retrieve the current year actual amount up-to the cut-off-date. You can later refresh the budget worksheet's current year actual column using the menu item **Budget>Refresh Worksheet Data**
 - *Microix Workflow Budget* Template Use this option to create a Budget Worksheet that includes a pre-determined set of revenues and expenses without any historical data from Abila MIP FA. This option is mostly used when you are budgeting for a new funding source.

Budget Narratives are manually entered by managers on each Budget
 Narrativ Worksheet. It includes detailed justifications, notes and/or mathematical calculations that explain how the annual budget was comprised. Choose an option based on your organization's policies that dictates whether or not Managers can utilize their narratives from a previous year or they have to recreate them each year. By default Do not include Narratives is selected.

- Do not include Narratives.
- Include Narratives without amount.
- Include Narratives with amount.

Workshe Use this section to assign the managers to their specific department and funding
 et source. After the worksheets are processed and distributed, then each manager
 Assignm will receive a Budget Worksheet that is specific to his/her department.
 ents

Workflow	*	User Name	Process	Description	Condition	GL From	GL To	Fund	Grant	Progr	Dept	117
103	-	Anna Belle Ma		Administration	a	40001	67100	01			101	
103		Anna Belle Ma		Program Service	a	40001	67100	01			201	
103		Anna Belle Ma		Executive	a	40001	67100	01			401	

By default *Microix* will require you to budget all Abila MIP FA segments. However, you can selectively choose which segments should be budgeted by navigating to **Maintenance>Organization Workflow>Budget** Options. Only the selected segments will show on the Budget Worksheets.



7.7 Approve Worksheets

Approval notifications are generated automatically when managers submit their Budget Worksheets for approval. Approvers have the ability to change, add, or delete any information on the Budget Worksheet or they can re-route the worksheet to the manager for correction.

Doc Typ	Document No	Date	User Name	Document Descrip	Workflow ID	Period Begin	Period End	Expense	Revenue At
v Do	cument Status: 10 - Accour	ting Documents							
BD	13-BD-1008	8/11/2015	Anna Belle Martin	Budget Document	103	1/1/2016	12/31/2016	77,972.00	0.00
		1						77,972	0

Quick Start - How to approve a Budget Worksheet:

- 1. Select a Budget Worksheet from the approval list and click on the **Edit** button to open it.
- 2. After opening the worksheet, review the data and refer to **Edit Budget Worksheet** for information on how to make corrections.
- 3. After reviewing and/or modifying the Budget Worksheet, click on the Approve 💜

button to approve the worksheet. You may also use the **Re-Route W** button to send the worksheet to the user for them to make the necessary corrections or address your concerns.

7.8 Refresh Worksheet Data

The form is used by the Budget Administrator to refresh a specific column after the worksheets are distributed to the managers.

Why do I need this option? Your organization started the budgeting process 6 months prior to the new fiscal year. As a result, all distributed Budget Worksheets contains the first 6 months of actual expenses and revenues. You are now 10 months into the year and all the Budget Worksheets are completed. However, you need the ability to refresh the current year actual column to reflect expenses and revenues as of the current date.

Mie	croix Workflov	w Modules		×	
		this form will create mass changes to the se when users are not editing their documents.		5.	
			0	ĸ	
Ho	me Page Refresh	Worksheet Data 🗙			
Se	elect an Option		Process		
	Document No	Refresh Current Year Budget Column Refresh Current Year-to-Date Actual Column	Budget Year	Current Year	Document Status
9		Refresh Prior Year Actual Column Refresh Projected Actual Column			
+	13-BD-1001	Set Projected Actual Column Based on Formula	12/31/2014	12/31/2013	0 - Requester Doc
	13-BD-1003	Set Budget Worksheet Period	12/31/2014	12/31/2013	0 - Requester Doc
	13-BD-1002	Add a range of GL accounts Delete a range of GL accounts	12/31/2014	12/31/2013	0 - Requester Doc
	13-BD-1004	Search and Replace Account Codes	12/31/2016	12/31/2015	0 - Requester Doc
	13-BD-1006	Duplicate Budget Worksheets	12/31/2016	12/31/2016	0 - Requester Doc
	13-BD-1008	Change Monthly Distribution Code Refresh Budget Worksheets with Salary Worksheet Data	12/31/2016	12/31/2016	10 - Accounting D
	13-BD-1007	Create a Salary Distribution Code for all Employees in Abila Refresh each Employee Distribution code from Abila Refresh latest values for Salary Worksheet from Abila Custom Formula	12/31/2016	12/31/2016	0 - Requester Doc

How to Use:

- 1. Select an option (additional information may be required upon selecting specific options).
- 2. Select a list of documents that will be affected.
- 3. Click on the **Process** ^(a) icon.

7.9 Consolidate Worksheet Query

oort Name	Board Report		D Budget Year (Begin D	ate) 1/1/2016	▼ Document Status Be	etween 0	▼ And	10 -
Cash Flow For	mat (budget amount will be displayed for	each month) Pivot table	(data are displayed in a c	olumn format)	Actuals Source O Microix	O Abila		
ntent/Filter								
Seament	Group Name	Group By	Show Segment	Account Filter				FilterOnly
-	Group Name	Group By	Show Segment	Account Filter				FilterOnly
Segment GL	Group Name	Group By	Show Segment	Account Filter				FilterOnly



- D To View and select a worksheet from a drop-down list.
- ÷

To \boldsymbol{Add} a new report to the list.



Check the appropriate box for displaying the data according to your preference.

Segn	nent	Group Name	Group By	Show Se	Account Filter	FilterOnly	-
GL							=
I Fund	P)					
*							Ŧ
🕂 🕂	0	4				- F	

<u>Fields/</u> Buttons	Description
÷	To Add a new report to the list.
×	To Delete a selected report.

To **Save** changes.

0

To **View** the result of the selections done above. The result will open in a new tab.

tegory					
GL	Actual 2015	Actual 2016	Estimated Actual 2016	Budget 2016	Budget 2016
51201-Other Employee Benefits	2.11	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
51150-Retirement Matching Exp	172.08	0.00	0.00	0.00	30.23
51105-Life Insurance Exp	1.08	0.00	0.00	0.00	2,039.53
51101-Health Insurance	6,007.68	0.00	0.00	0.00	10,852.66
51090-Worker's Comp Expenses	49.38	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
	584,870.80	0.00	0.00	0.00	19,575,904.29
ecord 10 of 36 🕨 🖣					•

7.10 Document List

Refer to **Shared Activities>Document List** 219 for more details.

7.11 Reports

Refer to **Shared Activities>Reports** [219] for more details.



8 Maintenance

The **Maintenance Ribbon** menu enables administrators access to manage global settings for all modules within the *Microix Workflow* Suite. Only administrators should be given access to this section of the application and proper care should be taken when modifying live data. We recommend that you backup the database before performing any major changes to your **Workflow** setup.

6	₹.	,	Vorkflow Module	s 2015		_		×
	Budget	Requisition/Purchase Orde	er Inventory	Timesheet	Maintenance	Suppor	t	
		물 🌐		<u>R</u> 🖗				
Users	Security	Organization Global Workflow Options •		pproval Pos bstitution Mess			roduct gistratior	n
Users and	d Secu 🕞	Setup 🕞		Maint	enance			5
T								
Functi		escription						
<u>Users</u>	143) Ma	anage, create, modi	fy or import <i>I</i>	Microix Use	rs.			
Securi		sign menu permissio	ns for each i	iser accour	ı t			
Securi		sign menu permissio						
<u>n Wor</u>		eate workflows for y sociated with each	-	tion and im	plement spec	ific busi	ness	rules
149	. ты	ia manu itam ia a a	h manu far t	ha fallowing	ontional			
<u>Globa</u> Optior	- <u> </u>	nis menu item is a su Application Option				- mail se	rver, f	fiscal
		year end, budget ve	rsion and ad	min passwo	rd.		-	
		Approval Level Tit				h are ne	eeded	
		when creating the v Document Numbe i				each doo	cumer	nt
		type.	, -					
		Change Document						าย
		user to another whic Terminology - cha			some of the	aocume	ents.	
		System Login - vie			isers or free	any lock	ked se	eats.
		System Audit Trail		•	m changes h	iowever,	, full a	iudit
		of the database is c Global Lookup - All			nipulate spe	cific look	un va	lues
		throughout our appl			• •		•	
		are instructed by M						
		Please backup your	Microix datab	base before	modifying da	ata on tl	nis for	m.
<u>Docun</u>	<mark>nent</mark> Ut	ilize this form to acc	ess all docur	ments in the	e system. If	a docum	nent is	5
		st or routed to an in						
<mark>e</mark> 180		anually change the s rform the following		correct ap	prover. Addit	ionally,	you c	an
	•	Purge practice data						
		Delete unposted Mic	<i>roix</i> documer	nts that we	re transferre	d to Abi	la MIF)
		FA. Change <i>Microix</i> docu	iments that v		hered with a	in incorr	ect	

Function Description

vendor. This can only be done if the encumbrance was not partially liquidated.

<u>Approval</u> Identify substitutes for approvers before they take leave or extended time <u>Substitution</u> off.

179

PostNotify other users of the Workflow Modules of significant events.Messages

184

Forms Allows the user to design custom report layouts.

Designer 185

Stup the monitoring parameters to be utilized by the email notification feature of the *Workflow Modules*.

RegisterThis form is used to enter the *Microix* activation code.**Product**

8.1 Users

The **User** menu will allow you to perform the following functions:

- Add/Delete/Modify user accounts
- Reset user's password
- Change existing user's first or last name
- Import users from Abila MIP FA Payroll Module or Excel Worksheet

Microix includes a default "admin" user account. It is intended for registering the product and to setup the application for the first time and/or ongoing maintenance. The admin account cannot be used to create or approve documents. The password for this account is identical to Abila MIP Fund Accounting Admin password. If you are unsure of the password, please contact our support department at 1-866-MICROIX or email us at <u>support@microix.net</u>. Please change this password via Maintenance>Global Options>Application Options.

Click on **Users** a new to open a tab displaying a list of users present in the system.

	First Name	Last Name	Email	Phone	Windows ID	User ID	Payroll ID	Badge ID	Biometric	Active
ę										
Þ	Anna Belle	Martin	AMartin@domain.org			Anna Belle Martin	Martin	1000		1
	Dana R.	Jeffries	DJeffries@domain.org			Dana R. Jeffries	Jeffries	1001		1
	Ken Z.	OToole	KOToole@domain.org			Ken Z. OToole	Otoole	1002		1
	Scott Y.	Michaels	SMichaels@domain.org			Scott Y. Michaels	Michaels	1003		1

Note: User names highlighted in blue indicates that, they have not changed their default

password.

Fields/	Description
<u>Buttons</u> Search	Utilize the search 🔎 lookup list to find a specific user or you can start by
First Name	typing the first few letters of the employee's name. Enter the user's first name.
Last Name	Enter the user's last name. Microix does not have a middle initial field. If you have two employees with the same name, enter the middle initial first followed by a period then the last name (Example - F. Williams).
Email	Enter the user's email address. This field is required if you are implementing the email notification system in Microix.
Phone	Enter the user's phone number.
	1 This field is optional and is only used in the Requisition/Purchase Order Module.
Windows ID	Enter the employee 's Windows User ID name. (Optional, and is only required when implementing Activate Directory authentication.)
	Active Directory authentication requires server name in the Maintenance>Global Options>App Options>Other Options> group box.
User ID	Describes the Microix user ID
Payroll ID	Describes the MIP Payroll user ID
Badge ID	Describes the number associated with the employees badge for time clock solutions.
Biometric	Check this box if you would like the user to be authenticated in the system using their fingerprint instead of a password. Note: This action will disable password authentication for the user.
Active	Use this option to disable a user from accessing the Microix system. It is also important to remove them as a requester in the workflows. For Payroll customers, if you terminate an employee in Abila MIP FA payroll module, you will have to manually inactive them in Microix as well.
Password	When adding a new user account, their last name will be the default password in all lower case letters. Upon logging on for the first time, the user will be asked to change their password. All passwords must be a minimum of 6 characters and include both alpha and numeric characters. If you need to
	reset a user's password, click on the reset 🥝 button and Microix will reset their password to the last name of the employee.
4	Add a new user account
*	Delete an unused account


Microix will prevent the deleting of users that have documents associated with them.

Save record



Undo the last change

ł

Import payroll users from Abila MIP Fund Accounting Software (Abila MIP FA Payroll is required). *Please refer to the Import Wizard* section for more details.



To refresh the user database. Synchronizes Microix user names with the most recent changes in Abila MIP FA employee table.

To reset the password for a user. A dialog box informing of the action being completed will pop-up on the screen. To perform the same action for multiple users hold down the **CTRL** key and click on the user names.



To print the list of users.

Avoid the use of symbols, such as $| " / \ : * ?; < > [] ' and # when entering a user's first or last name.$

8.1.1 Import

The **Import** form is used to import employees from the Abila MIP FA Payroll module or from an excel file.

(1) When implementing the Timesheet module, we recommend that you always import employee information from the Abila MIP FA Payroll Module.

	EID 🔺	MS Excel File Email	Template Left([sFirstName],	1) & [sLastName] & '@domaiı 🔻 ✔				
PGCode	EID 🔺	MS Excel File Email	Template Left([sFirstName],	1) & [sLastName] & '@domair 🔻 ✔				
Employ								
	veeID							
9	yccib	LastName	FirstName	Date Hired				
× PG	GCodeID: Adr	nin						
NP	PS	Savage	Natalie	1/1/2015				
× PG	PGCodeID: CaseWkr							
Ad	dams	Adams	Martha	1/1/2015				
Bre	rothers	Brothers	Joyce	1/1/2015				
~ PG	GCodeID: Cle	rk						
Sm	mith	Smith	Frederick	4/14/2010				
► × P G	GCodeID: Par	tTime						
Ev	vening	Evening	Sam	6/7/2011				
Pa	arks	Parks	Millie	2/6/2011				

Options/Description Buttons

Abila MIP FA Payroll Module - use this option to import the users from Abila MIP FA Employee table. This should be your preferred method when implementing our timesheet module. Additionally, when new employees are hired, repeat this process to import them. You can quickly find specific employees by clicking on the filter is icon in any column header. For detailed instructions on how to filter data see the following section: Sorting/Grouping/ Filtering data grids[213]

• **MS Excel File** - This option is recommended when you have a large list of employees who will be using the Microix system. It should be used primarily for implementing the Requisition or Budget Module. Timesheet Module should use the option mentioned above. For detailed instructions on how to use this function see Import from Excel 216.

Email
Templat
eSelect an email template from the dropdown list or manually enter a valid email
template. Click on the check ✓ button to apply the changes to all Microix
users.

Template Syntax:

- [sFirstName] string that represents employee's first name
- [sLastName] string that represents employee's last name
- Left(string,length) The Left function returns a specified number of characters from the left side of a string
- **Right(string,length)** The Right function returns a specified number of characters from the right side of a string
- <u>@domain.org</u> replace this text with your organization email domain name but remember to enclose this part of your text in single quotes.
- The & operator is used to concatenate string variables

The following example demonstrates a template that extracts the first letter of the employee's first name along with their last name and domain name to automatically generate their email address:

```
User name - Anna Belle Martin
Organization email domain - <u>@microix.com</u>
Template - Left(sFirstName,1) & [sLastName] & '<u>@microix.com</u>'
Results - amartin@microix.com
```



This button is used in conjunction with the Import Source "**Abila MIP FA Payroll Module**". After selecting the users, click the import button to process your request.

8.2 Security

The **Security** form is used to grant specific menu permissions to multiple users.

 \forall We recommend that you apply permissions after all requesters and approvers are configured in each workflow.

inter	Role	Query	Select Module	All Module All Module Requisitio Budget Timeshee Account F	es on	able	Invo	voice
	Select	All Functi	ons	Encumbra		e Mo	difica	cation Copy Security from:
		Module	Function	Sales Ord	ler	_	_	User ID
9						9		
•		ENC	View My Documents			•		Anna Belle Martin
		ENC	Create a New Document					Dana R. Jeffries
		ENC	Edit an Existing Document					
		ENC	Credit Card Statement					Scott Y. Michaels
		ENC	Receiving					
		ENC	Centralized Receiving					
		ENC	Enable Receive All Button					
		-	• 11× · · ·	•				
								Add Remove Copy Security Close

Maintenance Tab

Options	Description
/ Buttons	
Buttons	
Default Set of Function s	 Microix includes three preset security functions: 1. All - Use this option to give permission to all menu items in Microix. It is intended for administrators of the application. Additionally, it displays a list of all possible permissions and allows you to add or remove specific ones to each or all employees. 2. Approver - a list of permissions that are intended for all approvers 3. Requester - a list of permissions that are intended for all requesters How to use: 1. Select a "Default Set of Functions" from the combo list box
	 Select a Default Set of Functions from the combo list box Using the list box on the left, check the box "Select All Functions" Using the list box on the right, check the box "Select All Users" Click on the add button to grant permissions, or the remove button to take away permissions.
	You can select each function and/or user separately before adding or removing permissions
3	To edit the functions available to a given user. Refer to <u>Maintenance>Security>Role Maintenance</u> विशे for more details.
	To save the changes made to the function list.
	To cancel the previous action.
	Add selected permissions to all selected users
	Remove selected permissions to all selected users
	Exit/Close the security form

💡 To filter, sort and group the data see <u>Sorting/Grouping/Filtering Data Grids</u> वि

8.2.1 Role Maintenance

This function allows the user to enable or disable options for a set of users or all the users present in the system.

Select a role from the drop down list and click on the wrench \mathscr{U} button to open the following dialog box:

urit	y Role	Requesto	r	Select I	Module All Modules	•		
laint	enance	Query		🖶 Role Maintenance			×	
Sel	ect Fund	ctions All Functior	าร	Drag a column header here t	to group by that column			
		Module	Fu	Module Name	Function Name	Requestor Default		-
-		Module	ru	Purchase Order	View My Documents	V		-
٩				Purchase Order	Create a New Document	V		
+		ENC	Vie	Purchase Order	Edit an Existing Document	V		
		ENC	Cr	Purchase Order	Credit Card Statement			
		ENC	Ed	Purchase Order	Receiving	V		
		ENC	Re	Purchase Order	Centralized Receiving			
		BUD	Vie	Purchase Order	Enable Receive All Button			
		BUD	Ed	Purchase Order	Add New Vendor			
		TSH	Vie	Purchase Order	Query Vendors			
			-	Purchase Order	Query Chart of Accounts		-	
				Purchase Order	Vendor Punchout Catalog			urity 尾 Clo
								City Marcine

Multiple users can be selected by holding the **CTRL** key and clicking on the usernames. Check the box against the function to be added for the role. Uncheck the box for deleting the function for the selected role.

8.2.2 Query

Use the query tab to retrieve a list of assigned permissions and group them by module,

function or by users. Click on the print button \Im to open the print view window for sending to a printer or exporting to excel.

urity R laintenar	nce Query	-		_		ity Role PP
Drag a c	column heade	r here to gro	up by that column			
User		Module	Function			Iodule Function
9						User 🔺
▶ Anna	Belle Martin	BUD	View My Worksheets		9	
Anna	a Belle Martin	BUD	Create a New Worksheet			 Function: View My Worksheets
Anna	a Belle Martin	BUD	Edit an Existing Worksheet			Anna Belle Martin
Anna	a Belle Martin	BUD	Allow deleting a budget item with			Dana R. Jeffries
Anna	a Belle Martin	BUD	Salary Worksheet			Frederick E. Smith
	a Belle Martin ecord 1 of 82		Disable Salary Import function in B	-		Joyce L. Brothers

💡 To filter, sort and group the data see <u>Sorting/Grouping/Filtering Data Grids</u>वा3

8.3 Organization Workflow

Before creating workflows in Microix, it helps to document your organization's approval process, identifying where the process begins, who makes the first approval, the second,

etc., and the final approval. For the Requisition/PO Module, you may also want to document the different approval processes based on the value and/or types of products or services being purchased.

The main purpose of a workflow is to identify the path for routing a document to a person or a group of people for approval. Additionally, it's purpose is to also help enforce specific business rules that may or may not be unique to each workflow. You can create as many workflows as needed for your organization, each with a maximum of 90 approval levels and an unlimited number or users (requesters). This section allows you to create, edit or delete workflows.

Workflow	103				> 🏄 a	4
Workflow ID	103	Description	Program Services			
Location	N/A	Organization Name	Sample Organization			

<u>Fields</u>	Descriptions
Workflow ID	Enter a short alpha, numeric, or alphanumeric name that represents the group name (example: MIS, 1009, or MIS1009).
	Avoid the use of symbols, such as "/\: * ? ; < > [] ' and # when creating a workflow ID.
Description	Enter a description (example: MIS Department, Accounting, Program 100).
	Avoid the use of symbols, such as $ " / \ : * ?; < > [] ' and # when creating a workflow description.$
Location	Enter a location (state, city or building number).
Organization Name	Enter the legal name of your organization. The name entered here will be printed on every report.
	Add a new workflow
	Delete an existing workflow
	Save changes
	Undo last change
1/2	To open the Workflow Wizard. The following window opens on the user's screen:

Vorkflow Wizard		>
 Requester Approvers Account Restriction 		
Module Type	ADJ	-
Source Workflow	103	*
User Name	Anna Belle Martin, Dana R. Jeffries, Ken Z. O	*
Destination Workflow		-

Select the module, source workflow and destination workflow.



To import an excel sheet. Refer to <u>Shared Activities> Import from Excel</u> [216] for more details.

8.3.1 Workflow Options

Workflow options are intended for the requisition and budget module. In this section you will learn how to set default options for each workflow.

equisition Default Values	Budget Worksheet Options			Bu	daet (Checking Options
Bill To Main 🔹 🥥 🔲 None Editable	Do not include salary narratives	on worksheet			-	at submit document without funds.
Ship To Main 🗸 🎒 🗌 None Editable	Show/edit current year projecte	d column			Seg	. Title
	Calculate projected column base	d on prior actual NOT currer	nt budget	Þ	0	GL
Requisition Tax Rate	Allow users to edit the total bud	get column			1	Fund
Tax Rate	Force narratives for Budget wor	ksheet			4	Dept
Tax GL 💌						
Create Vendor Filter						
Filter By Class Triter	<> ▼					
Misc						
Offsup ProfSvs	Apply			3	Rec	cord 1 of 3 🔹 🕨

Items	Description
Bill To	Select a bill to address or use the address icon to enter a new address. Refer to <u>Shared Activities>Address Code Maintenance</u> ^[218] for more details. The bill to address is used by the vendor to forward original invoices to your accounting department. Requesters will be able to change this address unless the option "Prevent Bill-To-Address Change" is checked.

Ship To Select a ship to address or use the address icon to enter a new address. The

ship to address is used by the vendor to mail a product or render a service to the specified address. Requesters will be able to change this address unless the option "Prevent Ship-To-Address Change" is checked.

Tax Rate Enter a default sales tax rate for each workflow. Requesters have the ability to modify the rate during data entry.

If your organization is exempt from paying sales tax then you can leave this field blank.

Tax GL This field is obsolete

CreateUse this section to limit the vendor list for each workflow. This is an optionalVendorfeature that is useful when you need to restrict a workflow by specific classesFilteror types of vendors.

The vendor class and type values are maintained via Abila MIP Fund Accounting Module>Vendor Maintenance File.

How to use:

- 1. Select a filter by option (Class or Type)
- 2. Select a criteria (not "<>" equal to or equal "=" to)
- 3. Select the filter values and use the apply button to save your selection

Budget> Use the Budget Worksheet Options to manipulate some of the featuresOptionsavailable on the budget worksheet entry form.

> Use the **Budget Checking Option** for both the Budget and Requisition Module. It allows you to select the segments that are required to budget and for the Requisition Module, it determines which segments are checked when viewing the available funds.

8.3.1.1 Budget Segments

The Budget Checking Options serves two roles:

- 1. For the **Requisition Module**, it identifies the segments Microix will check when viewing the available funds.
- 2. For the **Budget Module**, it activates the segments that are required when creating a new budget worksheet.

If you budget all segments in Abila MIP FA, you can skip this section. By default, Microix will included all segments while checking the budget and it will include all segments when creating a new budget worksheet.

Segment	Title		
0	GL		
1	Fund		
4	Dept		
	nt gr ot	Select All Workflows Program Services	×

How to use:

Click on the magic wand ^M button to open the Budget Segment Wizard. From this screen you can add or delete segments associated with specific workflows.

Scenario:

Your organization may have a total of six segments but you only budget three of the six segments. Click on the three segments you do budget and then select each workflow it

will affect. Finally, click on the add 🖶 button to add the settings or the delete 💢 button to remove the settings from each selected workflow.

8.3.2 Requesters

Use the Requesters tab to assign employees to a specific workflow. You can assign employees to multiple workflows EXCEPT for the timesheet module. Requesters will initiate documents in the system and submit them for approval.

List of A	II Us Requisition Budget				Req	uesters			
First	Name Account Paya	hle Invoice			L	lserID	RestrictionID	Restricted R	Do Not Show Inv Items
9	Encumbrance				9				
Anna Belle Inventory Adjustment			>	> A	Anna Belle Martin	Default			
Dana	R.	Jeffries			C	ana R. Jeffries	Default		
Ken Z	z.	OToole		«	K	en Z. OToole	Default		
Scott	tΥ.	Michaels			S	cott Y. Michaels	Default		

Document Type - Select a document type before assigning a requester. You must setup requesters for each purchased module.

Document Types

- Budget
- Requisition/PO
- Accounts Payable
- Encumbrance Modification
- Timesheet

How to use:

Select one or more users from the list box on the left and click on the right arrow button to move them to the list box on the right. To remove, select one or more users

from the list box on the right and use the left arrow \checkmark button to remove them. The

query requester \checkmark button can be used to filter, sort and print a hard copy of all requesters within a workflow.

Restriction ID - This column is utilized by the Requisition and Budget Module. It allows you to create multiple account restrictions that are different from the "Default" workflow Restriction ID. Multiple Restriction ID's are only required if there is a need to have users with different account restrictions within the same workflow. To create additional Restriction ID's, simply enter the name in the Restriction ID column and go to the <u>Account</u> Restrictions Itab to setup each restrictions.

Uhen assigning requesters to the document type "Requisition/PO", the system will automatically add the same requesters in both the Accounts Payable and Encumbrance Modification document types.

Wultiple items are selected by holding down the SHIFT key and clicking on them with the mouse or by holding down the SHIFT key and pressing an arrow key to extend the selection from the previously selected item to the current item. You can also select items by dragging with the mouse. Holding down the CTRL key and clicking an item will either select or deselect that item.

8.3.3 Approvers

Use this section to setup approval processes for each document type and workflow. Each approval level can have a user who will be responsible for approving documents when it reaches that step in the workflow process. This section is required because it defines how a document will be routed for approval.

)0	cument Routing	Type Requisi	tion	-	NOTE: e	ach unique a	approval I	evel must consist of	a GENERAL	. categor	у.
_	Level	Approver	Category	<=\$	Go to	Else	Confir	Message	Exclude	HTML 🔺	100
•	Requester 👻	Requester	General	\$0.00	Supervisor	Supervisor		N/A			
	Supervisor	Anna Belle	General	\$0.00	Accounting	Accounting		Please Approve Doc			

1. Document Routing Type determines which module the routing rule will be assigned to. You are required to setup a routing process for each module you purchased. If the routing

process is the same for other document types, then you may use the copy key routing button to duplicate the routing process from one document type to another.

- > ENC Requisition/Encumbrance
- > API Account Payable
- > ENL Encumbrance Modification
- > BD Budget Document
- ≻TSH Timesheet

2. Level - Each approval level can have a user who will be responsible for approving documents when it reaches that step in the workflow process. The system has a total of four default levels but you can add a maximum of 90 additional levels if needed. Additional levels are required if our default set of levels are not adequate. To add additional levels, see the Approval Level Title 172 section.

Microix default levels with description:

- Level 0 Requester level where all documents are initiated before they are submitted for approval.
- Level .5 Preliminary Timesheet level where all timeclock entries are converted to a timesheet
- > 10 Accounting level (We recommend using this level as the final approval level before documents are transferred to Abila MIP FA.)
- \succ 12 Document Approved level triggers Microix to transfer the document to Abila MIP Fund Accounting Software

Level 0 is not an approval level; it represents all the requesters in the selected workflow. Each workflow must have a level 0 before creating the approval routing process.

3. Approver - Click on the drop-down list and select the person who will be approving at the selected level. If the user is not listed, you can add them by clicking on the Users 1431 icon in the Maintenance Ribbon Menu.

Vert Level 0 does not require an approver's name. The system will default the word "Requester" in this column because it refers to all requesters in the workflow.

1 is important not to use the same level ID and assign different approvers; each approver should have a unique level ID.

4. Category - enables you to implement special routing rules based on your Chart of Accounts.

Scenario 1 - Your approval process requires all computer equipment purchases to be approved by the IT Manager and all office equipment purchases to be approved by the Facilities Manager. All other purchases should go directly to the immediate supervisor and then on to accounting.



2. Routing based on categories

How to implement Scenario 1:

- 1)Create two categories (IT and Office Equipment) See <u>approval categories</u> [158].
- 2)Utilize the new categories in the approval routing process. An example of the setup is shown below:

Level		Approver	Category	<= \$	Go to	Else	Confirmati
Requester	*	Requester	General	\$0.00	Supervisor	Supervisor	
Requester		Requester	IT Equip	\$0.00	IT	IT	
Requester		Requester	Office Equip	\$0.00	Office Manager	Office Manager	
Office Manag	ler	Scott Y. Michaels	General	\$0.00	Supervisor	Supervisor	
IT		Sam J. Evening	General	\$0.00	Supervisor	Supervisor	
Accounting		Anna Belle Martin	General	\$0.00	Documents Approved	Documents Approved	1

All levels must include a General category before additional categories are added.

Category routing is a function that is only available to the Requisition Module.

5. Less Than Equal to (<=\$) - enables you to implement special routing rules based on the total value of a document.

Scenario 2 - Your approval process requires all purchases to be approved by the CFO if the total document amount is greater than or equal to \$1,000. All other purchases should go directly to the immediate supervisor and then on to accounting.



How to setup Scenario 2 in Microix:

Routing based on purchased value

Level		Approver	Category	<= \$	Go to	Else	Confirmation
Requester	Requ	ester	General	\$0.00	Supervisor	Supervisor	
Supervisor	Sam J	I. Evening	General	\$999.99	Accounting	CFO	
CFO	Frede	rick E. Smith	General	\$0.00	Accounting	Accounting	
Accounting	Anna	Belle Martin	General	\$0 00	Documents Approved 💌	Documents Approved	

6. Go to - this column functions in conjunction with the value in "<=\$" (less than or equal to). If the value in the field "<=\$," is true, then the application will route the document based on the **Go to** value.

7. Else - this column functions in conjunction with the value in "<=\$". If the value in the field is false, then the application will route the document based on the **Else** value.

8. Confirmation - place a check in this column to have the system send an automatic email notification to the requester notifying them of the final approval status. Only one level should be checked. We suggest using level 10 as the confirmation level.

9. Message - the document number will be appended to the information in this field and used as the subject title of the email sent to the approver. *Example: The approver will receive a message in their electronic mailbox with a subject entitled "Please approve document number 02ENC-1001".* You may change the default text to your organization's preference.

Butt on	Description
÷	Add a new level in workflow
×	Delete the selected level in Workflow
	Undo the last change
P	Add or maintain categories. See <u>Category Wizard [158]</u> for more information.
&	Copies routing from a specific workflow and document type
\$	See Query Approvers for more information.
>	To open the Routing Wizard. Refer to <u>Routing Wizard</u> 160 for more details.

8.3.3.1 Category Wizard

Use the Category Wizard to create, edit or delete categories for the Requisition/PO approval process. Categories help identify the type of purchase and allow the system to automatically forward documents based on specific account codes. When creating a new document, the item expense codes will be matched with the ones used in the categories. If it matches, then it will route the document based on the category rules. If not, it will

follow the general (default) routing process.

In order to implement categories, users are required to enter the account numbers for each item at the time of creating a new requisition/PO document.

	Code	Title		Segment	Code	Title
9			9			
•	101	Administration	•	Dept	201	Program Services
	301	Accounting				
	401	Executive Director				
	990	Non Dept Related				
	998	Allocated Dept				
	999	Pooled Dept				

<u>Fields/</u> Buttons	Descriptions
	Click on the drop down list box to select an existing category. If you are adding a new category, use the 🕈 ADD button.
Segment ID	Select the segment ID of the accounts to be used for identifying the category
List of	A list of accounts will be displayed based on the selected segment ID.
	Select all the accounts that will be used to determine if a document is
Accounts	associated with the category. Use the right arrow button to move the accounts to the "Select Accounts" list box.
	Add a new Category
	$ ho$ Avoid the use of symbols, such as " / \ : * ? ; < > [] ' and # when

<u>Fields/</u><u>Descriptions</u> Buttons

creating a Category ID.



Delete an existing Category



Save any changes

Wultiple items are selected by holding down the SHIFT key and clicking on them with the mouse or by holding down the SHIFT key and pressing an arrow key to extend the selection from the previously selected item to the current item. You can also select items by dragging with the mouse. Holding down the CTRL key and clicking an item will either select or deselect that item.

8.3.3.2 Routing Wizard

The purpose of the Routing Wizard is to manage the approval routing process for multiple workflows. The following window will open on the user's screen:

ist	t of Workflow Gr	oup ID	Process Type	
9	Workflow ID	Description Program Services	 Insert a new approval level Update an existing level Delete an existing level Update Email Message Update Send Appvl Msg to U 	lser
			Level ID Document Routing Type User ID Category <=\$ Goto Else Message Send Approval Msg to User	• • • •
				🖌 Apply 🚺 Close

<u>Fields/</u> Buttons	Description
Process Type	Select the type of process you would like to perform: • Insert a new approval level • Update an existing level • Delete an existing level • Update Email Message • Update Send Approval Message to User
	Note: This field can be enabled or disabled based on the type of process.
Level ID	Select the level ID you will be inserting, updating or deleting.
User ID	Click on the drop-down list and select the User related to the process type.
Category	Select the category you will be inserting, updating or deleting.
<=\$	Depending on the process type, it will ask you to supply a less than or equal to dollar amount. This amount is used to apply rules to the routing process.
Go to	This field works in conjunction with the value in "<=\$" (less than or equal to). If the value in the field "<=\$," is true, than the application will route the document based on the Go to value.
Else	This works in conjunction with the value in "<=\$". If the value in the field is false, then the application will route the document based on the Else value.
Message	Depending on the process type, you can specify a generic email subject that will ultimately append the document number when sending the approval message. The system will automatically enter a default value "Please approve document number - ".

8.3.4 Account Restrictions

Use this section to setup account restrictions for each workflow. This feature is optional but is very useful in helping to reduce coding errors in both the Requisition and Budget Modules. Restrictions can be unique for each workflow and based on one or more segments.

		ID Segment ID	Q		Re	stricted	Accounts		All	ow Addir	ng New Accounts
)efai	ult 🔻	+ GL				Code ID	Title		Γ	Segm	User Name
LIS	C OF ACC	ouncs	Street A		9				*		
	Cod	Title		>	•	54001	Dues & Fees				
9	L					55001	Building Rent				
	59001	Depreciation Expense		-		56001	Utilities and Mainter	nance			
	60001	Direct Food		<u> </u>		76			-		
	61001	Direct Transportation									
	62001	Direct Shelter	-						Re	cord 0 of	o 🕂 💥 🔊 🛛

How to use:

Select the segment ID and a list of accounts will be displayed in the list box on the left.

Highlight each row of accounts and use the right arrow \gtrsim button to move them to the list box on the right. To remove, select one or more accounts from the list box on the

right and use the left arrow \leq button. The query accounts \checkmark button can be used to filter, sort and print a hard copy of all restrictions within a workflow.

Restriction ID - allows multiple restrictions within the same workflow by assigning different accounts for each restriction ID. By default, the system includes the "Default" Restriction ID. However, additional restriction IDs can be created using the requester [153] tab. Use the add + button to copy/duplicate another restriction ID.

By default, each user will have access to all accounts if the restrictions are not utilized.

Multiple items are selected by holding down the SHIFT key and clicking on them with the mouse or by holding down the SHIFT key and pressing an arrow key to extend the selection from the previously selected item to the current item. You can also select items by dragging with the mouse. Holding down the CTRL key and clicking an item will either select or deselect that item.

8.3.5 Personnel

The Personnel tab is used solely by the Budget Module. If you are planning to budget salaries and benefits by employees, you can use this section to assign the employees to their respective workflow.

There are three methods to gathering the salary information:

- 1. Manually entering each employee's information in the grid
- 2. Import from Abila MIP FA payroll module
- 3. Import from Microsoft Excel

Setup Notes:

Scenario 1 - HR Manager is responsible for budgeting the salaries and benefits. With this scenario, all employees will be entered/imported into the HR Manager's workflow.

Scenario 2 - Each Supervisor/Manager is responsible for budgeting the salaries and benefits for each employee within their department/workflow. With this scenario, you will be entering/importing employees to their respective workflows.

 ${f I}$ Employees cannot be assigned to multiple workflows.

Opl	tions Requ	iesters	Approvers	Account Restrictions	Personnel	Budget Ter	mplate	Restrict Dist	ributions	Restrict Cate(
-	EmployeeID	Fi	rst Name	Last Name	Job Title	(GL Accou	nt % Incr	Dist ID	Workflow
۶	🗄 Anderso	n C	harles	Anderson	Program R	ep 5	50001	C	N/A	300
	🗄 Evening	Sa	ami	Evening	Supervisor	. 5	50001	C	N/A	300
	⊞ Jeffries	D	ana	Jeffries	Program R	ep 5	50001	C	N/A	300
	🖽 Martin	A	nnaBelle	Martin	Administra	tor 5	50001	0	N/A	300

Column	Description
Name/	
Button	

Employee IDEnter an employee ID

If you are planning to budget for an open position in the upcoming budget cycle, use the first and last name to specify the position name.

First & Last Enter the first and last name of the designated employee

NameJob TitleEnter a job title for the designated employee (optional)

- **GL Account** Enter the salary expense account number
- **% Incr** If the employee will receive a raise within the budgeting period, then enter the percentage
- **Dist ID** Select a distribution code from the drop-down list (The source of the list is the Abila MIP Fund Accounting system).
 - Add a new employee/salary position
 - Delete an employee
 - Import data from <u>Microsoft Excel</u>वि or <u>Abila MIP FA Payroll Module</u> 163

8.3.5.1 Import From MIP

Use this form to import employee data from Abila MIP FA payroll module to the Organization Workflow>Personnel tab.

164 Workflow Modules

μι	ersonnel Import ort Source		
)	MIP Employees (includes benefits)	Microsoft Excel File	Salary Allocation (Excel File)
L	Acct 50001	% Change 0.00 %	No of Hours 2080
	EmployeeID	Last Name	First Name
•	Otoole	OToole	Ken
	Parks	Parks	Millie
	Smith	Smith	Frederick

How to use:

- 1. Select an Import Source related to Abila MIP FA Employees
- 2. Select the Salary GL Account Number
- 3. Enter a % Change for across the board salary increases (optional)
- 4. Select the employees from the grid. Use the Ctrl/Shift key for multiple selection and

click on the import 🗳 button to complete the process

Wultiple items are selected by holding down the SHIFT key and clicking on them with the mouse or by holding down the SHIFT key and pressing an arrow key to extend the selection from the previously selected item to the current item. You can also select items by dragging with the mouse. Holding down the CTRL key and clicking an item will either select or deselect that item.

8.3.6 **Restrict Distributions**

Distribution Codes allow you to specify, in advance, to which account segments you want to distribute transaction amounts. Distribution Codes help to reduce transaction entry time and increase accuracy for common entries. They are most useful when you have specific types of transactions that are split between different cost centers, funding sources, departments, etc.

• Requisition/PO Module - Users can split the cost of a product or service by using a

distribution code

- **Timesheet Module** Users can associate their worked hours to a specific distribution code (Charge Code)
- **Budget Module** Utilizes distribution codes to allocate a total budget amount to all funding sources

Lis	t of Distribut	ion				Ur	nrestricted	Distributions	
-	DistCodeID	Description	АррТуре				DistCod	Description	Comments Required
9						9			
•	Adams	Martha Adams	Ρ		•		Day Car	Day Care Direct	
	ALLOCATI	Allocation Distribution Code	Р		>		Direct	Direct Distribu	
	Assets	Assets	в		«				
	Brothers	Joyce Brothers	Р		•				
	Discount	AR Discount Distribution	A	-					

How to use:

Select one or more distribution codes from the list box on the left and click on the right

arrow *v* button to move them to the list box on the right. To remove, select one or more

distribution codes from the list box on the right and use the left arrow $\,\,$ button.

By default, all users in the workflow will have access to all distribution codes if no restrictions are selected.

Multiple items are selected by holding down the SHIFT key and clicking on them with the mouse or by holding down the SHIFT key and pressing an arrow key to extend the selection from the previously selected item to the current item. You can also select items by dragging with the mouse. Holding down the CTRL key and clicking an item will either select or deselect that item.

8.3.7 Restrict Categories

Items that will be requisitioned can be grouped into user-defined categories. You can restrict which workflows have access to which categories by using the Restrict Categories tab of the workflow maintenance screen.

Lis	t of Categories				Re	stricted C	ategories	
	CategoryID	De	scription]		CategoryI	D Des	cription
9					9			
+	Medical	Me	dical		Þ	Office	Offi	ce
	Other	Ot	ner	>				
	Other5567	Ot	ner5567		4			
	PHONE	PH	ONE	<				
	Reimbursement	Re	imbursement					
	TABLET	TA	BLET					

How to use:

Select one or more categories from the list box on the left and click on the right arrow

 \nearrow button to move them to the list box on the right. To remove, select one or more

categories from the list box on the right and use the left arrow \checkmark button.

By default, all users in the workflow will have access to all categories if no restrictions are selected.

Wultiple items are selected by holding down the SHIFT key and clicking on them with the mouse or by holding down the SHIFT key and pressing an arrow key to extend the selection from the previously selected item to the current item. You can also select items by dragging with the mouse. Holding down the CTRL key and clicking an item will either select or deselect that item.

8.3.8 Budget Template

The **Budget Template** tab is optional and used solely by the Budget Module. It is primarily used to populate budget worksheets with specific account numbers. Templates are most beneficial when historical data is not present in the Abila MIP Fund Accounting software.

ptior	ns Requ	esters	Approvers	Account Restrictions	Persor	nnel	Budge	t Te	emplate	Restrict Distributions	Restrict Categories	
Lis	t of GL Ad	count	5					Bue	dget Ter	nplate		
	CodeID	Title							CodeID	Title		
9								9				
	12001	Inves	tments					Þ	50001	Salaries		_
	13501	Estima	ated Third Par	ty Pmts		>			50002	Overtime Expense		
	14001	Due F	rom Other Fu	nds			- T		50003	Bonus Expense		
	15001	State	Grants Receiv	able		5			50004	Job Training Expens	se	
	15501	Feder	al Grants Rec	eivable					50005	Indirect Salaries Ex	pense	
	16900	Other	Receivables		-				51001	Payroll Taxes		Ŧ

How to use:

Select one or more accounts from the list box on the left and click on the right arrow \gg button to move them to the list box on the right. To remove, select one or more

accounts from the list box on the right and use the left arrow \leq button to remove the accounts from the budget template.

Wultiple items are selected by holding down the SHIFT key and clicking on them with the mouse or by holding down the SHIFT key and pressing an arrow key to extend the selection from the previously selected item to the current item. You can also select items by dragging with the mouse. Holding down the CTRL key and clicking an item will either select or deselect that item.

8.4 Global Options

The Maintenance Global Options pull-down menu includes functions that are essential to the setup of the Workflow Modules application, as well as some back-end maintenance type features.



Menu Description

Item

Application Set up system type information like the email server name and attachments Options real directory

Approval Set up the variable approval levels necessary for the workflow processes Level Title 172 Document Assign number scheme for all document types Numbers 174 Change Move multiple documents from one user's ownership to another Document <u>Ownership</u> 176 Terminolog Customize system data labels and codes <u>y</u> 177 System View users logged into the Workflow Modules and delete inactive sessions if Login 178 needed Review and print the system audit trail <u>System</u> Audit Trail 178 Global Indicate the codes to be used for the pick-lists throughout the application

	Description
Item	
<u>Lookup</u> ท79ไ	

8.4.1 Application Options

<u>Network Path</u>

Attachments - Enter a network location for all attachments. By default, this path should be your \\SQLServerName\Microix Share\Attachment folder. All Microix users must have read/write access to the network path you specify. The network path is used by the application as a temporary folder to extract any SQL attachments for viewing purposes.

Network Path	
🔽 Save Attachme	ents To UNC Path
Attachments	
	Copy All SQL Attachments to UNC Path

When relocating the Microix Share folder to another server other than the Abila MIP FA Server, make the necessary changes to the Network Path and redo the read/ write permission.

If you are utilizing the attachment feature, include the Microix Attachment database (MWFMAttachment) as part of your daily backup routine. It is not necessary to backup the Network Path specified above.

Change Admin Password

The Admin password should be secured and only specific members of your accounting staff should have permissions to use this password. The product is embedded with a default Admin account and password. The password is the same as Abila MIP Fund Accounting Admin password.

Change Admin Password	
New Password	
Confirm Password	Apply

Enter a password in the **New Password** field and reenter the password in the

Confirm Password field. Select the **Apply** \checkmark button to save the password.

Learning The new password should be a minimum of 6 characters and include both alpha and numeric characters.

Budget Settings

Select the budget version Microix should use when retrieving budget data from Abila MIP Fund Accounting Software.

Budget Version	Revised			•
Retrieve YT	D budget	Fiscal Year End	12/31/2015	-

Email Color Scheme

Designate the color scheme to be used in the notification emails.

ne				
Wheat	-	Detail Color	LightYellow	-
	Wheat	e Wheat 🔹		

Other Settings

Other Settings		
Required Field Color	LightGreen	-
Application Skin Name	Silver	-
Web Address\URL	http://www.microix.info:8081	

Items	Description
Required Field Color	This is the background color of the fields that are required entry on forms
Application Skin Name	Color scheme of the application interface
Web Address\URL	Web service address that hosting your Microix email approval

SMTP Mail Server Information

This application has a built-in email component to send email notifications through your local or remote SMTP mail server. Emails will only be sent if the **Enable Email Notification** is checked. Removing the check mark will disable the email function for the entire application. You should only disable the email notification if you do not have an SMTP mail server or it is temporarily unavailable.

SMTP Mail Serve	er Information	POP3 Mail Server Information				
Server Name				Enable	Email	
Auth. Method	None		*	Port	25	*
User ID						
Password						
Use the button to	test email (NOTE;	Log off each time you change settings)			Ema	il

Items	Description
Server Name	Enter the name of your local or remote SMTP mail server name.
Auth. Method	 Select the authentication method for your mail server. None - does not require a User ID or Password SMTP - requires a User ID and password SSL - requires a User ID and password
Port	25 is the default port for SMTP servers. Change this value if your SMTP mail server is sending mail through a different port number.
User ID	If the SMTP mail server is configured for authentication, enter a User ID in this field.
Password	If your mail server is configured for authentication, enter the password associated with the User ID.

V If the SMTP mail server utilizes authentication to relay email, you can create a "POAdmin" email account and use this account for the User ID and Password.

Windows Active Directory Options

Allows users to utilize Windows Active Directory security for logging into the Workflow Modules instead of maintaining a separate set of passwords.

Warning: Before activating this feature, you must assign at least one user permission to all functions in the application because the Admin account will be disabled.

Windows Active Directory Options						
Server Name						

Use Windows ID at login - The standard method for logging into Microix is to use the pick list of users presented on the login screen. If this check-box is checked, the pick list will not be presented and users instead will login by typing in their Windows

login.

Other Options

Other Options	
Notify the following user when someone is substituted	
Anna Belle Martin	-
Show all users when selecting a substitute (currently only approvers are shown)	
Disable Application Login (only admin account can login)	
Send Email to Alternate Approver	
Send approved message on arrival of the approval level	
Disable the form printing dialog box when approving a document	
Show max number of records 1000 ‡	
Refresh Abila Segments/Org Name/ Org ID 💿 Refresh	

Notify the following user... - Select an administrator who will receive an email copy of any approval substitution.

Refresh Segment/Org Info from Abila MIP - Use this button to synch Microix's general ledge segments and organization fields with Abila MIP's Fund Accounting database. You will only use this button when there has been a change to this information in Abila MIP.

If you are working with Grants that are on different fiscal periods, please refer to **Funding Fiscal Year** to assist you with setting up a unique fiscal year for each funding source.

8.4.2 Approval Level Title

The system accommodates a maximum of 90 approval levels to be shared between all Modules.

We recommend assigning the last approver to level 10. Additionally, we also recommend that someone from your accounting department should always be the last approver for any documents transferring to Abila MIP Fund Accounting.

,	Renum	ber Approval Levels									
T	Level 🔺	Level Title	Description	Printed Document S	New Vendor	Consolidate	Received N	Email On/Off	Disable Edit	Disable Print	Active
T	0.0	Requester	New Docu	New Document							V
1	0.5	Preliminary Timesheet	Preliminary	Approval In Process							1
T	1.0	Supervisor	Supervisor	Approval In Process	V	V		V			1
1	2.0	Manager	Manager D	Approval In Process	V			1			1
I	2.1	Purchasing	Purchasing	Approval In Process				1			1
1	4.0	Warehouse	Warehouse	Approval In Process				1			1
	5.0	N/A	N/A	Approval In Process				1			1
I	6.0	N/A	N/A	Approval In Process				1			
I	7.0	N/A	N/A	Approval In Process				1			
1	8.0	N/A	N/A	Approval In Process				1			
	9.0	N/A	N/A	Approval In Process				1			
Ī	10.0	Accounting	Accounting	Approved			1	1			1

Columns/ Description Buttons Level The data in this field is automatically generated and it represents the numeric value for each approval level. The system has 10 default approval levels. If you would like to create additional levels, simply select an existing level anywhere between 1 and 10 and click on the Add 📌 button. To delete an unused level, click on the delete 🗱 button. Microix will not allow you to delete any default approval levels (0,1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10). To inactivate these levels, enter the value "N/A" in the Level Title column.

Level Title Enter a name for each active approval level.

Description Enter the description for each active approval level (optional). The system will automatically generate a value for this column but it can be modified if needed.

Printed The value enter in this column will be printed on each Requisition form. Document Status

New Vendor Select a level where the system will automatically notify the approver when a new vendor was added to a document. Alert



1 This function only applies to the Requisition Module.

Consolidate If your organization allows multiple vendors for each requisition, you can set **Documents** the level at which the consolidation of requisitions by vendor will occur. This feature is normally used in organizations that are based on a centralized purchasing system.

1 This function only applies to the Requisition Module.

Received Used to indicate that a notification should be sent to this level once the **Notification** warehouse has fully picked or received all of the items on the document.

 ${f 1}$ This function only applies to the Inventory Module.

Email On/ Check or uncheck to indicate whether this level should receive email notifications or not.

Disable Edit Check to restrict users at this level from editing documents.

Disable PrintCheck to restrict users at this level from printing documents.

Active Indicates whether this level is active or not.

Delete a new Approval Level.



Add a new Approval Level.

*

Avoid the use of symbols, such as $| " / \ : * ?; < > [] ' and # when creating an approval level title.$

8.4.3 Document Numbers

This form is used to assign the numbering scheme for all documents in Microix Workflow Modules.

Caution should be taken when creating your numbering schema as this value will be restricted based on the maximum field length Abila MIP FA will accept for their document number.

'n			and Last # Used alues to exceed M			i o avoid trar	ister e	errors,		-
P	TIONAL (Requisition Modul	le ONLY): Select a nt document numb	level where	the system sho	ould	PUF	RCHASING		<i>P</i> 2
			maximum size (Pu the same "Last # Use		Module Only)		4			
	DocType	 DocPrefix 	Last # Used	Can Edit	Default	Active		Docum	Prefix	Last D
	API	12-AP	1,017		1	1		API	12-AP	1023
	BD	12-BD	1,000		V	1		BD	12-BD	1007
	CLK	CLK	1,000		1	\checkmark		CLK	CLK	01007
	ENC	12-EN	1,067		1	1		ENC	12-EN	1074
	PO	PO	5,047		V	1	•	TSH	12-TS	1012
	TSH	12-T5	1.001		V	1				

Column Description

Name

Doc Type ADJ - Inventory Adjustment

- API Account Payable
- BD Budget Worksheet
- CLK Badge Number for Timeclock
- ENC Encumbrance/Purchase Order
- ENL Encumbrance Modification
- INV Inventory Count Sheet
- PO Purchase Order (Optional)
- SO Sales Order
- TSH Timesheet
- DocA Document prefix is placed at the beginning of the last number used and
together, makes the complete document number. Each type of document in
Microix is required to have a unique number that will eventually be transferred
to Abila MIP FA.

Examples of a Document Prefix:

- BD-1000
- 12-BD-1000

•

The example above demonstrates a prefix that includes the document type (BD -Budget). However, the "12-BD" prefix went a bit further to include the fiscal year as part of the document prefix.

Incorporating the fiscal year into your document number is acceptable but it does require maintenance at the end of each fiscal year.

Last # Enter a numeric value in this field. Microix will generate document numbersUsed based on the value in this field.

Remember to consider the maximum document field length Abila MIP FA will accept.

- **Can Edit** This option will allow an end-user to manually enter a predefined number. If the end-user do not enter a number, the system will automatically assign the last number used to the document.
- **Default** If two or more "Doc Type" exist, we recommend selecting one as a default. This value is required if the option "For each document type, use the same **Last # Used** value" is checked.
- Active Check this column to activate the document number settings.

1. Select a level where the system will assign a different document number - Use this option if your organization would like to use a different document number after final approval. Document Type "**PO**" should be added and configured before utilizing this feature.

2. Enter the document number maximum size (Requisition Module ONLY) - The

value in this field will cause Microix to include leading zeros when assigning a document number.

Examples:

(With leading zeros) Document Number Maximum Size - 5 digits Doc Prefix - 12-ENC Last # Used - 10 Results - 12-ENC-00010 (Microix included leading zeros to the last # used)

(Without leading zeros) Document Number Maximum Size - 0 Doc Prefix - 12-ENC Last # Used - 10 Results - 12-ENC-10 (Microix did not include any leading zeros)

3. For each document prefix, use the same "Last # Used" value - If checked, the system will use the same "Last # Used" value for all similar document types.

Example: (Option Checked)

	DocType 🔺	DocPrefix	Last # Used	Can Edit	Default	Active	
I	ENC	12-EN	1,000		V	7	
	BD	12-BD	1,000		\checkmark	1	

If an end-user creates the first document using prefix 12-EN, Microix will assign 12-EN-1001 as the document number. Additionally, if the end-used creates a second document using the prefix 12-EN, Microix will assign 12-EN-1002 as the document number. If the option was not checked, Microix will assign 12-EN-1 as the document number.

8.4.4 Change Document Ownership

This feature is used when an employee leaving the company, owns documents that must be transferred to other users so that the documents can continue to be managed once the employee is gone. You select the module type and the user to transfer from first. The document list will be refreshed with the documents owned by the user and module selected. Highlight which documents to update and the employee you will be transferring ownership to and then click the Process button.

	elect the type of docume	nts being updated				
0	Requisition Module	Budget Module	e			
ele	ct an employee who you	would like to transfer o	wnership from:	Select an employee who you would	like to transfer ov	nership to:
Inn	a Belle Martin		P	Dana R. Jeffries		
_	Vorkflow ID	Doc Type	Descripti	ion	Status	User Name
1	v Workflow ID: 103					
	13-BD-1001	BD	Budget D	Document for Administration	Request	Anna Belle.
	13-BD-1003	BD	Budget D	Document for Program Service	Request	Anna Belle.
	13-BD-1002	BD	Budget [Document for Executive	Request	Anna Belle.
	13-BD-1006	BD	Budget [Document for Administration	Request	Anna Belle
	13-BD-1007	BD	Budget D	Document for Executive	Request	Anna Belle.
	13-BD-1009	BD	Budget D	Document for TEST	Docume	Anna Belle.
	13-BD-1008	BD	Budget D	Document for Program Service	Docume	Anna Belle.

8.4.5 Terminology

There is certain data that must be stored in the Microix Workflow Modules database for the application to function properly. An example of this is the general ledger segments. However you may want to customize the segment information so that it appears on forms and reports with different labels or captions. The Terminology screen will allow you do to this. You can change the segment identifiers, as well as the item types used by the PO/ Requisition Module.

Mod	dule Functions				S	egments	5			
1	Sub Function Desc	ription				SegID	Segment Title	Туре	Salary Rollup	Value Length
Þ	> Main Function	on: Reports					0 GL	GL		1
							1 Fund	FUND		1
							2 Grant	BAL		1
							3 Progr	RES		1
							4 Dept	NBAL		
Re	cord 1 of 1				▶		5 117	RES		
	cord 1 of 1 4						5 117	RES		
ter		Description	Modules	• Туре	Taxable/Shi	pping	5 117	RES	Transfe	
ter	n Types		Modules	• Туре	Taxable/Shi				Transfe	
iter	n Types Item Type		Modules	• Туре	Taxable/Shi	pping				erable

8.4.6 System Logins

The **System Login** form displays all users who are currently logged into the application. It identifies the user's name, network name, computer name, and date the user logged in. If an end-user terminates the application without properly logging off, he/she will remain in the system and continue to occupy a user license. If this occurs, locate the user name in

the table and click on the delete lpha button to remove them. The license will be released immediately for others to use.

To filter, sort and group the data see <u>Sorting/Grouping/Filtering Data Grids</u> [213]

System Logins Documents Locked				
Microix Login Name	Network Login Name	Computer Name	Date	
Module: RBN Anna Belle Martin	Levi	MICROIX-LEVI	10/19/2015	
	1			
Record 1 of 1 💥 4	*1			

8.4.7 System Audit Trail

Use the **System Audit Trail** form to view and print a log of some administrative functions performed in the system such as the addition, modification, or deletion of workflows and time clock data.

🗑 To filter, sort and group the data see <u>Sorting/Grouping/Filtering Data Grids</u>213

Ν	1od	ule 🔺								Γ
	Use	er Name	CPU	CPU Name	DateStamp	Action	Caption	Old V	New Value	
9										
Þ	~	Module: ENC								
		Anna Belle Martin	Rickie	PE-T310	8/20/2012	Added	VendorID		Microix	
		Anna Belle Martin	Rickie	PE-T310	8/20/2012	Approved	VendorID		Microix	
		Anna Belle Martin	Rickie	PE-T310	8/20/2012	Approved	VendorID		Microix	
		Anna Belle Martin	Rickie	PE-T310	8/20/2012	Approved	VendorID		Microix	
		Anna Belle Martin	Rickie	PE-T310	8/20/2012	Approved	VendorID		Microix	
		Anna Belle Martin	cherry	WIN7-V	9/26/2012	Added	VendorID		GAS SOUTH	

8.4.8 Global Lookup

The **Global Lookup** is a form that should not be accessed or changed without the advise of a Microix Support Representative. The majority of lookup values throughout the application are based on the values in this form.

Please backup your Microix Database before making any changes.

 \mathbb{V} To filter, sort and group the data see Sorting/Grouping/Filtering Data Grids $^{[213]}$

1od		Inventory Module	_			🔒 🔊 🍦
_	up Field Type	Category				
_	ookup Value		Description	Default	Active	System Value
Computer Supplies Food		S	Computer Supplies			
			Food		V	
	ledical		Medical		V	
	ledical Supplies		Medical Supplies		V	
	lisc		Misc			
-	ffice Supplies		Office Supplies			
Property Supplies			Property Supplies		\checkmark	
						_
		- 				

8.5 Approval Substitution

The **Approval Substitution** form is intended for substitutes to be identified for approvers before they take leave or extended time off. It will ensure that documents are still be

being approved while they are on leave.

Approval Substitution				
Select Approver				
Original Approver				-
Options				
Leaving	C Early Return			
Select approval level				-
Who will be substituting for t	he original approver?			-
When should the substitute b	ecome active?	10/22/2015		-
What date will the original ap	prover return?			-
		Apply	Can	cel

Fields	Description
Select Approver	Select the approver who will be absent.
Options	Leaving - Select this option when the Original Approver is taking a leave of absence.
	Early Return - Select this option if the system should return the Original Approver as the main approver.
Approval Level	Select the approval level. If the Original Approver is approving in more than one level, a substitute will have to be created for each level.
Substitute	Select the end-user who will be substituting.
Return Date	Enter the date the Original Approver will be returning. The system will automatically return them as the approver on that specified date.

8.6 Document Maintenance

The **Document Maintenance** form provides administrators access to all the documents in the system. If a document is lost or incorrectly routed to the wrong approver, you can manually change the status to the correct approver.

Use caution when granting permissions to this form. We recommend that administrators of the application or someone in your accounting department should only be granted access to this form.
ocum	nent Type	Requisition		P				R	etrieve Rea	ords	1	1000 [
Doc	ument Stati	Requisition Budget										
	oc Type	Timesheet Inventory Adjustment		e	User Name	Document Description	Workfl	Vendor	Total	Session	% Completed A	.tt
9												
+ v	Docume	nt Status: 0 - Reques	ter Documents									
	ENC	Request Items from	13-EN-To B	10/20/2015	Dana R. Je	Inventory Items Picked using Barco	103	UNASS	5,161.80		0.00 %	
	ENC	Request Items from	13-EN-1019	10/20/2015	Dana R. Je	Inventory Items Picked using Barco	103	UNASS	2,580.90		0.00 %	
	ENC	Request Items from	13-EN-1018	10/16/2015	Anna Belle	Inventory Items Picked using Barco	103	UNASS	3.66		0.00 %	
	ENC	Request Items from	13-EN-1017	10/16/2015	Anna Belle	Inventory Items Picked using Barco	103	UNASS	3.66		0.00 %	
	ENC	Return Items to Inv	13-EN-1015	10/15/2015	Anna Belle	Return A series	103	UNASS	0.00		0.00 %	
	ENC	Request Items from	13-EN-1010	8/11/2015	Anna Belle	Request items from inventory	103	UNASS	11.97		0.00 %	
	ENC	Standard Requisition	13-EN-1009	8/11/2015	Anna Belle	Request for 20 units	103	ABC	400.00		0.00 %	
			7						8,161			
v	Docume	nt Status: 10 - Accou	nting Documents (A	nna Belle Martin)								
	ENC	Standard Requisition	13-EN-1016	10/15/2015	Anna Belle	Order new A series	103	UNASS	37.60		100.00 %	
	ENC	Request Items from	13-EN-1014	10/15/2015	Anna Belle	Request A series	103	UNASS	5.76		100.00 %	
	ENC	Standard Requisition	13-EN-1013	8/13/2015	Anna Belle	Test Partial Pay	103	ABC	5,988.00		50.00 %	
1			17						\$42,5			
à	1 4	🙀 🌳 💣 Record 1	l of 17 🔄									÷

Options/Description

Buttons

Docume Allows you to filter the list of documents based on the following types: **nt Type** 1. Requisition (ENC)

- 2. Accounts Payable (API)
- 3. Encumbrance Modification (ENL)
- 4. Budget (BD)
- 5. Timesheet (TSH)

Change Use this option if you have good reason to manipulate the document status. **Docume** This function is commonly used when the following scenarios occur:

nt Status

to

- The workflow was setup incorrectly and a document was routed to the wrong approver. Use this option to change the document status to the correct approval level.
 - You have transferred a document to Abila MIP FA but realized it was not correct. We recommend that you delete the un-posted document from Abila MIP FA. Next, use this option to reset the transferred document to the previous level. Make the necessary adjustments/corrections through the normal approval process and re-transfer to Abila MIP FA.

How to use: Find the document in the list, select the new status by clicking on the magnify \checkmark button and click on the check \checkmark button to apply the changes. You will be prompted to enter a reason for your actions.

Microix default levels:

- > 0 Requester Level (The person work initiated the document)
- .5 Preliminary Timesheet (The person who created the preliminary timesheets)
- > 10 Accounting Level
- > 12 Document Approved
- > 13 Document Denied
- > 14 Document Transferred to Abila MIP FA

8.6.1



- 3. **Delete un-posted Abila MIP documents** this process will allow you to delete a Microix document that was transferred to Abila MIP FA but not yet posted.
- 4. Purge documents from Microix database use this option when all users are

practicing in the software for the very first time and you would like to permanently delete all the documents from the database. The workflows and setup information will not be affected. If the total number of documents exceed 100, this function will not be available.

5. **Modify the vendor ID for a posted encumbrance** - when purchase orders are posted in Abila MIP FA with an incorrect vendor, use this option to re-assign the encumbrance to a different vendor. This function is only available if the document have not been partially or fully liquidated.

6. **Transfer leave to Abila MIP as an adjustment** - Generates a document to transfer leave to Abila MIP.

7. Change document prefix - Change the document prefix assigned to a document.

When performing any of the above tasks, it is important to backup your Microix database. To backup your database, navigate to Support>Backup Database.

WARNING! Any options that involve "Delete" or "Purge" will be permanently deleted from the database and cannot be restored unless you have a backup of the database prior to deleting.

Other Options	
Select an option	
O Delete practice	e data from transaction table
O Delete void do	cuments
O Delete unposte	ed Abila documents
O Purge docume	nts from Microix database
O Modify the ven	dor ID for a posted encumbra
	to Abila as an adjustment
Change Docum	
O Attachment Re	
O Delete posted	document from Abila
C Delete posted	document from Abila
	document from Abila
Required Values	document from Abila
Required Values Module ID	
Required Values Module ID DocNum	
Required Values Module ID DocNum Workflow	
Required Values Module ID [DocNum [Workflow [Encumbrance Information [

8.7 Post Messages

This function provides a method for users of the Workflow Modules application to notify other users of the application of significant events. Selecting Post Messages from the Maintenance ribbon menu will bring up the following form. Add a new message by clicking

on the **b**utton. You enter the message you want shown along with the date you want to start showing and end showing it. You can also give it a category and select just certain workflows or users to see the message.

	Contraction and the	End Posting	Start Posting	Date Created 🍸	Created By	Message	Category	
%	%	12/31/2012	12/12/2012	12/12/2012	Anna Belle Martin	New Microix version is available. Please check websit	New Version	Þ
%	%	12/12/2012	12/12/2012	12/12/2012	Anna Belle Martin	Staff Meeting today @ 2:00 in the conference room	Meeting	
								*
								*

Once the message is saved it will show up on the Message Board section of the Home Page during the date range indicated.

Category	Posted By
Meeting	Anna Belle Martin
Staff Meeting today @ 3	2:00 in the conference room
New Version	Anna Belle Martin
New Microix version is a	vailable. Please check website for download.

8.8 Custom Report Designer



Report Designer:

The Report Designer module allows the user to design custom report layouts. Data binding, Import and Export of reports is also available.

To design a report click on "Custom Report Designer" in the Maintenance tab.

	₹			Worl	kflow Module	es 2013				
U	Budget	Requisiti	on/Purchase Or	der Inv	entory T	Timesheet	Maintenance	s Supp	oort	
<mark>8</mark> 5	f	è	2		R	<u></u>		1		T
Users	Security	Fingerprint Manager	Organization Workflow	Global Options ▼	Document Maintenance	Approval Substitution	Post Messages	Forms Designer	System Alerts	Product Registration
Use	ers and Sec	urity 🔒	Setup				Maintenan	te		A

A new tab displaying the existing reports in the system opens on the users screen. Select "Requisition" option from the drop down list for Module field. All the purchase requests in the system will be listed on the screen.

ID	Report Name	Description	Default
5	UDR-MWFM-POFormSummary.rpt	Purchase Order Summary	
5	5 UDR-MWFM-POFormSummary.rpt	Purchase Order Summary	
5	5 rpt_POForm	PO form	
5	7 rpt_POForm	PO form backup	

To set a report as the default report for your system check the default box against the report.

Note: The system can have only one default report per module.

<u>Field/</u> Button	Description
	To add a new report layout to the system. Refer to Create New Report Layout for more details.
	To edit a selected report.
	To delete a selected report.
	To copy a selected report.Refer to Copy a Report for more details. We suggest making a copy of the report before making changes to it to avoid loss of default settings.
4	To import a report from another system. Refer to Import a Report for more details.
٨	To export a report to another system. Refer to Export a Report for more details.

Create New Report Layout:

Click on the Add **button** to create a new report layout. The following window will pop-up:

Microix Workflow Modules	×
Please enter report description.	OK
	Cancel

Enter a description of the report and click on "OK". Click on "Cancel" to return to the main page.

A window named Report Designer will open on the user's screen. This allows the user to edit the report layout. All the required tools and field functions can be accessed and edited according to requirement.



To add company logo to the report:

Click on "Picture Box" in the "Tool Box" to add your company logo to the report layout. Mark the area where the logo should appear in the report layout.

□	
Name: XrSubreport1 Report Source: Null	There are invalid characters in the text
[CalVendorID]	Ship-to-Address
[VendorName] [sMainAddress] [CalVendorCityStateZip] [CalPhoneFax]	Name: XrSubreport2 Report Source: Null
Document Information	
Document Date [DateField1] Quired Date [DateField2] Cepared By Ser_ID] Workflow ID [Dept_ID] Satus Cepared By Construction (Dept_ID)	
scription Description]	
Comments : [Comments]	
PageHeader (one band per page)	
)ty. Type. Rec'd Date. Information	Item Unit Tax Number Description Price Total
□ □ □ Detail sI □ :[sItem. □ :[rec.] :[rec. dat] :[CalAccNo]	[sItemID] · · ·]:[sItem_UnitDesc] ·]:[sItem_Ur]:[P`]: [CalLineTo]; ·

Select the picture box so that its smart tag D will appear. Click on the smart tag D to open the following dialog box:

XRPictureBox	r Tasks
Image	(none) ···
Data Binding	(None) -
Image Url	
Data Binding	(None) -
Image Sizing	Normal 🔹
Anchor Vertical	None 🔹

Provide the image address in the "Image" field.

User can also resize the logo using the options available in the "Image Sizing" drop down list.

XRPictureBox	ĸ Tasks
Image	(none) ····
Data Binding	(None) -
Image Url	
Data Binding	(None) -
Image Sizing	Normal 💌
Anchor Vertical	Normal
	Stretch Image
	Auto-Size
	Center Image
	Zoom Image

Add a User Defined Field (UDF):

This function allows a user to add new fields to the report layout.

Select the "Field List" tab. This tab lists all the fields that are included in the database. User can add the custom fields or select a user defined field.

To add any field to the layout drag the required field and drop it at the place in the report where the field should appear.

All the fields marked with f are called calculated fields. These fields use an expression to calculate the data displayed in their value field.

To edit the expression right click on the calculated field and select edit expression.



The Expression Editor dialog box appears.

Expression Editor
Phone - ' + [tblAPVendor.sMainPhone] + '/ Fax - ' + [tblAPVendor.sMainFax] + - × ÷ % (···) = ≠ < ≤ ≥ > Functions Operators Fields Constants Parameters
OK Cancel

User can edit the expression and click on "OK" to save the changes.

Click on "Cancel" to exit the Expression Editor.

Note: It is advisable that user with prior programming experience edit the expression in these fields.

The field list also includes user definable fields.

Field List 🗖 🛱	×
	-
f UDFName1	
f UDFName2	
f UDFName3	
<u>f</u>] UDFName4	
f UDFName5	
f UDFName6	
<u>f</u> UDFValue1	
<u>f</u> UDFValue2	
<u>f</u>] UDFValue3	
<u>f</u> UDFValue4	
<u>f</u> UDFValue5	=
<u>f</u> UDFValue6	
	-
🔓 Report Explorer 📴 Field List	

Select the required field and drag and drop it in the appropriate layout space. UDFName and UDFValue appear in pairs and should be used accordingly.

ReportHeader [one band per report]	
[OName] Name: XrSubreport1 Report Source: Null	UDFValue1]
[CalVendorID]	Ship-to-Address Name: XrSubreport2 Report Source: Null
Document Information Document Date [DateField1] Image: Sparsed By Image: Sparsed By Vorkflow ID [Dept_ID] Image: Sparsed By Image: Sparsed By Image: Sparsed By	
)ty. Type Rec'd Date Information	Item Unit Tax Number Description. Price Total
□	[sItemID]

Double click on the block to edit the text.

Delete a field:

Click on the field to be deleted and press delete.

A field can also be deleted by right clicking on the field and selecting delete option.

😑 📄 PageHeader [one band per page]	[2				
Unit Qty Received Account Oty Type Rec'd Date Floformation		item · · · · · ·	Ite	m Jointoi		Unit Tax Price Total
		Insert	•			Price
[] Detail [si];[sitem.][rec.][[recdat_]][CalAccNo]		Delete	•		<u>R</u> ow	[sItem_Ura: [Pia: [CalLineTora] · · ·
ReportFooter [one band per report]		Paste		Ψ	⊆olumn	[atten_od]; [r.]; [carine id];
	×	Delete		₽•	Ceļl	
		Insert Band	•			
Name: XrSubreport4		Insert Detail Report	,	Exer	nptNote]	
PageFooter [one band per page]		Zoom	•			
[[CalCtrDocID]	P	Properties			· · · Monday	(, June 14, 2010) · Page 1 of 1

Resize a field:

Select the field to resize. Drag the boundary of the field to the correct size.

Copy a Report:

Select the report to be copied and click on the Copy in button. The following dialog box will appear:

Microix Workflow Modules	×
Please enter report description.	ОК
	Cancel

Enter a description for the report layout.

Click on "OK" to create a copy or "Cancel" to return to the Report Designer page.

User can select the copied report and click on the Edit is button to make changes to the report layout.

Import a Report:

This function allows user to import reports from another system.

Click on the Import $\stackrel{4}{\longrightarrow}$ button to select the report to be imported. Select the path for the report to be imported and click on "Open".

Open		? ×
Look in:	: 🔁 My Documents 💽 🔇 🎓 🖽 -	
My Recent Documents Desktop My Documents My Documents	BigAnt BigAnt SnagIt SQL Server Management Studio Visual Studio 2005	
My Network	File name: Oper	1
Places	Files of type: Report Files(*.Repx)	el

Click on "Cancel" to return to the "Report Designer" page.

Export a Report:

This function allows user to export reports to another system.

Click on the Export 🗳 button to save the selected report. Provide the path for the report in the following window:

Save As		? ×
Save in:	: 🦳 My Documents 💽 🔇 🎓 🖽 -	
My Recent Documents Desktop My Documents My Computer	 BigAnt My Pictures SnagIt SQL Server Management Studio ∀isual Studio 2005 	
My Network Places	File name:	Save Cancel
	Save as type: Report Files(*.Repx)	

Click on "Save" to save the report. A dialog box informing of the successful export will pop-up.

Microix Workflow Modules	×
Export finished successfully!!!	
OK	

Click "Cancel" to return to the "Report Designer" page.

Preview:

The Preview function provides the user with a quick print view of the selected report. Select a purchase request from the drop down list.

×			
docu	J sDescript	ion User_ID	c
PO-4		Anna B	12
PO-3	orm	Anna B	12
09-EN	V white board	Joanne	12
09-EN	N Coffee make	r Anna B	12
09-EN	V Office furniti	ure Anna B	12
PO-2	est	Anna B	12
09-EN	V Stationary	Anna B	12

Click on ${\small \widehat{I}}$ to display the preview. A new window called the "Preview" window will open.

ie <u>Vi</u> ew <u>B</u> ackground) 🗁 🔜 📑 🖴 🎲 🖳 🖑 🔍 🍳	100% 🕞 🔍 Ki da bashi 💾 🌆 🖄 🔖 + 🖂 + 🚳 📮
6	Social Service Agency Control's boundaries are for the barcode
Addr25 Addr33 Mulund, AP 6666	REQUISITION
Vendor : ABC	Ship-to-Address
ABC Office Supply 161 North Lamar Suite 200 Austin, TX 78755	city street Dacula, GA 10000 (123)456-7891 Laila
Document Information DocumentDate 05/28/2010 RequiredDate 06/07/2010 PreparedBy Joanne Suczynski	~
Workflow ID 0000 Status Submitted to Requeste Description white board	
Comments : Unit Qty Received Account Oty Type Rec'd Date Informat	Item Item Unit Ta: on Number Description Price

This document can be saved or printed. Close the form to exit the preview.

8.9 System Alerts

The Workflow Modules includes a monitoring feature that allows you to notify users automatically through email when there are conditions that exist in the application that require the user's attention. For example, you can set up a notification to be sent to each approver that has documents queued up for approval, that have been waiting beyond a defined number of days. You use the Monitor Configuration form and setup wizard to define the notification parameters. Microix's Monitor Console is a separate program, included with the Workflow Modules application, that reads the monitor configuration from the database and emails notifications for all alerts whose conditions are met. The Monitor Console program is scheduled with Windows Task Scheduler to be run once each work day.

When you select System Alerts from the Maintenance Ribbon Menu the following screen is

shown which lists the monitor alerts. To add a new alert click the ተ button to initiate the Alerts Wizard, which will lead you through the process.

Monitor Type	Module Type	Last Executed Date	Grace Period	Requester/Approver	Send Copy to E	Comments	Status
Document Approval	BD	1/4/2013 2:24 PM	3	Manager			A
Document Approval	BD	1/4/2013 2:24 PM	3	Supervisor			A
Document Approval	ENC	1/4/2013 2:24 PM	3	Manager			A
Document Approval	ENC	1/4/2013 2:24 PM	3	Accounting			A
Document Submit	BD	1/4/2013 2:24 PM	4	Requester			A
Document Submit	ENC	1/4/2013 2:24 PM	4	Requester			A
Inventory Stock Level	INV	1/4/2013 12:54 PM		Anna Belle Martin			A
Timesheet Absences	TSH	1/4/2013 1:23 PM		Manager			A
Timesheet Missed Punches	; TSH	1/4/2013 1:55 PM		Accounting			A

Welcome Screen

This is a standard introduction splash screen for the alert wizard process. The Next and Back buttons work as expected, moving you either forward or backward through the wizard screens. The Cancel button aborts the process without any alert additions being completed.

Microix System Alerts	
	Welcome to Microix System Alerts Wizard
	This wizard will step you through the process of creating Microix Alerts
	To continue, click Next
	< Back Next > Cancel

Alert Type

You must select the Alert Type and Module (if applicable to the type of alert selected). A brief description of each alert type is shown on the screen. Not all of the screens or fields are needed for each type of alert and the wizard will show or hide/disable them accordingly.

Alert Type	Document Approval 💌	
Module	Inventory Adjustment	
documer Inventor warning I Timeshe	ent Approval - Helps monitor approvers to make sure they appro int within a specific number of days from recieving it ry Stock Level - Reports inventory items which are below the sto level eet Absences - Lists employees who did not clock in the previous eet Missed Punches - Lists employees who missed either a clock	ck : day

Business Rule

The Business Rule applies to the Document Submit and Approval type alerts. The Number of Days is used to determine when alerts should start being sent to the requester/ approver. It will be different based on the module. For Timesheet, it is the number of days until the current pay period pay date. For Budget, it is the number of days before the new budget fiscal year date. While entering all other module types, the Submit alert is the number of days since the document was entered. The Approval alert is the number of days since the document was received by the approver.

e number of days depends on the type of Submit - enter the number of days from stem should start sending the employee a	f alert and module
stem should start sending the employee a	
cument for approval	
Approval - enter the number of days afte stem should start sending the approver a e is satisfied	

Approval Levels

The Approval Levels screen will be shown for all alert types, except Inventory Stock Level. For the Document Submit, the level will always be just the Requester Level. For the other alerts, it will be all other levels in the module workflows up to and including the Accounting level. An alert record will be generated for each level selected. You can also enter an additional email address where a copy of the notification will be sent. Note: An alert will be sent each day scheduled until the action monitored is completed.

Microix System Alerts Approval Levels Select the approval levels you want notified. Send a copy of the alerts to the following email address: Available Approval Levels Preliminary Timesheet Supervisor Manager By default Microix will send the alert Purchasing report to each requester/approver who Warehouse is in violation of the business rules. The 🔲 N/A report will be sent each day until proper Accounting action is take to remedy the buiness rule. The report Microix generates and sends to the managers will be in a summary format and they will not receive an email for each document that is in violation. < Back Next > Cancel

Comments

Comments can be added to each alert.

Comments:	
	-
	~

Completing the wizard

After each step is completed, the wizard completion screen is presented. You must click the Finish button to write your selections to the database and return to the Monitor Configuration form.

Microix System Alerts	
	Completing the wizard
	You have completed all of the steps for creating this alert.
	To write your selections to the database and close this wizard click Finish.

8.10 Product Registration

Use this form to enter the product activation code. This code determines the number of valid user licenses and which module(s) is accessible.

① The product codes are not provided with the software and should be requested via

email. See next section for detailed instruction on how to request these codes.

Request your	activation code
Organization ID	NPS01234
Email Address	
Product Regis	tration
Serial Number	
Activation Code	
	Apply Cancel

Fields/Buttons	Description
Organization ID	After installing the Microix server component, this information will be obtained from your Abila MIP Fund Accounting database. It is read only and cannot be changed.
Email Address	To request your product activation code for the first time or to get a copy of your activation code, enter your email address and click on the email button to send your request to Microix. You should receive your activation code within 1-4 hours during Microix business hours.
Serial Number	Enter your 16 digit serial number provided by Microix
	Example: Serial Number - 01234-1-0-008-006-004
Activation Code	Enter the 15 character alpha numeric activation code provided by Microix
	Activation Code - 5412G-U1K8I-OWNL3-C6A0X-12059
~	Save the product activation codes
×	Close the form

The Serial and Activation codes provided in the sample can be used to activate the product when used with Abila MIP Fund Accounting Sample database (SSA or GOVSSA).



9 Support

The **Support Ribbon** menu enables you to manage the *Microix* SQL databases, check for updates and connect to a live support representative.

	Ŧ						Workflow Mo	dules 2015	
	Budget	Requisition/Purchase (Order	Inventor	y Timesł	neet	Maintenance	Support	
-			-	->	*	B	0		
Live Rem Suppor			Backup	Restore	Create New Database	Query Data	Integrity Check		
	Options	Es.		Datal	base Function	IS	- G		
Functio	n	Description							
<u>Live Re</u> Suppor		Allows a <i>Microi</i> local PC and as for you to rece issues or quest	sist yc ive sup	ou with a port bu	any issues t it helps	s. This us to	process is r	not required	-
<u>Check f</u> 203	or Update	SAdministrators from Microix FT			ption to d	ownloa	ad the lates	updates	
Report Issues	<u>Software</u> 205े	Use this Ribbon suggest future			•		•	ould like to	
Backup		Backup the Mic	roix S	QL datal	base.				
Restore)	Restores a Mic	roix SQ	<u>)</u> L datab	ase.				
<u>Create</u> Databa		Create a new <i>l</i> to a different A				est env	vironment or	to connect	
Query [Data 206	Use standard S tables.	SQL que	ery langi	uage to re	etrieve	data from a	iny of our	

9.1 Live Remote Support

The **Live Remote Support** ribbon item will allow a Microix Support Representative to remotely connect to your local PC and assist you with any issues. This process is not required for you to receive support but it helps us to identify and resolve any issues or questions in a timely manner.

Because this process allows us to view your local PC , we advise that any private information displayed on your PC should be closed before connecting to any of our support representatives.

1. At a minimum, enter your name and email address and click continue.

	Remote Support Please fill in the following information to begin
Your Name:	John
E-mail:	john@live.com
Phone:	516-589-5598
Question:	Unable to create New Timesheet

2. You will be prompted to download an Inter-tel active X file that is required by our remote software. Right click on the yellow bar and click on the option to download and run the file.

ernet Explorer blocked this sit	e from
Download File	
What's the Risk?	
Information Bar Help	
	What's the Risk?

3. After a few seconds, a message will appear informing you that it is trying to locate the next available support representative.

Locating a Representativ
One Moment Please
Cancel
If you would prefer not to wait
please <u>click here</u> to send an E-mail.

4. After a Microix support representative connects to your session, you will be asked to show your desktop. Click on the YES button to accept.

The representative would like to view your Desktop.
Granting access will also allow the representative to enable Remote Control. You can disable Remote Control at any time by pressing Ctrl+Alt+R.
Do you accept?
Seconds left: 10
Yes No

9.2 Check for Updates

This form allow administrators to download the latest updates from Microix FTP site. Additionally, it will install any table updates or stored procedures to your Microix SQL databases.

U When checking for new updates, the process should be performed at any one PC where Microix Workflow Modules Client is installed. All other workstations will be prompted to update during their the login process. The updates will run from the Microix Share folder which is located on the Abila MIP FA server.

1. Navigate to the Ribbon Menu **Support>Check for Updates**. Click on the "**Check Now**" button and Microix will begin searching our FTP server for any available updates. If an update exists, a message will be displayed to the end-user.

Microix Workflow Modules	×
A new version is available, please review the not	es before installing.
	ОК

2. We strongly advise that you read the upgrade notes before applying any updates.

Versient 2015 001 5
Version: 2015.001.5
Type: Patch
Server: True
Notify: True Version
Minimum MIP Version: 13.0.0.0
DxVer: 12.1.7.0
**** Please read before downloading and installing this update ****
UPDATE REQUIRED? No (See Notes) Update Required?
NOTES - Microix Cloud Companion Application also requires an update. Please contact
MSI DEPLOYMENT - http://www.minutininfo/belodosk/KB/View/4394
Release Notes
Version 2015.001.5 Released 1
All Modules

3. To start the upgrade process, click on the "Retrieve Updates" button and the software will begin downloading all required files to your local server> Microix Share>autoupdate folder.

Status		
Bytes/Second: 187973		
Bytes Received: 114476		
\'poweredge\Microix Share\autoupdates\Patch\wfmpatch.exe	Check Now	Retrieve Updates

4. Once the download is completed, Microix will exit to perform the update. Click on the Unzip button the extract the file to your local drive.

l o unzip all files ir older press the U	n wfmpatch.exe to the specified	Unzip
	WinZip Self-Extractor 🔀	Run WinZip
Jnzip to folder: Files\Microix\W	6 file(s) unzipped successfully	Close
🗹 Overwrite file:	ОК	About
		Help

If the update does not execute automatically, you can manually install the update by navigating to \\YourMIPServer\Microix Share\autoupdates\patch\ and run the wfmpatch. exe file on the local workstation.

9.3 Report Software Issues

If you detected a bug or would like to suggest any enhancements to our product, you can fill out the form below and click on the send button. The system will automatically forward your message to our support department and a representative will contact you thereafter. A copy of your email will be saved in the system audit trail.

Send Em	ail Message
To:	
CC:	Anna Belle Martin 🔹
Subject:	Microix Bug/Enhancment Notification
Message	
Please ad pay rate.	d a leave report that calculates the liability amount based on the employees
	Send Close

9.4 Create New Database

Choosing "Create new database" allows the user to create a new Microix database and link it with an existing MIP database.

Note: If you will be attaching multiple Microix databases to the SAME MIP Database, you will want to contact support for additional considerations.

Org Unit ID

9.5 Query Data

The query data screen allows you to query the database tables directly. You can utilize the "Build SQL Statement" options to generate a SQL Select statement and utilize the execute button in the bottom right to display results.

Build SQL Statement Table Name tbl_Approval_Levels Columns aActive, AddApprvHyperLin			SQL O	SQL Output										
			Exclude	aActive, AddAppr RecType, LessE	rvHyperLink, qual, Modified	aLeaveDate, al IBy, ModifiedDa	.evel, AprvlNotifica ate, Stat_False, Sta	ation, aReturnD at_True, sUser_	ate, Category, ID, User_ID fro	Dept_ID, dtype m tbl_Approval	, eMessage, Levels			
														_
rac	a column h	leader here to gr	oup by that colu	umn										
-	Active		a Leave Date		Apryl Notifi	a Return Date	Category	Dept ID	dtype	e Message	Exclude Re	Less Equal	Modified By	M
	1			0			General	103	AD J	N/A		0.0000		8/
	V			0			General	103	API	N/A		0.0000		7/
t	1			0			General	103	BD	N/A		0.0000		8/
t	1			0			General	103	ENC	N/A		0.0000		7/
t	~			0			General	103	ENL	N/A		0.0000		8/
t	1			0			General	103	SO	N/A		0.0000		8/
t	1			0			General	103	TSH	N/A		0.0000		8/
	1			0.5			General	103	TSH	Please Appr		0.0000		8/
				1			General	103	ENC	Please Appr		0.0000		7/
				1			General	103	TSH	Please Appr		0.0000		8/
200	ord 1 of 17	4												

Support	207



10 Shared Activities

10.1 Reroute

The **Re-Route** function is used by an approver and allows them to send a document back to the requester or any previous approvers within the workflow. After re-routing a document, you are granting read/write privileges for the recipient to make any necessary changes to the document. The recipient can then re-submit the document through the approval process from that point forward.

You can re-route a document an unlimited number of times.

(1) An audit trail will be recorded each time a document is re-routed with the reason and timestamp.

Send To				P
Reason	LevelID	User Name	Level	
	c) Requester	Requester	
	×			
				Ŧ

Fields/ Buttons	Description
Send To	Select the level where you would like to send the document.
Reason	Enter a reason for re-routing the document

Click on the **Send** button to complete the process.

10.2 Email

The Email function within Workflow Modules provides a convenient way for end-users to send outgoing messages to other Microix users. Recipients will utilize their normal email clients, such as Microsoft Outlook, to read the email correspondence.

In Messages sent from Workflow Modules will be saved to the document's audit trail as history.

To:			
10:	Anna Belle Martin	-	
CC:	Dana R. Jeffries	-	
Subject:	Ref: 13-BD-1011		
Message Please re-			
		Send	Close

Options / Buttons	Description
То	Select a recipient name from the lookup list

CC Carbon copy another user (Optional)

Subject Enter a subject for your message

MessageEnter a detailed message



When you're done composing your message, click the send button



Exit/Close the Email form

10.3 Attachments

The **Attachment** form allows users to attach electronic documents (PDF, HTML, Word, Excel, TXT, JPG, BMP, etc.) that are stored locally on your PC or a network location. Additionally, you can utilize document scanners to scan receipts, invoices or any other type of document and attach them using this form. You can attach an unlimited number of documents and Microix will note them all in the audit trail.

① Microix saves all attachments to a SQL Database called "MWFMAttachment". Include this database in a regular backup schedule if the attachment feature is being utilized.

An adequate amount of disk space is required for the MWFMAttachment database. We also recommend that scanned documents should be saved using the smallest file size on server disk space.

 \forall All Microix users must be granted read/write permissions to the attachment folder which is located in the Microix Share folder.

212 Workflow Modules

-	to browse and search for attachment
ttachment	
File Name	File Description
	attachments including a copy of the document

Items/ Buttons	Description
Attachment Location	Click on the ellipse "Folder/Magnifying Glass" button to browse for an attachment that is stored locally on your PC or a network location. Choose the "Scanner/Paperclip" button to scan a document now. After selecting the attachment, click on the save button and enter a brief description of the file you are attaching. By default, the system will automatically use the file name as the description but it can be changed before saving.
Q	Select an attachment from the grid view and click on the view button to open an existing attachment.
	Delete an existing attachment
0	Cancel and close the form.
P	Close the form.

10.4 Audit Trail

An **Audit Trail** is recorded for each Microix document and it attempts to establish a chronological list of steps that were necessary to begin the transaction as well as bring it to completion.

 $\left. \begin{array}{c} & & \\ & & \\ \end{array} \right\}$ To filter, sort and group the data see <u>Sorting/Grouping/Filtering Data Grids</u> $^{[213]}$

Ca	ate	egory 🔺		
F	Rei	vised by	Action	Date/Time Stamp
	v	Category: Imported	i salary worksheet	
		Anna Belle Martin	Salary Worksheet	10/20/2015 1:09 PM
	v	Category: Submitte	d	
		Anna Belle Martin	Submitted for Approval	10/20/2015 1:10 PM



Select the **Print** button to print a copy of the Audit Trail.



E

Select the $\ensuremath{\textbf{Close}}$ button to close the Audit Trail form and return to the document.

10.5 Sorting/Grouping/Filtering Data Grids

This section demonstrates how to **sort, filter** and **group** data that resides in our data grids.

5tat	us 🔺 🏅	Grouping		F	Itering)		Sorting			
Do	с Туре	🕈 Туре 🕈	Document No 👻 Ref.	🕈 Date 🔍 🕈	User	Document Des.	··· • ··· •	Vendor Name	Total 📍 📍	% Compl 📍 Attac	··· [•] ·
					%ann						
~	0 - Re	quester Documents	5								1
1	API	Accounts Payabl	12-AP-1023	11/9/2012	Anna B	office	100	UNASSIGNED	0.00	0.00 %	:
	API	Accounts Payabl	12-AP-1022	11/8/2012	Anna B	desk	300	ABC - ABC O	0.00	0.00 %	
			2						0.00		
~	1 - Su	pervisor Document	s								
	ENC	Consolidated Pur	PO-To Be Assi	11/19/2012	Anna B	Desk	100	UNASSIGNED -	0.00	0.00 %	
1	API	Accounts Payabl	12-AP-01024	11/16/2012	Anna B	Desk	100	ABC - ABC O	125.00	0.00 %	
1	ENC	Consolidated Pur	PO-To Be Assi	11/12/2012	Anna B	Desk	100	UNASSIGNED -	1,849.00	0.00 %	

1. <u>Sorting</u>

Allows you to sort data by an unlimited number of columns. When sorting is applied to a view, the records are re-arranged to meet the current sort settings. To sort data against a grid view's column or to change the column's sort order, an end-user can click the column header. The column's current sort order is indicated by the sort icon . If the data is sorted in ascending order, the sort icon represents an up-arrow. When sorting in descending order, the sort icon is displayed as a down-arrow. If the column isn't sorted,

the sort glyph is hidden.

If sorting is already applied to the column, subsequent clicks reverse the current sort order. Note: A regular click on a column header (Sort button) clears the sort settings of any other columns. To preserve the existing sort settings of other columns, hold the SHIFT key down while clicking. This can be useful when you need to apply sorting to multiple columns at the same time. You can clear a column's sorting by clicking its header (Sort button) while pressing the CTRL key. End-users can also apply sorting to any column via the column header context menu. This menu is accessible by right clicking on any column header.

2. Filtering

In the grid view, an end-user can apply, change or remove filtering via a column's filter button. Clicking it will invoke a filter dropdown list which, by default, contains the predefined ((All), (Custom), (Blanks) and (Non Blanks)) values along with the values of items. At the top of the list, the most recently used filter conditions are displayed. The following image shows the filter dropdown list invoked for a column in a grid view:

9	Statu		
9	Тур	(All) (Custom) (Blanks) (Non blanks)	Ŷ
	*	$1 - \frac{1}{14}$	en
		Stan Standard Requisition	
	Y	14 - Documents Tran	isfei
		Standard Requisition	
		Accounts Payable Invoid	e

It is also possible to add custom filter items to the filter dropdown list which can be used to apply any filter criteria to the data when they are selected. Applying filtering to a

column does not affect the filter settings of any other column. After a filter has been applied to the current grid view, the **filter panel** appears by default at the bottom of the grid.

	AccessID	
Remove Filter Workfler, 100 - Atlanta		Advanced Filter Options
× 👽 [Workflow] = '100 - Atlanta' And [Mo	udula) – 'ENC' ×	Edit Filter
Record 1 of 8		E dict incl

The Filter Builder allows users to build complex filter criteria with an unlimited number of filter conditions, combined by logical operators. To access the filter builder, click on the "Edit Filter" button located in the right corner of the filter panel.

😽 Filter Builder	x
And C [Workflow] Equals 100 - Atlanta C [Module] Equals ENC C	
OK Cancel App	ly

3. Grouping

A user can group data by any particular column by dragging its header from the **column header panel** onto the **group panel**. To ungroup the data, remove the column header from the group panel by dragging it. You can also change the order of the grouping columns using drag and drop.

It is also possible to group data into columns by selecting the "Group By This Field" option from the **column header context menu**. To ungroup data, use the "UnGroup" option from the same menu or "Clear Grouping" from the group panel context menu. Records are always sorted against the grouping columns. If you group data against a column which isn't sorted, the grid control will automatically apply sorting in ascending order to the column. Subsequently, if you remove the column from the group panel, it's sort settings will be cleared.

	Docum	nent No	Reference No	Date	2 ↓ Sort Ascending	Workflow ID	Total %
9					Z Sort Descending		
	∀ Ту	ype: Accou	nts Payable In	voice	Clear Sorting	mn header	2
	~	Vendor N	ame: ABC - AB	C Office Su		ext menu	
		12-AP		11/16/20	B Group By This		125.00
		12-AP		11/8/201	💾 Hide Group By Box	300	0.00
	1	12-AP	12-AP-1018	11/7/201	Remove This Column	300	300.00 🔹
				44.171004		300	1,500.00
		12-AP	12-AP-1021	11/7/201	🛅 Column Chooser	500	1,500.00

10.6 Report Export

All Reports are capable of being exported to Excel, CSV and most importantly, printed to PDF. Once exported, you can save the file to disk or send via email as an attachment.

_		<u>B</u> ackground					-	<	_		
E.	ş 🗁		3 🗳 🗄 🖪	8 Q	100% 🔍	- 🔍 🛛		P 🐴 🔯		- 🖂 - 🔞	τ.
									\checkmark	PDF File	
1										HTML File	
1		and an					Export option	menu	-	MHT File	
0	rgani	ization Na	me: MIP I r	aining v i	1.0			rinena 2	and the second	TAULTE LUC	
1.000	-		me: MIP I r ocument M	_		C			-	RTF File	-
R	eport		ocument M	_		C					-
Re U:	eport ser: /	t Name: De Anna Belle	ocument M Martin	aintenance	e					RTF File	-
Re U:	eport ser: /	t Name: De Anna Belle	ocument M	aintenance	e	User Name	Document Descri		IC	RTF File XLS File XLSX File	-
Re U:	eport ser: /	t Name: De Anna Belle	ocument M Martin	aintenance	e				IC	RTF File XLS File	-
Re U:	eport ser: / oc Type atus: 0	t Name: De Anna Belle	ocument M Martin Document No	aintenance Reference Ni	e		Document Descri		π	RTF File XLS File XLSX File	
Re U:	eport ser: / oc Type atus: 0 API	t Name: De Anna Belle _{Type}	Document M Martin Document No	aintenance Reference No	e Date	User Name	Document Descri	ption Workflow	IC	RTF File XLS File XLSX File CSV File	

10.7 Import from Excel

The Import from Excel form will allow you to import data from a Microsoft Excel Worksheet.

Import Options	
 Create a sample import template with all the control of the sample import new data from an excel/csv file Import data from an excel/csv file that will upont data from an excel data from an excel/csv file that will upont data from an excel dat	
Import File Information	
1. Browse and select the Excel file to be imported:	
2. What is the name of the Excel Sheet?	Sheet4
	Process 🔀 Close
Error Log (Review if your import process di	d not work)
Error Log (Review if your import process di १	d not work)

<u>Options/</u> <u>Buttons</u>	Description
Worksheet Name	Enter the worksheet name which is located at the bottom of each Excel worksheet.
File Location	Click on the browse 🐃 button to locate the Excel file to be imported.
Create Sample Template	Use this option to generate an Excel file showing all the required columns needed for the import process.
Update/ Append	Trigger the import process to only update existing records in your database.



Zip

Postal zip code

Process the selected options

Close the form

10.8 Address Code Maintenance

Use the Address form to create and manage multiple Bill To and Ship To addresses for the Requisition/PO Module.

The bill to address is used by the vendor to forward original invoices to your accounting department. The ship to address is used by the vendor to mail a product or render service to the specified address.

	ain 👂		🔒 🔊 🚽
Addres	s Information		
Addr Cod	de Main	Type P	-
Address			
369 We	St Pike St		A.
369 We	ST PIKE ST		<u></u>
369 We	ST PIKE ST		<u></u>
369 We	ST PIKE ST		A
369 We	ST PIKE ST		*
Gity	Lawrenceville		*
		Zip	30046

<u>Fields/</u> Buttons	Descriptions
Search Address	Use the search combo box to find an existing address
Addr Cod	e Alphanumeric code that represents the address or location. The maximum field length is 25 characters.
Address	Complete address including street and or suite number
City	Enter the city name
State	Enter a two character state code (Example: TX, GA, FL, NY)

© 2002-2016 Microix Inc.

<u>Fields/</u> Buttons	Descriptions
Phone	Contact person's phone number
Contact	Contact person's full name
Addr Type	T - Temporary Address
	P - Permanent Address Click the Add button to create a new ship-to/bill-to address.
×	To Delete an address code, select the Address ID from the drop-down list and click on the Delete button.
	Save changes to the form
	Undo the last change

10.9 Reports

This function will display the selected report for the period specified by the user. Select the report to be displayed from a drop down list. User can specify the period over which the report needs to be generated.

Some reports in Microix will require the use of "Report Groups" in MIP to specify GL grouping within the report. You can find more information on assigning the report groups in our online knowledgebase.

Report Name	Report Lay	rout		Select a Pay Date			
Employee Leave Accrua	/Taken	rout] 👻 🗒	Save Delete	Date 8/28/2015 📵 To		View 🗊 Print	
Timesheet Form	A				1 - 10		
Time Clock Entries							
Timesheet Summary	=						
D Timesheet Summary Ro	v Format						
Timesheet Allocation							
Requested and Approve		Leave	Period Accrued	YTD Accrued	Period Taken	YTD Taken	Balance
		Leave	Period Accrued	YTD Accrued	Period Taken	YTD Taken	Balance
Requested and Approve Employee Leave Accrua		Leave Sidk8	Period Accrued	YTD Accrued 48.0000		YTD Taken 0.0000	
Requested and Approve	/Taken and Balance 🔻		Period Accrued				240.000
Requested and Approve Employee Leave Accrua	/Taken and Balance 🔻	Sick8	Period Accrued	48.0000		0.0000	240.0000

<u>Field/</u> Button	Description
0	To view the report generated for the selected values.

To print a paper copy of the report.

10.10 Document List

The document search allows an approver to view a list of all documents created within their approving workflows

									Re	trieve Records		000
ocument Statu	s 🔺											
Doc Type	Туре	Document No	Reference No	Date	User Name	Document Description	Workflow ID	Vendor Name	Total	Session	% Completed	t
v Documen	t Status: 0 - Reque	ester Document	s									
ENC	Request Items	13-EN-To Be		10/20/2015	Dana R. Jeffries	Inventory Items Picked usin	103	UNASSIGNE	5,161.80		0.00 %	
ENC	Request Items	13-EN-1019		10/20/2015	Dana R. Jeffries	Inventory Items Picked usin	103	UNASSIGNE	2,580.90		0.00 %	
ENC	Request Items	13-EN-1018		10/16/2015	Anna Belle Ma	Inventory Items Picked usin	103	UNASSIGNE	3.66		0.00 %	
ENC	Request Items	13-EN-1017		10/16/2015	Anna Belle Ma	Inventory Items Picked usin	103	UNASSIGNE	3.66		0.00 %	
ENC	Return Items to	13-EN-1015		10/15/2015	Anna Belle Ma	Return A series	103	UNASSIGNE	0.00		0.00 %	
ENC	Request Items	13-EN-1010		8/11/2015	Anna Belle Ma	Request items from inventory	103	UNASSIGNE	11.97		0.00 %	
ENC	Standard Requi	13-EN-1009		8/11/2015	Anna Belle Ma	Request for 20 units	103	ABC - ABC	400.00		0.00 %	
		7							8,161.99			
v Documen	t Status: 10 - Acco	unting Docume	nt <mark>s (Anna Bell</mark> e	Martin)								
ENC	Standard Requi	13-EN-1016		10/15/2015	Anna Belle Ma	Order new A series	103	UNASSIGNE	37.60		100.00 %	
ENC	Request Items	13-EN-1014		10/15/2015	Anna Belle Ma	Request A series	103	UNASSIGNE	5.76		100.00 %	
ENC	Standard Requi	13-EN-1013		8/13/2015	Anna Belle Ma	Test Partial Pay	103	ABC - ABC	5,988.00		50.00 %	
		17							\$42,545.87			
1 1 1	Record	d 1 of 17 🔳										•

Field/ Button

0

<u>Description</u>

View the document information in read only format.

payments

View the audit trail information for the selected document. Refer to the <u>Shared</u> Activities>Audit Trail 213 section for additional information.

To view the list of approvers in the workflow.

Print the list of documents that are display in the grid. Utilize the grid's sorting and filtering options to sort and retrieve specific information before printing.